BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda for
April 9, 2025
Special Meeting - 5:00 p.m.
30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, CA 95023

Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Executive
Assistant/Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements
can be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https:/ /us06web.zoom.us/i/82087049079?pwd=2ym4SVt4igZry7X4IB50AhCehJYIto. 1

Meeting ID
820 8704 9079

Passcode:
292882

Dial Only:
Dial by your location
* +1 669 444 9171 US
*+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
* +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
*+1 719 359 4580 US
e +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver)
* +1 253 205 0468 US
* +1 646 931 3860 US
*+1 689 278 1000 US

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
b. Roll Call
C. Approval of the Agenda

d. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board




AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Discuss Public Outreach for the Accelerated Drought Response Project
2. Public Hearing regarding the Adoption and Approval of Findings for the
Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Accelerated Drought Response
Project
a.  Proof of Publication submitted for the Adoption and Approval of

o

-0 a0

Findings for the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Accelerated
Drought Response Project

Presentation of the Findings

Questions of Directors

Open Public Hearing

Close Public Hearing or continue to a later date
Comnsider Adoption of the Statement of Findings

Consider Resolution for Approval of the Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Accelerated Drought Response Project including
the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

3. CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel-Pending

litigation

Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1)
Kurasaki vs. Caltrans et al; San Benito County

4. OPEN SESSION:
Report any actions, if any, from Closed Session item

ADJOURNMENT

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is
distributed to all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office
located at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT




R e
e

i
SSCOUNTY y
EO ,.-;‘gw.nmngl;.,.«%)

L)

Off reaers” CF
L] )
Ty

Agenda
Item

# 1



4/3/2025

Public Meeting: Accelerated Drought
Response Project

San Benito County Water District

F)? April 9, 2025

Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADROP)

Grant Funding Tarr{glztu(:;atmt Grant Award Rel\an;utfrg q

DWR - IRWM $1.8M $1.8M 50%

DWR - SGMA Round 2 $20M $11.5M 0%

USBR - Small Storage ~$9.2M $6.7M 75%
Total Grant Funding $20M

Applying for ~$6M USBR Small Storage funding in Summer 2025




4/3/2025

DWR Grant Requirements

 Stakeholder engagement outreach
« 2-3 public meetings required — one during CEQA process
* Necessary prior to reimbursement

* Formal outreach plan will be developed separately

 Additional public meetings forthcoming

Water and Wastewater Master Planning Coordination

 Coordination occurs through SBCWD’s Governance Committee

» Master planning process evaluates water supply alternatives

. : [ ’ San Benito ‘Sunnyslope
City of San Benito | | San Juan
County J ’ Bautista ‘ Cout Cout

Hollister Water District | | Water District
L [ | | |

Governance
Committee

Management |
Committee J




4/3/2025

Master Plan
Accomplishments

"; i&chem
Rucker % | Reservoir

* Lessalt Treatment Plant Gilcoy pu
Upgrade

e West Hills Treatment
Plant

|4 e * Hawkins

" %&( f::sivvoiv

* Hollister Wastewater \’ 2%,

Reclamation Facility \ Vi,
« Ridgemark Wastewater ., e { VioneTre
Hollister E Reservoir
Treatment Plant \\Ea,, Water Reclamation Arriye aos Picach
\ Eeﬂ/‘,o e Facility, ;] o5

) jv
L~liver

"':rn:x_:_z-:yn—T;

ez e v o 1\
San Juan g gy Fre |
" | Lessalt WTP

<
Y

' o \
Bautista " "
West Hills WTP ‘ N, i
1

San Justo Ridgemark
Reservoir \\
? 2 Paicines'Reservoir Hernandez Reskd
2023 Master Plan Analysis
14,000 ! Level of Service Goals
High Quality Water Need (180mg/L)
12.000 L MYD High Quality Water Need (180mg/L). o - « Urban supply shall meet
' | ——Projected Demand ’ 100% of demand in all
$ 10,000 - - Average CVP Allocation / . year types
- MYD CVP Allocation - el g
s ; * In 2" and subsequent
E 8,000 years of multi-year
3 drought, meet 85% of
T 6000 = demand for high quality
E water
°
< 450 - Deficit of ~1,200 AFY for
| existing customers
2'000 T . B - OSSOSO - P MOVOROOR -
, Additional Supply is
N '9 o o D P D B g B Needed to Improve
ERCUIR I P IR IE E a Reliability for Existing

*MYD is Multi-year

Customers




4/3/2025

Master Plan Recommendation

 Implement the Accelerated Drought Response Project to
improve drought resilience for existing customers

* CEQA coverage prohibits use of ADRoP for future growth

Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

Purpose: Provide a drought resilient water supply on an
expedited timeline to qualify for grant funding
Project Components:
 Expansion of West Hills Water Treatment Plant to 6.75 MGD
» Up to 5 wells for injection and extraction
* New pipelines and appurtenances

Capital Cost: Current estimate +/- $50 million




t Execution Approach

Projec
Construct ADROP in Two Steps:

West Hills WTP Expansion
a) Construction begins April 2025

b) Initial CEQA complete in 2014
al impacts less than significant

i

c) Environment
with mitigation

~ Wells and Pipelines

a) Design complete April 2025
b) CEQA /| NEPA April/May 2025
Environmental impacts less tha
with mitigation
completion expected

c) n significant

3 Construction
March 2026

Q3] LVLo




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: %

Meeting Date: April 9, 2025
Submitted By: Dana Jacobson

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: Discuss and Consider a Resolution Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration,
Adopting Findings of Fact, Adopting Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Programs Pursuant
to the California Environmental Quality Act and Approving the Accelerated Drought Response
Project.

Detailed Description:

The District is developing the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) to improve water
supply reliability for its urban customers during times of drought. It consists of an expansion of
the West Hills Water Treatment Plant and the construction of up to five aquifer storage and
recovery wells and associated pipelines that would provide the District the ability to store and
recover up to 2,700 acre-feet (AF) of water per year.

ADROP is considered a “project” under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA),
which requires that the District perform appropriate environmental reviews. In 2014 the District
prepared an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the West Hills Water Treatment Plant,
which analyzed the future expansion to a buildout capacity of 9 million gallons per day (MGD).
Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21166 and CEQA guidelines 15162, it has been
determined that the District can rely on the 2014 EIR to adequately address CEQA compliance
for the expansion of the treatment plant to 6.75 MGD as part of ADRoP. The 2014 EIR found
that the West Hills Water Treatment Plant would have no significant environmental effects.
However, the original Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program is being amended in
response to the changed conditions.

To achieve CEQA compliance for wells and pipelines elements of ADRoP, in combination with
the expansion of the treatment plant, the District has prepared an Initial Study and Mitigated
Negative Declaration (IS/MND). The US Bureau of Reclamation is preparing a Supplemental
Environmental Assessment (EA) to satisfy National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA)
requirements. The IS/MND found that ADRoP would have potentially significant environmental
impacts if mitigation was not incorporated into the project. A separate Mitigation, Monitoring,
and Reporting Program has been developed for the project as a whole, such that the
environmental impacts would be mitigated to a less than significant level. The attached CEQA




Findings of Fact are required as part of the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND). Their
purpose is to certify that the District has followed the law and has performed the appropriate
CEQA analyses. The Findings describe the District’s determination that ADRoP will have
impacts that are considered less than significant under CEQA and contain the District’s required
mitigation. The Findings state that the District approves the MND pursuant to CEQA.

Approval of this agenda item will allow the District to move forward with critical aspects of the
project including easement acquisition, and ultimately begin construction.

Prior Committee or Board Action: N/A

Financial Impact: Yes X No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Materials included:
1. Resolution
2. Final Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation and Reporting
Program
3. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Findings of Fact
4. (Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan — West Hills Treatment Plant

Expansion
Recommendation:
Action Required: __ X Resolution Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN BENITO
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION FOR THE ACCELERATED DROUGHT RESPONSE PROJECT;

ADOPTING CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT FINDINGS OF
FACT, MITIGATION MEASURES, AND MITIGATION MONITORING AND
REPORTING PROGRAM; AND

APPROVING THE ACCELERATED DROUGHT RESPONSE PROJECT;

WHEREAS, The San Benito County Water District (District) has the primary
responsibility for managing the water supplies in San Benito County, including for
the urban areas; and

WHEREAS, the District provides wholesale treated water to the City of
Hollister and the Sunnyslope County Water District and anticipates providing
such water to the City of San Juan Bautista (Retailers) in the near future; and

WHEREAS, the District and Retailers have worked cooperatively to
identify water supply projects to improve the reliability of wholesale water
deliveries during times of extreme drought; and

WHEREAS, the District is developing the Accelerated Drought Response
Project (ADRoP) to mitigate for the variability in water supplies available to the
District and improve water supply reliability for the Retailers; and

WHEREAS, ADROP consists of an expansion of the existing West Hills Water
Treatment Plant and the construction of up to five aquifer storage and recovery
wells and associated pipelines; and

WHEREAS, in 2014 the District Certified a Final Environmental Impact
Report (FEIR), adopted California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) findings of
fact, and a Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program for construction of the
West Hills Water Treatment Plant, including subsequent expansions; and

WHEREAS, the expansion of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant being
undertaken as part of ADRoP was previously evaluated in the 2014 FEIR and a
subsequent analysis conducted in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section
15162 found that the proposed expansion was still consistent with the previous
FEIR; and,

WHEREAS, the Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program for the
West Hills Water Treatment Plant has been updated as part of ADRoP, and



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

WHEREAS, the District, as lead agency pursuant to CEQA, has
conducted an Initial Study for the aquifer storage and recovery wells and
associated pipelines components of ADRoP; and

WHEREAS, the District, based on the Initial Study, has determined that,
with the implementation of specific mitigation measures, ADRoP will not have a
significant effect on the environment and therefore has prepared a Mitigated
Negative Declaration (MND); and

WHEREAS, a separate Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program
has been prepared for the aquifer storage and recovery wells and pipelines
elements of ADRoP; and

WHEREAS, the District has considered the MND dated April 2025 and
hereby finds that the MND:

1) Has been completed in compliance with CEQA;

2) Has been presented to the District Board of Directors and the Board has
reviewed and considered the information contained in the MND prior to
approving ADRoP;

3) Reflects the District’s independent judgment and analysis;

4) Supports the determination that there are no unmitigated significant
impacts; and

5) Incorporates the mitigation measures identified in the findings attached
to this resolution that would avoid or mitigate potential significant
environmental impacts

Now therefore, be it resolved that the Board of Directors of the District
hereby:

a. Adopt the San Benito County Water District Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Accelerated Drought Response Project

b. Adopt by Resolution California Environmental Quality Act Modified
Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting Program for the West Hills
Water Treatment Plant.

C. Adopt by Resolution California Environmental Quality Act Findings
of Fact, Mitigation Measures, and Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program for the Wells and Pipelines Elements of ADRoP
and Authorize the General Manager to Sign the Findings

d. Direct District Staff to File Notice of Determination with San Benito
County Recorder’s Office

e. Approve the Accelerated Drought Response Project



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District held on the 9t day of April, 2025 by the
following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-04)

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary/Board Clerk

Doug Williams
President



Prepared By:

HDR Engineering, Inc.
2365 Iron Point Road, Suite 300
Folsom, CA 95630

Final Initial Study and
Mitigated Negative
Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

San Benito County Water District

SCH# 2025021019
April 4, 2025
\\\\\\\\\\“
S0 W Yy
:4;\0 s -:'\‘»‘;1;;;;?&,‘? @,P' %

::S ." .9'/
a2 I A7X
Fa 127
sz : ﬂ
%54 WM - #92

”' -‘o qnah-

l".ll

KX OLLISTER
Wi

)R



Page lL.eft Blank



Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1 OGO 1
11 Environmental N 2
CHAPTER 2 Summary of Project DCHHION rrsrersosrsrssessossss et o 2
24 Proposed RGO GOBl e 2
2.2 Project B CHiON SUTMAY .. 2
S 3
CHAPTER 3 Lt O COMMEBTS ot 6
CHAPTER 4 Cormments aNd RESPONSES e s 0 7
CHAPTER 5 Changes to Draft OGUIMIEN v s 8
Tables
Table 1. Proposed gt MERSUIES i 3
Table 2. List of Comment Letters REOONEM e 7
Table 3. Comments T ROSPONSES e 7
Appendices

Appendix A. Comment Letters Received
Appendix B. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
Appendix C. Draft IS/EA

April 4,2025 | i



FR

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

This Final Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (Final IS/MND) was prepared by San
Benito County Water District (SBCWD) as the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Lead
Agency for its Accelerated Drought Response Project (proposed Project), in accordance with CEQA
regulatory requirements. A summarized proposed Project description is provided in Chapter 2. The
Final IS/MND includes the Draft Initial Study/Environmental Analysis (IS/EA) for the proposed
Project, released for public review on February 26,2025, and changes to the Draft IS/EA text,
findings, and mitigation measures resulting from agency and public comments received. The Draft
IS/EA is included as Appendix C of this Final IS/MND.

The Draft IS/EA was originally prepared as a joint CEQA/NEPA document with the United States
Bureau of Reclamation (USBR). Since publication of the Draft IS/EA, USBR opted to separate the
CEQA and NEPA processes. Therefore, this document constitutes the Final IS/MND under CEQA
while the NEPA document for the proposed Project will be published as a Supplemental EA at a
future date.

The February 2025 Draft IS/EA included the féllowing chapters:
o Chapter 1: Introduction
e Chapter 2: Proposed Project and Proposed Action
¢ Chapter 3: Environmental Checklist
¢ Chapter 4. Consultation and Coordination
¢ Chapter 5: References
* Appendices
o Appendix A. Biological Resources
o Appendix B. Cultural Resources
o Appendix C. Environmental Setting
o Appendix D. Regulatory Setting
The following chapters of the Draft IS/EA may be disregarded as they pertain only to NEPA:
s Chapter 2.1: Proposed Action
s Chapter 2.2: No Action Alternative
¢ Chapter 3.24: Environmental Justice
o Chapter 3.25: Indian Trust Assets
This April 2025 Final IS/MND includes the following chapters:
¢ Chapter 1: Introduction
¢ Chapter 2: Summary of Project Description

¢ Chapter 3: List of Commenters

April 4, 2025 | 1



FR

e Chapter 4: Comments and Responses

s Chapter 5 Changes to Draft Document

s Appendices
o Appendix A. Comment Letters Received
o Appendix B. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program
o Appendix C. Draft IS/EA

1.1 Environmental Review Process

CEQA requires Lead Agencies to consult with public agencies with jurisdiction over a proposed
Project and to provide other agencies and the public with the opportunity to comment on the Draft
IS/EA. The Draft IS/EA for the proposed Project was made available for public review from February
26, 2025, through March 28, 2025. Local and State Responsible and Trustee agencies and the
public were advised of the availability of the Draft IS/EA through public notice. The Draft IS/EA
identified and described the potentially significant impacts on the environment that would be
associated with the proposed Project. For the identified potentially significant impacts, the Draft
IS/EA incorporated mitigation measures that are anticipated to avoid or minimize impacts to a level
that would be less than significant.

This Final IS/MND responds to comments received on the Draft IS/EA and clarifies any errors,
omissions, or misinterpretations of discussions of findings in the Draft IS/EA. Where changes were
made to the Draft IS/EA in response to comments received, the revised text is shown in Chapter 4.

CHAPTER 2. SUMMARY OF PROJECT
DESCRIPTION

2.1 Proposed Project Goal

Implementing the Accelerated Drought Response Project would enable the full utilization of
SBCWD's water supplies, address water deficits during dry years, provide desired water quality,
support sustainable groundwater basins, improve resilience to climate change impacts, and promote
water affordability.

2.2  Project Description Summary

The San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) proposes to expand the West Hills Water Treatment
Plant (WHWTP) near the City of Hollister, construct five Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) wells,
and install new pipelines for recharge water transmission from the City of Hollister to the proposed
ASR wells and recovery water from ASR wells to the City’s distribution system. The proposed
Project would have the capacity to inject, store, and recover up to 2,700 acre-feet per year (AFY) of
water. The WHWTP has a current design capacity of 4.5 MGD with an annual average flow of 2.25
MGD. The proposed Project would expand WHWTP capacity from 4.5 million gallons per day (MGD)
to 6.75 MGD. The WHWTP expansion would be based on retaining the same processes and system
design as currently utilized. The WHWTP would be expanded within its existing developed footprint,
while the ASR wells would be newly installed on private lands in an agricultural area northeast of the

April 4, 2025 | 2



R

City of Hollister. Transmission pipelines and connections to distribution pipelines will be established

along public rights-of-way.

2.3  Mitigation Measures

The Draft IS/EA identified impacts in several resource areas that were potentially significant. For
each of these potentially significant impacts, mitigation measures were described that would avoid or

reduce these impacts to a

level that would be less than significant. Table 1 lists these mitigation

measures and the environmental impacts they would address. Appendix B, Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program (MMRP) designates agency responsibility and implementation timing and
responsible parties for individual actions included in the MMRP measures.

Table 1. Proposed Mitigation Measures

Mitigation Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

MM AG-1:
Compensation for
affected Farmland

All designated Important Farmland, as defined by the California
Department of Conservation's Farmland Mapping and Monitoring
Program, in areas currently, or with the potential for future use as,
agricultural operations that are impacted by Project construction will be
restored to their preconstruction conditions. This would include, but not
necessarily be limited to, replacement of crops, recontouring of soils,
and/or replacement of infrastructure such as irrigation works. In lieu of
SBCWD performing required restoration of affected areas, the District
may instead compensate property owners for the restoration,
replacement, or re-establishment of agricultural operations within the
temporary construction easement areas. Agreements with applicable
landowners shall be in place prior to the start of construction.

MM BIO-1a: California
Tiger Salamander
Pre-Construction
Survey

Prior to the commencement of ground disturbing activities, a qualified
biologist will survey the work area for suitable CTS burrows. Where
feasible, a 50-foot no disturbance buffer will be placed around suitable
CTS upland burrows. If burrows cannot be avoided and will be impacted
by construction, they must first be hand excavated under the supervision
of a qualified wildlife biologist. If CTS are found in the burrows, the
biologist will relocate them to the nearest burrow outside of the
construction area.

MM BIO-1b: Exclusion
Fencing

e Prior to the commencement of ground disturbance, temporary
exclusion fencing should be installed between the active work area
and suitable habitat. The exclusion fencing must remain in place for
the duration of activities in that footprint. The exclusion fence will be
regularly maintained to ensure effectiveness. The exclusion fence
will have the following properties:

o Atleast 3 feet in height.

o The top few inches of the exclusion fencing must be folded
over and away from the construction area.

o Refuge opportunities in the form of fallen logs, leaf litter, or
artificial cover boards should be placed along or near the
outside of the exclusion fence.

April4,2025 | 3




FR

Mitigation Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

¢ Work should only occur between the hours 30 minutes after sunrise
and 30 minutes before sunset. No nighttime work.

» |[f there are any open trenches left at the end of the workday, a
temporary cover board should be placed on {op so no gaps occur
between the cover and the ground. Any trenches or holes that must
be left open shall be fitted with an escape ramp for trapped
individuals.

MM BIO-1¢: Dry
Season Work

Any ground disturbing work within or immediately adjacent to CRLF or
CTS potential breeding or migration habitat (ex: within 562 meters [1,484
feet] of known or potential habitat) shall be confined to the dry season
from June 15 to October 31 to the maximum extent feasible.

MM BIO-1d: CTS

No work shall occur if there is a 70% or greater chance of rainfall

Precipitation Work predicted by the National Weather Service within 72 hours of project

Limits activity. If work must continue with rain in the forecast, a qualified biologist
will survey the Action Area before construction each day rain is forecast. If
rain exceeds 0.25 inch during a 24-hour period, work will cease until no
further rain is forecast. The qualified biologist will survey the work area
following the precipitation event and remove any CTS that may have
entered the work area.

MM BIO-1e: To prevent the accidental entrapment of listed species during

Accidental construction, all excavated holes or trenches deeper than 6 inches shall

Entrapment be covered at the end of each workday with plywood or similar materials.

Prevention Foundation trenches or larger excavations that cannot easily be covered
shall be ramped at the end of the workday to allow trapped animals an
escape method. Prior to the filling of such holes, these areas shall be
thoroughly inspected for listed species by a qualified biologist. In the
event of a trapped animal, construction shall cease until the individual has
been relocated to an appropriate location.

MM BIO-1f:  If clearing and/or construction activities would occur during the

Preconstruction nesting season (March 1 to August 31), then preconstruction

Nesting Bird Surveys

surveys to identify active migratory bird and/or raptor nests shall be

conducted by a qualified biologist no more than 7 days prior to

construction initiation. Focused surveys shall be performed by a

qualified biologist for the purpose of determining the presence or

absence of active nest sites within the following distances form the

disturbance footprint:

o Passerines: Disturbance footprint only, or at the biologist's
discretion

o  Raptors: 500 feet, or within sight of the disturbance footprint,
whichever is smaller

o Special-status Raptors: ¥z mile, or within sight of the
disturbance footprint, whichever is smalier.

+ |f alapse in project activities of 7 days or greater occurs for any
reason during the nesting season, a qualified biologist shall perform
another survey for nesting birds and raptors prior to resuming

April 4, 2025 | 4




FR

Mitigation Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

project activities. If feasible, tree and vegetation clearing will be
conducted outside the nesting season.

+ [f active nest sites are identified within the survey distances defined
in the Nesting Bird and Raptor Surveys measure, a no-disturbance
buffer shall be established for all active nest sites prior to
commencement of any project-related activities to avoid
disturbances to nesting activities. A no-disturbance buffer
constitutes a zone in which project-related activities such as
vegetation removal, earth moving, and construction cannot occur.
The size of no-disturbance buffers would be determined by a
qualified biologist based on the species, activities in the vicinity of
the nest, and topographic and other visua!l barriers.

« A qualified biologist shall monitor all active nests during construction
activities until the nest(s) is deemed inactive. The amount and
duration of monitoring would be determined by the qualified biologist
and would depend on the same factors mentioned above when
determining the size of the no disturbance buffer. If active special-
status raptor nests are detected and an appropriately sized no-
disturbance buffer (per current national or CDFW guidelines) is not
feasible, the biologist may monitor the nest full time depending on
the nest location, or only when noise are above background levels
tolerated by raptors. Monitoring shall occur until the nestlings have
fledged, or the nest is deemed inactive. If disturbance resuiting from
project activities is observed, construction may be delayed untit the
nest is no longer active, as determined by a qualified biologist, or
the appropriate agency can be consulted.

MM BIO-1g:
Preconstruction
Burrowing Owl
Surveys

o No more than 30 days prior to ground disturbance, a qualified
biologist will survey the proposed construction area for occupied
burrowing ow! burrows. If owls are detected and work is scheduled
to occur within nesting season (February 1 through August 31),
burrows will be avoided. No-work buffers of at least 200 meters will
be placed around occupied burrows during the breeding season,
and 100 meters during the non-breeding season.

o [If work must occur where burrows are occupied, owls may be
passively relocated. This may only occur outside of the breeding
season. Breeding owls must not be disturbed. Owls would be
excluded from burrows in the immediate impact zone within a 160-
foot buffer zone by installing one-way doors in burrow entrances.
These doors will be in place at least 48 hours prior to excavation to
ensure the owls have departed.

o  The work area will then be monitored daily to ensure that the
owls have departed.

MM BIO-1h:
Minimization of Light

Temporary lighting within the Action area should be directed away from
suitable roosting habitat regardless of documented species presence in or
within 100 feet of the project area.

April 4, 2025 | 5




FR

Mitigation Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

MM BIO-1i: NWPT
Nest Avoidance

if work is performed between May-July during northwestern pond turtle
nesting season, surveys for nesting females will be required no more than
48 hours prior to ground disturbance activities. A qualified biologist shall
survey the work site and 400 m up and downstream for signs of nesting
and occupation. If nests are encountered, an exclusion buffer will be
delineated around the nest area where no work shall occur until the end of
nesting season. If work must occur within the nesting area, contact
USFWS for relocation authority and procedures.

MM TERBIO-2:
Sensitive Community
Fencing

If sensitive communities occur within 100 feet of proposed ground-
disturbing activities, including construction access routes and temporary
work areas, with no pre-existing barrier between them and the proposed
ground disturbance, protective fencing, such as silt fencing, will be
installed between habitats that are to be avoided and the construction
limits to prevent accidental disturbance and to protect water quality during
construction.

MM CUL-1:
inadvertent Discovery
Protocol

if unrecorded cultural resources are encountered during Project-related
ground-disturbing activities, a qualified cultural resources specialist shall
be contacted to assess the potential significance of the find. If an
inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of shell,
animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, structure/building remains) is made
during Project-related construction activities, ground disturbances in the
area of the find will be halted, and a qualified professional archaeologist
will be notified regarding the discovery. The archaeologist will determine
whether the resource is potentially significant per the CRHR and develop
appropriate mitigation, such as avoidance or data recovery. Construction
work can continue on other parts of the project while archaeological
mitigation takes place.

MM GEO-1:
Inadvertent Discovery
Protocol

if any paleontological resources are encountered during construction
activities, all construction work within 50 feet of the encounter shall be
halted until a qualified paleontologist can examine the find. If the find is
determined to be significant, then the paleontologist shall recommend
measures that may include, but are not limited to, preservation in place or
excavation and curation. Work shall not resume around the find until the
recommendations of the paleontologist are implemented.

MM NOI-1:
Construction Noise
Control Plan (CNCP)

In accordance with Policy 8-12 of the Heaith and Safety Element of the
San Benito County General Plan, the Project shall prepare a Construction
Noise Control Plan to be reviewed and approved by San Benito County
prior to final Project approval. The Project shall implement the approved
Construction Noise Control Plan.

CHAPTER 3. LIST OF COMMENTERS

This chapter lists agencies, organizations, and individuals who submitted written and/or verbal
comments on the Draft IS/EA. Table 2 shows the comment letters received during the public
comment period. A total of one comment letter was received.

April 4, 2025 | 6




Table 2. List of Comment Letters Received

R

Commenter

Date Received

California Department of Transportation

March 11, 2025

State Water Resources Control Board

April 3, 2025

CHAPTER 4. COMMENTS AND RESPONSES

Table 3 shows the comments contained within individual comment letters received during the public
comment period, responses to those comments, and if those specific comments resulted in revisions
to the Draft IS/EA.

Table 3. Comments and Responses

Letter

Comment

Comment Text

Response

Revision
to Draft
IS/EA

Please be aware that there is an existing Caltrans
drainage system (see Attachments 1 and 2) at the
intersection of State Route 25 and San Felipe Road
where an 18-inch transmission pipeline is
proposed. Please ensure that the water
transmission pipeline does not conflict with Caltrans
drainage facilities. Drainage plans and profiles will
need to be submitted, when available, for approval
in the subsequent permit process.

N/A

N/A

Please be aware that any future work that is
completed in, on, under, over, or affecting the State
highway right-of-way is subject to a Caltrans
encroachment permit and must be done to our
engineering and environmental standards and at no
cost to the State. The conditions of approval and
the requirements for the encroachment permit are

“issued at the sole discretion of the Permits Office,

and nothing in this letter shall be implied as limiting
those future conditions and requirements. For more
information regarding the encroachment permit
process, please visit our Encroachment Permit
Website at: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/traffic-
operations/ep.

N/A

N/A

The IS/MND includes conflicting information. On
PDF page 70, the IS/MND indicates no potable
water supplies would be delivered to customers as
part of the proposed Project, contrary to PDF page

See
Response
2-1

See
Chapter
5

April 4, 2025 | 7



FR

Revision
Letter | Comment Comment Text Response | to Draft
ISIEA
9 which states SBCWD proposes to instali new
pipelines to deliver recovery water from Aquifer
Storage and Recovery wells to the City of Hollister's
distribution system. Please clarify the discrepancies
and explain if the water will be used {o supplement
the existing City of Hollister water needs (PDF
pages 7 4 and 77).
The GENNMM-1 needs to be defined or the
mitigation measure should be removed, as needed
(PDF page 39). If the mitigation measure is from a See See
2 2 CEQA document this IS/MND is tiering from, please | Response | Chapter
: source the CEQA document. Please then provide a 2-2 5
link where the original CEQA document is publicly
available (Cal. Code Regs., tit.14., § 15150 [b]).
SBCWD and the City of Hollister will need to apply
for a water supply permit amendment for a new
drinking water source (Groundwater). Please See See
2 3 include the State Water Resources Control Board, Response | Chapter
Division of Drinking Water in Table 2-4 (PDF page 2-3 5
23) and under 10. Other Public Agencies Whose
Approval is Required (PDF page 24 ).

Response 2-1:

¢ Thank you for your comment. As shown in Chapter 5 of this Final IS/MND, the statement on
PDF page 70 of the Draft IS/EA has been removed.

Response 2-2:

¢ Thank you for your comment. As shown in Chapter 5 of this Final IS/MND, the statement
regarding “GENMM-1" on page PDF page 39 of the Draft IS/EA has been removed.

Response 2-3:

e Thank you for your comment. As shown in Chapter 5 of this Final IS/MND, the requested
revision has been made to the Draft IS/EA.

CHAPTER 5. CHANGES TO DRAFT
DOCUMENT

The following changes are hereby made to the Draft IS/EA:

April 4,2025 | 8



FR

e Chapter 2.6 Right-of-Way Issues and Permits Required:
o The following row is hereby added to Table 2-4:

State: State Water Resources Control Board Water Supply Permit Amendment

e Chapter 3 Environmental Checklist:

o Item “10. Other public agencies whose approval is required” of the Draft IS/EA is
hereby amended to include the State Water Resources Control Board.

Chapter 3.7 Biological Resources:

o Appendix G checklist discussion (b) states: “GENMM-1 would be implemented to
ensure that the area of potential impacts on the Santa Ana Creek corridor
environment is as small as possible during construction.” That statement is hereby
removed from the Draft IS/EA. The significance determination is unchanged.

Chapter 3.10 Geology and Soils:

o Appendix G checklist table item (e) was marked “Less Than Significant Impact” and
is hereby changed to “No Impact”

Chapter 3.13 Hydrology and Water Quality

o Appendix G checklist table item (d) was marked “Less Than Significant Impact” and
is hereby changed to “No Impact”

Chapter 3.22 Utilities

o Appendix G checklist discussion (b) states: “No potable water supplies would be
delivered to customers as part of the proposed Project”. That statement is hereby
removed from the Draft IS/EA. The significance determination is unchanged.

April4,2025 | 9



Appendix A

Comment Letters Received




Page Left Blank



CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR

California Department of Transportation

CALTRANS DISTRICT 5

50 HIGUERA STREET | SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401-5415
(805) 549-3101 | FAX (805) 549-3329 TTY 711
www.dof.ca.gov

March 11, 2025 SCH #2025021019
SBT/25/R52.229

Dana Jacobson, General Manager
San Benito County Water District

30 Mansfield Road

Hollister, CA 95023

Re: Accelerated Drought Response Project- Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND)
Dear Dana Jacobson:

The Cadlifornia Department of Transportation (Caltrans) appreciates the opportunity to
review the MND for the Accelerated Drought Response Project, which proposes to
expand the West Hills Water Treatment Plant (WHWTP) near the City of Hollister,
construct five Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) wells, and install new pipelines for
recharge water tfransmission from the City of Hollister to the proposed ASR wells and
recovery water from ASR wells to the City's distribution system. Caltrans supports local
development that is consistent with State planning priorities intended to promofe
equity, strengthen the economy, protect the environment, and promote public health
and safety. We accomplish this by working with local jurisdictions to achieve a shared
vision of how the transportation system should and can accommodate interregional
and local travel and development. Calfrans offers the following comments in response
to the MND:

1. Please be aware that there is an existing Caltrans drainage system (see
Attachments 1 and 2) atf the intersection of Route 25 and San Felipe Road where a
18" transmission pipeline is proposed. Please ensure that the water transmission
pipeline does not conflict with Caltrans drainage facilities. Drainage plans and
profiles will need to be submitted, when available, for approval in the subsequent
permit process.

2. Please be aware that any future work that is completed in, on, under, over, or
aoffecting the State highway right-of-way is subject to a Caltrans encroachment
permit and must be done to our engineering and environmental standards and at
no cost to the State. The conditions of approval and the requirements for the
encroachment permit are issued at the sole discretion of the Permits Office, and
nothing in this letter shall be implied as limiting those future conditions and

requirements. For more information regarding the encroachment permit process,

“Provide a safe and reliable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

1-1



Dana Jacobson, General Manager

March 11, 2025
Page 2
please visit our Encroachment Permit Website at: 1-2 (cont.)

https://dot.ca.qgov/programs/iraffic-operations/ep

Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the proposed project. If you
have any questions or need further clarification on the items discussed above, please
contact me at (805) 835-6543 or email Jacob.m.Hernandez@dot.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

94.096 ﬂmma,/ag

Jacob Hernandez
Transportation Planner
District 5 Local Development Review Coordinator

“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”



/~ dO¥ W JGp

m_o;m uibeg -
00078G+6€1 «GZ AMH. "LY W 000G

S|IDMS JDINBUD|J] SSDU9




doy ww ogk

W YA2:)) ._n_ :







S0
[-@?&L‘g )\ Gavin Newsom
\2 %W/ SOVERNOR

CALIFORNIA \" Yana GARciA
‘ . SECRETARY FOR

Water Boards :lx"«U",'.‘I‘.‘L!‘.’.l!'TJL PROTECTION

State Water Resources Control Board
April 3, 2024

Dana Jacobson

San Benito County Water District
30 Manfield Road

Hollister, CA 95023

SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT (SBCWD), INITIAL STUDY/MITIGATED
NEGATIVE DECLARATION (IS/MND) FOR THE ACCELERATED DROUGHT
RESPONSE PROJECT (PROJECT); STATE CLEARINGHOUSE #2025021019

Dear Dana:

Thank you for the opportunity to review the IS/MND for the proposed Project. The State
Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (State Water Board, DDW)
is responsible for issuing water supply permits pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act.
This Project is within the jurisdiction of the State Water Board, DDW Monterey District.
DDW Monterey District issues domestic water supply permit amendments to public
water systems pursuant to Waterworks Standards (Title 22 California Code of
Regulations [Cal Code Regs.] chapter 16 et. seq.). A public water system requires a
water supply permit amendment when changes are made to a domestic water supply
source, storage, or treatment and for the operation of new water system components-
as specified in the Cal. Code Regs. § 64556.

The State Water Board, DDW, as a responsible agency under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), has the following comments on the SBCWD's
(IS/MND):

e The IS/MND includes conflicting information. On PDF page 70, the IS/MND
indicates no potable water supplies would be delivered to customers as part of
the proposed Project, contrary to PDF page 9 which states SBCWD proposes to
install new pipelines to deliver recovery water from Aquifer Storage and
Recovery wells to the City of Hollister’s distribution system. Please clarify the
discrepancies and explain if the water will be used to supplement the existing
City of Hollister water needs (PDF pages 74 and 77).

e The GENNMM-1 needs to be defined or the mitigation measure should be
removed, as needed (PDF page 39). If the mitigation measure is from a CEQA
document this IS/MND is tiering from, please source the CEQA document.
Please then provide a link where the original CEQA document is publicly
available (Cal. Code Regs., tit.14., § 15150 [b]).

E. Joaauin EsquiveL, cHAIR | ERic OPPENHEIMER, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 95814 | Mailing Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-0100 | www.waterboards.ca.gov

2-1

2-2



Dana Jacobson -2- April 3, 2025

e SBCWD and the City of Hollister will need to apply for a water supply permit
amendment for a new drinking water source (Groundwater). Please include the
State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water in Table 2-4
(PDF page 23) and under 10. Other Public Agencies Whose Approval is
Required (PDF page 24).

Once the IS/MND is adopted, please forward the following items in support of SBCWD's
and the City of Hollister's permit application to the State Water Board, DDW Monterey
District Office at DWPDISTO05@waterboards.ca.gov:
e The IS/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan;
e All comment letters received and the lead agency responses as appropriate;
¢ The Resolution or Board Minutes adopting the IS/MND and MMRP and
approving the Project; and
¢ The date stamped Notice of Determination filed at the San Benito County Clerk’s
Office and the State Clearinghouse.

Please contact Lori Schmitz of the State Water Board at (916) 449-5285 or
Lori.Schmitz@waterboards.ca.gov, for questions regarding this comment letter.

Sincerely,
Digitailly signed by Lori
Lorl SChmitZ 50212%25.04.03 16:34:.03
-07'00'
Lori Schmitz
Environmental Scientist
Division of Financial Assistance
Special Project Review Unit
1001 | Street, 16" floor
Sacramento, CA 95814

Cc:
State Clearinghouse

Jonathan Weininger
District Engineer
Monterey District

Nicholas Garibaldi
Water Resources Control Engineer
Monterey District

William Via
Public Works Director
City of Hollister



Dana Jacobson -3- April 3, 2025

Michael Grzan
Environmental Program Manager
City of Hollister



Page Left Blank



FR

Appendix B

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program




Page Left Blank



‘paya|dwioo Ajjnssa00ns usaq sey uopoe sy} jey) bunesisuowsp o) pue ainseaw yoes Joj pepiaoid suonesyoads ay) 0}
Buipioooe sainsesul uoiebijiw ay) Jusweajdwi 0} Alessadau suonoe jje Bupje) Joj Ajjigisuodsal Azewiid gMOGS 94l SeAIB dHININ SIUL

saniigisuodsay pue so10y

"'SOOUBISWNIIID JO suonipuod Buibueyo o) asuodsau
Ul gMDgs Ag paiipow ag Aew JHININ @4l “108loid pasodoud ayj jo uogeiuswsa|dwi Jnoybnoly) jeuuew A1ojoejsies e ul pauiejuiew
pue s|npayos o} Buipioooe pelsjdwod pue psajuswsejdul ale sainseaw uoiebiiw jje Jey) ainsua o} pasedaid usaq sey JHININ SIUL

asod.ind

‘sjaAa] Jueoyiubis uey) ssaj 0} sjoedwl 8s0Y) JO || 9onpal 0}
sanseaw uonebyiw pue sypoedu Juesyiubis Ajjenusiod payiuepl ANIW/SI 2Uy esnedaqjoafoid pasodolid ayj 1o) paiinbai st MW UY

L JUSWIUOJIAUS 8} UO S1o8ye jueoiiubls pioAe 1o ajebiiw o} Japio uj jeaosdde josfoid
JO uonIpuod B apew 1o pajdope sey J yoiym josfoid ayy o3 sebueyo o) weiboisd Buuojuow 1o buppodal e ydope o0}, setousbe oygnd
aJinbai sauleping YOI 81vIS 98U} JO 160G} PUB (P)L60GL SUOHOSS pue 8p0oY S82IN0SaY dijqnd BIUJOJI[ED S} JO 97180 Z UOHOSS

“(aNw/st
JUSLISSOSSY [RIUSWIUOHIAUZ/APNIS [elliu] 84l Ul Ylloj 18s se (Josloid) 108foid asuodsay Jubnoiq paieta|addy ayy 10} (AMOES) 19119sIa
1sjepn Ajuno) ojuag ueg Jo palinbal sainsesaw uonebniw jo Buuoyuow ay) o) sapiaoid }f “sauldBpIng YOI 81elS auyl pue (vo30)
10V Ajljenp [eluswUolIAUg BlUlojeD) 8Y) 0} Juensind pasedaid usaq sey (dHINN) weiboud Bunioday pue Buuojiuop uonebimiy siy L

uoIoNPO.U|

6101205202 "ON @snoybuues|) sjeig
uejd Buioday pue Buuojuop uonebin

j09foad asuodsay Jybnouq poajeisjasdy
Joulsig 19)epM AJuno) ojluag ueg



-jsonbai spJodal aiiqnd
cmﬁ:?mcoa: o.._n:ao&oa a|qejiene apew 8d [im pue peulejuiew 8q jiim sBuipuly 9Ul puipoddns uolEeuawNI0p pejejal pue sBuipuld
cosmpcmE:ooD Suipoddns



UOHONIISUOD

puey ag jsii} 1snw Asy) ‘uoiioniisuod Agq pajoedul
aq || PUB PAPIOAR 8Q JOUUBD SMOLNG }| "Smoling pueidn

Aening

0} Joud Z ‘sAenins (sMojoesuoo S10 sjqelns punole padeld aq jjim Jayng adoueqinisip UOIIONIISU0D)
’ uoponuysuosaid LOI}ON}SU0D OU JOOJ-(G B ‘2|qISes) aIdyp\ "SMOLNG S0 djgelns loj  -ald Jspueweles
uolonIIsSuUOD  s1onpuod 1sibojoiq ‘1s1Bbojoig eale iom sy} Asains (m isiBojoiq paiijenb e ‘safjialjoe 10611 enoped
0} loud "L paiiiend | peylienb ‘MmOgs amogs Buiqunysip punoib jo JuBWIBOUBWIWOD BY} 0} Jold ‘el-0ld NN

"UOI3ONJISUOD JO Hels ay) 0} Joud soeid

ul aq jjeus sleumopue] sjgedijdde yum sjuswsaliby ‘sease

uswiases uolonsuoo Aelodwsay syl uyym suopiesado

[ean)jnoube Jo ewiysijqe)sae-al Jo ‘Juswade|dal

‘uoijeloysal 8y} Jo) sieumo Auadoid slesuadiuod pesisul

Aeuws 10L1SI(] 8Y) ‘seale pajoaye Jo uojjelo}sal palinbai

Buiuwopad gAADES jO nal Ul “Sxiom uofebill se yons

anonisesul Jo Jusweoejdal Jo/pue ‘sjios jo Buunojuooal

‘sdoto Jo Juswaoejdal ‘0] paliwl} 8q AjUESS8o9U Jou INg

‘@pN{ouUl PINOM SIY| “SUOIIPUOD UOKONIISU0oaid Jisy) 0}

palolsal aq jjIMm uonongsuod J0aloi4 Aq pajoedull aie jey)
suojjesado jesnynoube ‘se asn ainjnj Joj [eusjod sULYIM  puejuie pajoaye
uonesuadwod 1o ‘Auaung sease ul ‘weibosyg Buuonuop pue Buiddepy 10} Uonesuadwon

UOIJONIISuU0D ajeudoidde puejuLE S,UOIJBAIDSUOD JO Juswipeda(] eluioyie)d )
O} Jold  seyjuspl MO9S amogs amogs  8u Aq pauyep se ‘puejwie juepodw| pajeubisap |y OV NN
uonoy ainseap
QUOo)SaIN Buguodoy Aued Kouaby uonduose( ainsesy uonebIn uonebnt

Jouelq owi} pue Bupojiuopy fupuswiejdw] juswasiouly REDBIN

"INO20 pinom Bupojuow Uaym pue sainsesw
uonebiiw Bunuswajdun Joj Buill 8y} 0} Siajal ,‘SUO)SalIN /WL 4 Wl ] , PAJIIIUS ‘UWN|OD [BUY AY | 8|qisuodsal a( |jim Josfoid pasinal
8y} uo Bupjiom seipied Jeyjo Jo/pue ‘(S)1010euoO ‘gMOES UoIum Joj sjusuodiuod Joulisip ojul ainsesw uonebijiw ayj umop syeaiq
uwiNjoo yyi oy ‘ainsesw uonebiyiw ayy ypm souelduwos ainsus o) Buuojuow Jo/pue uopebiiw ay) Jonpuod (M jey) (sei)Alied sy o}
siajal ‘Aued Bunuswaidw], PajiiIuUe ‘ULIN|OD yunoy oy pajuswajdus st ainseaw uonebpiw ay) jey Buunsua 1oy sjqisuodsal Aouabe
ay) 0} sieyal  Aousby Juawiadiojul, PajiiIuS ‘Uwn|od piiy} 8y "ainsesw uoiebijiw ayy A4juapl SUWINJOD PpUodss pue Isiiy syl "aNIN/SI
ay) ui eouanbas ay} smojjo} (Aiobares aainosal Aq) psjuasald aJe sainseaw uogebiiw yoiym ui ssplo ay | “Buuojuow pue uonebyw
10} awely) awi 8y} pue ‘saijigisuodsal ‘sainseaw uonebniw palinbal ay) seyiuapi pue jewlo) xijew e ul paziuebio si gHNIN @U L

X118 Sullo)lUO|y uonesil



(ejqeondde
§1) seiApoe
UOI}OTUISuU0d

Buung '€

UOI}ONISU0D
0} Joud T

LUOI}ONIISU0D
oy Joud 'L

(siqeondde
J) seniAnoe
UoIONIISUOD

Buun@g ‘¢

suoneoioads
10BJUOD

0} wensind
UoIONIISU0d

o Aued
1siBojoiq paijiend
pue JO}OBIUOD
UoNONIISUCD '€

-suoneoyioeds
UOI}OrU}suUo?
oul sainpaooid
©OUBPIOAE
sojesodiodul

amosgs ¢

‘poousdy

aq 0} seale
saynuep! 1sibololq
paend ‘i

suoneoijioeds
10BIU0D

01 yensind
uoI}oNIISU0d

o Aued
1sibojoig paiend
puE JOJOBIU0D
UOONIISUOD '

-guoneoyioads
UoI}ONISUod
oM seinpaocold
9OUBPIOAE
sojeiodiodul

amogs ¢

(s)41010B1UO0D
UOI}ONISU0D
“Jsibojolq

payienb ‘aMO8S

amogs

-9oUd} UoISN|oxd duU} 10
apisino 8y} Jesu 10 Buoje padeld
aq pjnoys spieoq 1BA0D [B1oie
30 Jsnil jes| ‘sboj uajjey 10

uuo) ey} ul wm:_.c:toaao abnjey
-eoJe UOI}ONJi}suod

oy} wolj Aeme pue JAA0

peplo} 8qisnul Buioua) UOISN|OXS
ay) JO Saydul Ma} doy aylL

-ybrey ui 199} € el v ©

-saipedoid

BuIMO|I0} BU} 9ABY [IIM 9oUd) UOISN|OXd
al|| ‘SSOUBAIIRYD ainsuo 0} pautejuieul Apejnbal

aq [lIM 90UB} UOISNIOXS ayl 7}
Ul SaIjIAOE JO uoieInd ay) Joj 89¢|
‘Jengey aiqeuns

ysnw Buidus} UOISNIOX® syl

uudioo} 18U}
d ul uewsl

pue eoie YIOM SAIJE ay) usamieq pajjeisul aq

pinoys Buidus) UOISNOXa Kielodwa) ‘eoueqinisip
punoib jo JUSWIAoUBWIWOD ayjoyioud ©

puiouad uoisn{ox3
qL-018 NN

-gaJe UOI}OoNJIIsuod

Y} JO OPISINC MoANg JsoJeau au} o) wall 5180018 |IIM

\sibojoiq 8y} ‘smound auy) Ui punoj ol
ajpIM payijenb € J0 uoisiaedns 8y

"jsibojoid

1 Jopun Umum>moxm

suo}saitiN

jouseld swil

uonov
puoday
pue BunojiuoiN

fyed

fupuaweidwii

fouaby

juswadioul

uonduosed

nseoy uonebnIN

ainseaiN
uonebRIN




sejeiodiodul

suom ‘pouad Inoy-pz e Bulnp Youl GZ'Q SPeaoxe el j|

amogs ¢ ISEO840} SI UlRs ABp YOBS UORONIISUOD 810)9Q BalY UOHOY
UoIoNIISU0D -shoMnS (5)1070BUOO ay} Asauns m 1siBojoiq paljiienb e ‘i1seosalo) oyl ul ulel
o} Joud ‘g eole Lonoe LOONIISU0D UM SNUIILIOD JSNW YIom }| “AjAnoe 1o9foid jo sinoy z2 SHWIT
LONONIISUOD  S}ONpUO9 }s1BojoIq “4siBojoiq UluIM 8IIAISS memw>> leuoeN sy} Aq pajoipaud jjejute MIOAA Uoiendioaid
0} Joud 'L payIenD | peylfenb ‘GMOES amogg ¥ UEUD9188ID10 %0L B SI 8B JLANOIONIBUS HOMON g\ 5 :pj-018 W
suoiieoljoads
}oB1U0D
0] ensind
UOI}ONIISU0D
no Aued
}siBojoiq paijiienb
pue I0JoBIu0D
UoRONIISU0D "¢
‘suoijeoyioads
UOI}ONIISU0D
(eiqeoyidde ojul seinpaooid
3) sanianoe aouepioe
uononIsuoo sejelodioout
buung "¢ amosgs
UONOMISUOD "9j(ISEa} JUSIXS WNWIXeW 8y} 0} 1§ J8qojoQ 0} G} aunf
01 Joud 'z ‘paplioAe (s)lo1oeiu0 way uosess AIp ayj o} pauyuoco aq |jeys (jeyqey jenjusiod
: 8q 01 sease UOIIoNIISUOD 10 umouy Jo [198} vgy‘L] sielow Zag ulypm 1xa) jeligey
uoionIIsuod  sayiuapl 1sibojoiq ‘1s16ojoiq uoneibiw Jo Buipealq fenusiod g7 10 41D 0} Jusoelpe MIOM UOSesg
O} Joud "L payliend "L peyilenb ‘amo4s amods Ajejeipawiul Jo uiyym siom Buiqunisip punoib Auy  Aig :o4-0ld WA
‘sjenpiAipul paddel) Joy dwel
adeoss ue yum payll aq jjeys uado }s| aq i1snwi
1BU] S8joy Jo sayoual) Auy "punoib ayj pue JoA0d
8y} usamiaq tno2o sdeb ou os doy uo psaoeld
ag pjnoys p1eoq 18A02 Aeiodwa) e ‘Aepiiom ay)
1o pua ayj e Yo} seyousi} uado Aue ale aidy} )| e
“yiom awiybiu oy esuns
2J0J8q S8lNuIW (g PUB BsSUUNS J8}je sanujw
0§ SINOY 8y] Usamlaq JND00 AJUO PINOYS SIOAN o
uopoy
b ainses|y
auo)saliiN Bupsoday fped Kouaby uonduosaq einsesy uonebnin uonebni
jawielq awi] pue BuLiojiLon Bunguawdjdw] juawWIBdIONUT REDRIN




0} sAanins uonoaniisuodaid uayl ‘(1€ Isnbny

UOIJONIISUOD  S1oNnpuos 3sibojoiq “1s16ojoiq 01 | yotey) uoseass Bugsau ayj Buunp 1nosoo UOIoNIISU023Id
Ol loud '} paylfend "L payllenb ‘amogs AMOLS  PINOM SBIHIAIIOR UOHONIISUOD Jo/pue Bules|o §| e 41-019 NN
suoneoyjioads
JoBIU0D
03 juensind
UoI31ONJISU0D
1o Aued
1s1bojoiq payijenb
pue 10joe1U0D
UuoHONIISUOD ‘¢ "UOI}E00]
‘suonjeoyioads sjeudoidde ue 0} pejedojal Usag sey jenpiAipul sy}
UOI}ONI}SUOD jljun 9sE9d ||eYS UOIJONIISUOD ‘[ewiue paddel) e Jo JusAs
(eigeoyidde o so. inpasoid ay} u] "1s1Bojoiq paljiienb e Aqg saeds pajsi| 10} pejoadsul
) saniApoe " souepione Ajybnoioyy eq ||eys seale asay} ‘sajoy yons Jo Buijjy
uonoNIIsuUod sejelodioou 8y} 0} Jolid "poyjew adeosa ue sjeuwiue paddesy moje
Buung ¢ amoss N 0} Aep>om 8U) Jo pus sy} Je paduwes aq |jeys paidAod
UOIOMISUOD 2q Ajisea jouurd Jey) suoneaeoxa jobiej J0 ssyousiy
0} Jold - "'PaIBAOD (s)iojoeNU0D uoljepuno4 -sjeuajew Jejiws Jo poomAid yim Aepiom uojjusnald
Hd "¢ aq 0} sease UO|}oNIISU0D YOBa JO pus 8y} Je PaIsA0d a4 |[eysS Sayoul g uey) Jadosp juswdenuy
uoloNsuUoD  saynuspi 1s1600iq “1sibojoiq $8U0UBJ] 10 S8J0Y PBJBABIX? |8 ‘UoI}oni)suod Buunp {eluapIooy
O} Joud 'L payifend 'L palilenb ‘aMmogs amogs  seroads pajsy| Jo Juswidenus [ejuspiode auy) juaasid of @1-01g NN
suoneoyioads
JoBIIUOD
o1 juensind
uo|}oNIISU0D
jno Aued
1siBojoiq paijilenb
pue 10}0B1JU0D
UO1JONIIsu0D) ‘¢
(eiqeoydde suoneoyioads ‘Bale YIOM 8] palojus
) saijAiloe UoijoNIISUO0D aney Aew ey} S19 Aue aAowal pue juaas uoljeldioaud
UOI}ONIISUoD ojul seinpsaoud au) Bumoljo} eale Yiom ay) Asains |jim 3sibojoiq
Buung ¢ SoUEpIOAE paijjenb ayj "1SB08I0} S| UIRl JBYHNS OU |1IUN 9SB8D [|IM
uonoy ainsea|y
auoIsaliiN Bunioday Aued Koueby uonduosaq ainses uonebBIN uoneBnIN
Jowield swlL pue Buniojiuop Bupuaswsidwy juswLdIOUT e




suoyeoyioads
}oBIJUOD

0} juensind
UOIIONIISUOD

1o Aues
)sibojoiq payenb
pue I0}0BHU0D
UOHONIISUOD '§

suonesyloads
UOHONIISUOD

uo paseq isibojoiq pauljenb e Ag pauiwisiep oq
PINOM Slayng 9oURGINISIP-OU JO 8ZIS 8] "INd20
JOUUBRD UORONIISUOD pue ‘BujAous yues ‘|eAowsl
uoljeleBaA se yons saliAljoe paleal-josfoid
UoIym Ul BUOZ B SBINJIISUOD Jayng asueqnisip
-0U Y "saljialoe Buljssu 03 saouBqINiSIP PIOAE 0}
s3aljiAoe pajejai-1osfoid Aue jo JusWBOUSLIWOD
0} Joud $8}Is }SBU BAljOR [jB 10} paysiigelse aq
[[eyS J84Nng 9oUBgIN}SIP-0U B ‘ainseawl sAsAINg
Joydey pue piig Buiisen 8y} ul pauep seouesip
AaAINS B} UIYIM paljIIUSp] ol SB)iS }SaU BAIJoR. §|
‘Uosesas
Bunseu 8y} spisIN0 pa}oNpuUod ag jjim Buues|o
uoneebaa pue aaJ] ‘ajqises) §| ‘selpAioe j0afoid
Buiwnsai 0} Joud sioydel pue spliq Buisau oy
Aonuns Jayioue uuouad jjeys isibojolq paljijenb e
‘uosess Bunsau ayy Bulnp uoseal Aue 10} SINO20
181816 Jo sAep / jo sepialoe Joofoid ul asdej e |
I9ljews st JaAsyoIum ‘Jundioo;
@oueqInIsIp 8y} 40 JUbIs ulyIm Jo
‘i 3 1sio)dey snjeys-jeioedg  ©
JBjjeWS S JOASYIIYM
Juidio04 8oUBGIN}SIP Y} JO
yBIs uypm Jo '1e8y 0Qg :sioydey  ©
uo|18108sIp
s)si6ojoig 8y} 1e 4o ‘Ajuo Juudioo}
soueqinisi :saulassed ©
Juud)oo) soueqInySIp
8y} wuoj saouelsip Bumojio) au) ulyim

%_Avm_w%mmmmm o mwmmmww%nm S9}IS JSOU BAI}0R JO doUasqe 10 souasald ay)
UOIONI}SUOD sajeiodioou Bujuiuisiep Jo asodind sy 104 3sibojoiq paijijenb
.m:.._:o e amogs 'z e Aq pauwlopad aq jjeys sASAINS PasNI04
: "UOIBRIUI UONIJONIISUO0D 03 Joud sAep 7 ueyj alow
UOI}ONIISU0D ‘sAaAins (s)ioyoenuoD ou 1siBojoig payienb e Ag psjonpuod aq jjleys sAoAing
0} Joud ‘2 uononysuooaud UOIJONIISU0D s)seu Joldes jojpue piq Aloeibiw aanoe Agjuspl paig BuiysaN
uoRdy ainseay
auo)safiN Bupsoday Aed KouobBy uonduoseq ainsea|y uonebnin uonebnt
jowelq awi} pue Bupiojjuoly Bupguswejdw juswddIOMT HEDBIN




(ejqeoidde
}) seniAnoe
UOI}0NI}SU0D

BuunQ '€

UOI}ONJISU0d
0y Joud T

COEOEwaOO
oy Joud '}

pue JO}oBIU0D
UOIONIISU0D '€

-suoneoyiosds
UOI}OMNUISUOD
ol sainpaocoid
aouepioAe
sajeiodiooul
amosgs ¢

‘shkanns
co:os.:mcooma
sjonpuod 1sibooiq
peiienD ‘|

(s)1010E1U0D
uoI}oNIISU0d
‘ysibojoiq
peyifenb ‘aMmOgsS

amods

Buipaalg "UOSeds Buipsaiq 8y} Jo 5pisSIno Nd20
Auo Aew syl ‘pojesoal Ajonissed aq Reuwd SMO
‘po1dno00 I8 SMoUNq SIOUM JNOD0 1SN HOM i
-uoseas Buipasig-uou

ay) Buunp s1e1W 001 pue ‘uoseas buipeaiq auy}
fuunp SMounq paidn2o0 punoie paoeid &q |IM
si9jowW Q0T Iseel 18 Jo sieyng IOM-ON "POpIOAE
aq {im smoung ‘(1€ ysnbny ubnoayy | frerugad)
uosees Buliseu Uiyiim Jnddo O} pejnpayos st HoM
pue pajoalep aie SIMO 3 -gmolng o Buimoung
pa1dno00 Joj eale UO1}ONJISUOD pasodoud

ay} AoAINS 1M 1sibojoiq payijenb e ‘aoueqinisip
punoib 0} Joud sAep Q¢ ueyl alow ON

sfonng
Mo Bumolng
uolonIIsuod8Id

:61-019 WIN

"pa}insuod aq
ueo Aouabe ajeudoidde au3 Jo 4siBojoiq paijiienb
e Aq pauluLlep se ‘aAj0e Jobuo| Ou Si }sdu
oy} [nun pakefep oq Aeuwl LORONJSU0D ‘PaAIasqo
S| salliAloe 10efoid wioly Buninsal aoueqinisip
J| "@AnORUl PBLISSP S| 188U 8U} JO ‘pabpsl}
aAey sbuijiseu a8y jpun 1n900 |jeys BuuojuoN
-gi0ydel Aq paielalol s{aAs| punoibxoeq

aAoge aJe 8siou usuM Ajuo 10 ‘uotedo) }seu
ay) uo Buipuadep awil} jin} }seu 8y} Jopuow Rew
1siBojolq au} ‘e|ises} Jou St (seutjepinb M-4AD 40
JeUOljBu JUaLNd 18d) s94nq souUBqUN}SIp-OU PBZIS
Ajereudoidde ue pue pojoejep ale s}seu joydes
snje}s-{eioads SARJE § ~Joyng 9ouUEqNISip ou ay}
jo 9zis 8y} BuluIuLIDIep UBYM dAOGE pauoijusl
siojoe} awes ayj uo puadep pinom pue isibojoiq
paijijenb au} Aq pauiuRisp 29 pinom Bunojiuoul
JO uoneINp pue junouwe ay | "eAnoeul powiesp
s1 (s)}s9U BY} 1N SOIJIAIJOE UOIONIISU0D Buunp
S}1S9U SAROE | Jojuow jeys 1sibojoid payienb v
-giolIeq [ensiA Jayjo pue aydeibodo)} pue

“yseu 8y Jo AUIoIA 8U} U sofiAloe ‘seioads au}

auo}sajiN
foweld sl

uonovy
pupoday

pue BuliojuciN

fyed

fupuawojdwyi

Kouaby
juswesioul

uopduosag 2insedN uoneBIN

ainseaiN
uonebRIN




sajeiodiodul

amogs 2 ale s}seu j| -uolyednoo0 pue punsau Jo subis 10}
LO[ONIISU0D wessumop pue dn w 00¥ pue 9)iS YoM dU} Konns (jeYys
03 Joud 2 ‘ghanns (s)1010B1JU0D ysibojolq nmr:.,m:c.q.mm;zuom aoueqInisip puno.b 0} soud
‘ :o:oéuw:ooma UOI}ONIISUOO sinoy gy uey} aiow ou paiinbal oq |IIM sojewse) bunsau
UOI}OrIISuod syonpuod jsibojoia “sibojolq 104 skonns ‘UOSess Buiyseu N} puod uig}semypou 5ouUepIOAY 158N
o} Joud 'L payiend | peyienb ‘AMOES amogs uunp Ainr-Ae usamiaq pauuopad St YoM I ldWMN-Old NN
suoieoioeds
10BJUO0D
0} Em:m_:a
UOIONJISU0D
o Aueod
\sibojoiq paienb
pug JOJORIU0D
yolonsuoD ‘€
-suonjeolioeds
UOIONISUOD
(siqeoydde ojui senpaooid
Jl) SAANOE 5OUEPIOAR
uoHONIISU0d sajelodiodul
Buund ‘€ amoss 2
cowou%_wco.o b (s)1010B1JU0D -gase ooloid
yiold ¢ 5zuuuiw 0} Sede UO1IONIIsuUod aly) J0 1991 001 uIyim Jo ul aoussaid saioads pojUaWNoop Wb
UOI}ONIISUOD saynuap! 1siBojolq “1s16ojoiq {0 ssojpebal jelqey BunsO01 9GNS WOL} feme po1odiip jo uoneziuiuiN
o} Jold '} poylens "L payliend ‘amogs amosgs oq pinoys eale UOOY 84 Ui BunyBy Areiodwol yi-olg NN

-papedep 9ABY SIMO sy}
jeuy ainsus o} Aiiep paJojuow
aq UBY]} [IW BaJE YoM syl ©

suopjeoipoeds ‘peyedep aAeY spmo y) aansue O} UoIBABDX®
10BIJU0D o1 Joud sinoy 8y 1se8| 18 aoeid ul g {IM
oy yuensind sI00p 9S8UL -ggouBfUS moung Ul s100p Aem-9uo
UO1}ONJISUO0D Buijjeysul Aq 8UOZ J1ayng 100}-091 € UIY}IM 8uoZ
1o Aued 1oedw ajelpauLul By} Ul Smoung Wolj papnjoxa
151601019 paiyijend aq pinom siMO -pegimisip 4 jou 1shu SIMO

uoiovy ainsediN

au0}saliN punsodey Ased Aoueby uonduosed ainsesiy uonebiN uoneBnIN

joweld dwiL pue HuiojiuoiN supuawsjdwi juswsdiojuz




JO sjunowe fensnun “6°8) sjeuajew [ein}nd Jo AIBA0ISIp

co_wmﬁwm%nw ojul sainpasold UBUBAPEUI UR | "pul} 8y} jo aduedijubis (enusiod eyl
. asuBpIoAR SSOSSE 0} Pa1orIU0D a( jjeys isieioads Saainosal jeinynd  000j0ld AleAoosIq
U0I}ONJISU0D sajeiodiooul 1s1Bojoseyoie payijenb e *‘sepianoe Buiqinisip-puncib psjeai-josfold JUSHBApRU|
o} Joud '} amogs 1 psuilenb ‘gmogs amMogs Buunp paisjunodus aie $924N0Sal JeIN)No paplodalun §| 1-1N0 NN
suoleoiicads
JOBIJUOD
0] juensind
UOI1oNJIISU0D
o Aued
Jsibojoiq pajijenb
puE J0}oBJu0d
UOHONIISUOD) g
‘suoneoujioads
(eiqeoiidde UONONISUOD "UOI}ONIISUOD
31 saijAloe o so inpaoaid Buunp Ayjenb sajem 109101d 0} pue soueqINSIP jejUapiooe
UONONIISUOD " souepioAe JusAasd 0] S}UI UOHONIISUOD 8Y} pue PapioAe a(q
Buung ¢ saje10d100Ul 0} 8le 12y} sjejiqey usamieq pajelsut oq ||im ‘Butousy jjis
UOIONI]SU0D amoss ‘z se yons ‘Buppusy aaljosjoid ‘eoueqinmisip punosb psesodoud
olioud 'z . (s)i010B11U0D . 8y} pue way) usamiaq Jauieq Buisixe-aid ou yum Burousy
Buiousy 1o} seale UoI3oNJISU0D seale yiom Aleiodwa) pue s8N0 SS8O0B UOHONIISU0D Ajunwiwiod
uoIIoNIISUOD  salljuepi i1sibojoig “1s1Bojoiq Buipnjoul ‘senianoe Buiginysip-punolb pasodoid DAllISUSS
0} Jolid 'L pauiiend 'L peyllenb ‘amogs amods 40188} 00| UIUIM INOD0 SBIJIUNLLILICD SALYISUSS } ‘2-01gd3L NN
suolnesyioads
JOBIJUOD
01 juensind
UOHONIISUOD
ino Aued
1siBojoiq payijenb
pue I0joBiJUOD
uonInisUoy ‘sainpaooid
(eiqeoydde ‘suofeoljoeds pue Ajuoyine uoieaojel 10j SAM4SN 108302 ‘eale Bujiseu
1) seijiAnoe UoI}oNIISUoD 8y} UIYIIM IND00 1SN Jom }| "uoseas Buisau Jo pud
UOIONIISUOD ojul sainpaooid BU} |1JUN JNO20 |[eUS YJOM OU S1aUm Bale }S8U Y} punose
Buung ¢ aoueploAR pajesuljap aq [jIM Jagng UoISN|OXa Ue ‘paisjunoous
uonoy
BUOISAIN Bunuoday Aed Aoueby uonduoseq ainseapy uonebIn ainseaiy
H H L el H L CO_umm_u._E

jowielq swi} pue Bupojiuon Buguswejdw) JusWBNIOUT




Y}IM UOJJBUIPIO0D
ut 4dOND

u c;woﬂhzwmwww Sejeslo amo8s ¢ ‘UBjd j0JJU0D SSION UOJIoNUIsuUo) paaoidde
.8 0ud 7 suoljeolioads ay) swejdwi jjeys 108ioid 8y "feacidde joafoid jeutj o
; UOIJONJISU0D Joud Alunon olusg ueg Aq peacidde pue pemalnai 8q o} (dOND)
SaIiIAIoR OuI aInseal (s)io10eN3U0D uejd [0J1U0D SSION Uoljonisuo) e asedald jjeys 108loid  Ueld |053U0D 9SION
LOI]ONIJSU0D sajelodiooul UOI}ONIISu0D 8] ‘ueld fessusn) AJunoD ojusg ues ayj Jo Juswaly uoIoNIISU0D
o} doud '} amosds 'L ‘amogs amogs Alejes pue yiesH suj Jo Zi-g £oljod Yiim aduepiodde U -1-ION WIN
suofjeoiiosds
JOBJIU0D
0} juensind
UOI1oNIISU0D
o Aued
siBojojuoaied
e J onww__mmw ‘pajuswajdu ase 1s1Bojojuoaied ay} JO sUolepUSWWIOIS)
cw; 5 Eww u ouo > 8y} JIIUn puly 8y} PUNOIE SWINSaI 10U ||BUS MIOAA "UOIBIND
(s1qeoydde : pue uoleAROXS Jo 8orid Ul uoneAIesald ‘0} pajwlj
1) SONIAIOE ‘suoijeoljioads 10U 8le INg ‘epn|oul ABW Jey}l SeINseall puswWodsl
LOI}OM}SUOD UOIJONIISUoD lieys 1sibojojucajed sy} usyy ‘Jueoiiubis aq 0} pauluISlep
“Buun q-z ojul sainpasod (s)ioyoeNU0D S| pul} 8y3 J| "pul ay) aulwexs ued jsibojojuosied
: aoueploAR UOIIONIISU0D payjijenb e pjun pajjey aq |[BYs JOJUNOOUS 8y} JO  j000j0.d AIBA0DSI
UOIONIISUGD sajelodiooul “1s1bojojuoaied 199} (G UIUIIM MJOM UOIONIISUOD Jje 'SBIIIAIIOR UOIIONIISU0D JuepaApeuU|
o}.Joud 'L amogs 'L peyienb ‘gmogs amogs  Buunp paisjunoous ale $801nosal jeoibojojuceled Aue J| 1-039 AN
mcozmo_wommm ‘goe|d saye) uoiebniuw jesibojoaeyose ajiym joafoid auj jo
ol uwom%wp“: d sped Ja10 UC SNUIIUOD UBD MIOM UoLONIISuo) ‘Alanodal
LOIONIISUOD N0 glep Jo soueploAe se yons ‘uonebiiw ajeudoidde
\Emo.uw_mo_ ooeyOIE dojensp pue YHYD oy} Jad ueoyiubis Ajjenusiod
" pauienb S| 801N0S84 8] Jayjeym auiuLLIep | siBojoseyose
pue 10}OBIIUOD ay| “AeAoosip ay} bBuipiebal _um_Eo.c aq ||m 1s1bojoseyose
UONONNSUO? 2 [eucissajoid paitjenb e pue ‘pajjey q |jim puy sy}
: JO BBle By} Ul SSOURQINISIP PUnoIb ‘saiAlloe Uoi}oNIISuUoD
(siqeondde ‘suopeosiyiosds paejal-josiold Buunp spew s (surewal Buipjing/einjonis
J) seilAloe UoI}oNIISuUco ‘soluelao ‘sselb 8(j110q ‘euoq jewiue ‘|jays
uonoy ainseapy
8uo}SaIN Bunoday Aued Aouaby uonduosaq ainsesyy uonebBRIN uoneBRIN

jeweld awiy

pue Bupnojiuop

Bupuawajduyy

Juswiadiojusy




dOND

pue soads joeljuo0D
0} ensind
UOI}ONIISUO0D

INO ssBlued
(s)iojoeiIU090
UuoijoNIIsSuUon g

saiiAloe  (s)uonolpsuni [eoo]
UoHoNIISUOD pug(s)io}oeljuod

Buung ¢ uooNIIsuod
uopoy ainses|y
AUOISAIN Bunuoday Aued Aoueby uonduoseq ainsesiy uopebiN uoneBRIN

joweld awil  pue Bupojuop Bupgusweidw] juswedsiopuy




FR

Appendix C

Draft IS/EA




Page Left Blank



HDR Engineering, Inc.
2365 Iron Point Road, Suite 300

Folsom, CA 95630

)R

Draft Initial
Study/Supplemental
Environmental
Assessment with
Proposed Mitigated
Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project
San Benito County Water District

February 2025

\\\\\\\\\\}\“ A
SSCOUNLY Wrg

:.;\' ADI ISJ;;J; v, (’I\P”'f,
0%,

- .
FLE
=55 "%
223 142
RN 15
’ L% ﬂ!l' I . 55
'}’zﬁ LA AL | SHNE
( S S 5
"lo 2000V 3, ‘L’S?‘..v- &
Ve Yy, P e e
L LISTER

LTSy



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

This page is intentionally blank.



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Contents
ot (goTe [T ol o] ¢ HUUU O OO P T TP PP UPPPRRRRIN 1
1.1 Project BaCkground. ... ..o ettt e e e 1
1.2 Pumposeand Need for Project.. ... 1
1.3 Pumose and Omganization of this Repor ... 2
Proposed Action and Proposed Project...........oooeiiiiiiiici e 3
2.1 PIOPOSEA ACHON . ... et et r e e e e a et e 3
2.2 NO ACHON ARBIMALIVE. ... it a et e et e e e e e e e e e e eten e enaas 3
2.3 Proposed Project OVEIVIEW ......ccoiiiii it 3
2.4 Proposed Project Objectives..........ov i 3
2.5 Existing and Proposed Facilities........coooviinmii i 5
2.6 Right-of-Way Issues and Pemits Required............ooooiiiiiiiiiin i 17
Environmental Checklist..... ..o e 18
3.1  Envionmental Factors Potentially Affected ... 19
3.2 Determination (To be Completed by the Lead Agency)........cooeevviiiniiiii e 19
3.3 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts ..o 20
3.4 AESINELICS. ... 21
3.5 Agriculture and Forestry ReSOUMES.......cccooiiiiiiii e 23
3.8 AT QALY .ot ere ettt ettt e et et e e e bt 26
3.7 BiologiCal RESOUITES. ... . ittt e e s e 28
3.8 CUUIAl RESOUITES. ... v eeiiriiiiee it sttt et e e e r et e e e er e s rer e e i s ea e e ane 35
TR I =1 Y« YO PP PP PP PP PP 37
3.10 GeOologY And SOMS . ...evririee ittt e e 38
3.11 Greenhouse Gas EMISSIONS .. .....ooiiiiii i e 41
3.12 Hazards and Hazardous MaterialS..........ccoooiviiiiiiiii e 42
3.13 Hydmlogy and Water QUality ..........cciiiiirii e 46
3.14 Land Use and Planning........ ..ottt 51
3,15 MINEIal REOSOUICES .. iiuuui i ieit it e e et e et et e et e e et e e e eae e e e e e e e eeeen e e 52
K ST oY T S TP PO PP UPRTO 53
3.17 Population and HOUSING .......oiriii ittt e e et e e e e et eeeeni e nareeenana s 56
318 PUDIC SBIVICES ... i iiit it et e r e et s e et ares 57
T L T Lo T o1 T o o D TP PSPPSR 59
3.20 TraNSPORALION. .. et ittt e et e e e e e e 60
3.21 Tribal CUUTal RESOUICES ... . ce.ieiiiet it ettt et e e ee e 62
3.22 Utilities and Service SYStemsS......cuviir e 64
KT BT 1o 1 ] - Y OO OO UPPTTTOR 66
3.24 Environmental JUSHCE. .....cuniiir i 68
3.25 INAian TrUSE ASS S ... itiiiit it et r et e et e e et e e e et et rren e a e e r e 69
3.26 CEQA Mandatory Findings of SignificanCe..........cccoovviii i, 70
Consultation and CoomiNatON. . ... ...iiiii i ettt 72
4.1 Summary of Public Involvement............cooiiii i 72

Februarv 2025 | i



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

4.2 IS/SEA Document DIStDULION ...c..uiieiiiie e 72
4.3 FINal MIND/NOD..... . euiiiiiti et e et e e et a e e et e e e s e e et eaes 72
4.4 PUDHC MEEINGS .. eiiiii i e e ettt et et e et 72
4.5 Compliance with Federal Statutes and Regulations..............cc.coiviiiiiiiiiiiii e 72
5 REEETEINCES o w5 ciis s s s s s 5508 s 0w 56 7 35,55 573 35 59 S5 S90S L5 S8 8 G0 SO At 5 8 S8 o 75
6 PADDENICES . 5 1 155 w5 5 55 05 ' s o505, 550 500 75 K S5 50 35 5553 4308 S5 S35 97 49 90000 ¥ 50 S 0 655 445 8 w0005 M4 0 79
Tables
Table 2-1: ASR Well Operation DISChamJ@s. . .....c..uiiiiuiiiiiiiiiee e 8
Table 2-2: Pipeling DEtails. ........ovuiie et e e e et 12
Table 2-3; Construction EQUIPMENE. .. ... it e e e ennn e 16
Table 2-4: Permits and APPIOVAIS. .......iiuii ittt ettt e 17
Table 3-1: Land Cover Permanent and Temporary Impacts Anticipated from the Proposed Project........ 29
Figures
Figtire 2-1: Projett LOCaION: « . s ses s s v sus oo vs onmasanmos o ses s 595 s 5o vmsoi i Aes £ S oasinss vy Sosss sosig st fsssgs s 4
Figure 2-20 WHWTP Site LayOuUL ......cue ittt e a b e e s e a e ans 6
Figure 2-3: 2.25 MGD Raw Water Pump Added to the Existing Raw Water Pump Station (RWPS).......... 7
Figure 2-4: 2.25 MGD Dual Media Gravity Filter...........ccoiiii e 7
Figure 2-5: ASR Wl LOCEOMNS. ... iiieuiieeiiit ettt e i e e e e e e 10
Figure 2-6: ASR Well Site Plans/EQUIDMENE. .......uuiiiiiiii et eeceeiae e eer et erere e e e e eees 11
Figure 2-7: Pipeline Alignment Segment 1 .........iiiiiiiiii e 13
Figure 2-8: Pipeline Alignment Segment 2...... ..o 14
Figure 2-9: PIpeliNg CroSSING ... .. euiiiiiiiie ettt e e s e en e 15
Appendices

Appendix A. Biological Resources

Appendix B. Cultural Resources
Appendix C. Environmental Setting
Appendix D. Regulatory Setting

ii | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Acronyms and Abbreviations

ADRoP Accelerated Drought Response Project
AFY Acre-Feet Per Year

ASR Aquifer Storage and Recovery

BA Biological Assessment

Basin Plan Central Coastal Basin Water Quality Control Plan
BAT Best Available Technology

BCC Birds of Conservation Concem

CAA Clean Air Act

CAAQS California Ambient Air Quality Standards
CAL FIRE California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection
Caltrans California Department of Transportation
CARB California Air Resources Board

CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife
CEQ Council on Environmental Quality

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act
CESA California Endangered Species Act

CHSC California Health and Safety Code

CMU Concrete Masonry Unit

CNDDB California Natural Diversity Database
CNPS California Native Plant Society

CRHR California Register of Historical Resources
CRLF California Red-Legged Frog

CSCP Construction Stormwater Control Plan
CUPA Certified Unified Program Agency

CvP Central Valley Project

CWA Clean Water Act

Delta Sacramento—San Joaquin Delta

DOC California Department of Conservation
DPM Diesel Particulate Matter

EA Environmental Assessment

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EO Executive Order

FESA Federal Endangered Species Act

FC Federal Candidate

FCAA Federal Clean Air Act

FE Federally Endangered

FHWA Federal Highway Administration

FT Federally Threatened for listing

FP State Fully Protected

FPPA Farmland Protection Policy Act

GHG Greenhouse Gas

HCP Habitat Conservation Plan

HDPE High-Density Polyethylene

IS/IMND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration
LSAA Lake or Streambed Alteration Agreement
M&l Municipal and Industrial

February 2025 | iii



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

MBTA Migratory Bird Treaty Act

MBUAPCD Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District
MGD Million Gallons Per Day

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards
NCCAB North Central Coast Air Basin

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act
NHPA National Historic Preservation Act

OHP Office of Historic Preservation

OPR Office of Planning Research

PJD Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination
PRC Public Resources Code

RWPS Raw Water Pump Station

RwWQCB Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
SBCWD San Benito County Water District
SBUA San Benito Urban Area

SHPO State Historic Preservation Officer
SJR San Justo Reservoir

SLR San Luis Reservoir

SR State Route

SSC State Species of Special Concern

TAC Toxic Air Contaminant

TCR Tribal Cultural Resource

DS Total Dissolved Solids

TQ Threshold Quantities

SWPPP Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
USA Underground Service Alert

USBR U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (or Reclamation)
USDA U.S. Department of Agriculture
USEPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
USFWS U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

USGS U.S. Geological Survey

UST Underground Storage Tank

WHWTP West Hills Water Treatment Plant

iv | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmentail Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

1 Introduction
1.1 Project Background

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) applies to discretionary projects, meaning the
state or local agency approving the project (e.g., San Benito County Water District) needs to
exercise its judgment when deciding whether to approve the project. The National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) applies to actions undertaken by a federal agency, including actions on private
lands which are reliant on a federal authority (e.g., U.S. Bureau of Reclamation) for funding. This
Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment (IS/SEA) addresses the potential
environmental impacts of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (proposed Project) in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Because the project is proposed
to be funded by the US Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), the proposed funding (proposed Action) is
evaluated in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).

in 2014, to comply with CEQA, an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) was prepared for the West
Hills Water Treatment Plant Project (WHWTP). In 2015, to comply with NEPA, Reclamation
prepared an Environmental Assessment (EA) for the same project (USBR 2015). The WHWTP was
constructed in 2017 and is owned by SBCWD. With the currently proposed expansion, the WHWTP
capacity would be increased from 4.5 MGD to 6.75 MGD. While this expansion would be
implemented during the ADRoP, the potential environmental effects of the expansion were assessed
by the 2014 EIR and 2015 EA.

The 2014 EIR analyzed construction and operation of the WHWTP, a raw water pump station, and
raw and treated water transmission pipelines. WHWTP facilities were analyzed for an initial design
capacity of 4.5 to 6 MGD, with the potential for a future design expansion to 9 MGD. The project
included water being pumped from the Hollister Conduit to the plant by the proposed raw water
pump station. SBCWD filed a Notice of Determination in April 2024 finding that the 2014 EIR
adequately addressed the environmental impacts of the WHWTP expansion included in the ADRoP.

The 2015 EA primarily focused on the authorization of San Benito County Water District to make a
connection to the Hollister Conduit for the purpose of delivering Central Valley Project (CVP) water
to a newly constructed WHWTP. It assessed the impacts of the construction of a raw water pump
station and raw water pipeline conveying water from the Hollister Conduit to the WHWTP, along with
construction of the WHWTP itself, consisting of treatment and solids handling facilities, treated water
storage tanks, and an administrative and office building. The 2015 EA noted that the WHWTP would
initially treat 4.5 to 6 MGD of raw water, with potential expansion of treatment capacity to 8 MGD.
Improvements also would include new pipelines installed within the footprint of Richardson Road, a
private easement north of the treatment plant site, Riverside Road, and Nash Road.

Both the 2014 EIR and 2015 EA found that construction and ultimate expansion of the WHWTP to 9
MGD would have no significant environmental effects. Due to previous environmental determinations
made for this component of the ADRoP, the WHWTP expansion will not be further analyzed in this
document under CEQA or NEPA. The SEA is being prepared for other aspects of the proposed
Action (e.g., ASR wells and pipelines) that were not otherwise addressed in the 2015 EA.

1.2 Purpose and Need for Project

Section 1604 authorizes Federal cost-sharing in water reuse projects up to 50 percent of the total
eligible pre-construction planning costs. If the Proposed Project is authorized for construction, USBR

February 2025 | 1



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

would provide grant funding to pay for a portion of its design and construction. This constitutes the
Proposed Action for the purposes of NEPA. The Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) is
the first phase of a larger ASR project addressing water supply deficits in the San Benito Urban Area
(SBUA). The ASR project, including ADRoP, is designed to capture excess surface water in wet
years and store it in the aquifer for later use during drought years. Under a contract with USBR, the
SBCWD imports surface water via the Central Valley Project (CVP), which consists of reservoirs,
canals, and pumping stations, to meet agricultural (Ag) and M&l water demand in its service area.
Once imported, the M&| water is treated at local water treatment plants and is distributed to the City
of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District (Sunnyslope).

The 2022 Master Plan (SBCWD 2023), an updated San Benito Urban Area Water Supply and
Treatment Plan, explored the dependability of the existing CVP supply and concluded that a supply
deficit exists during dry years. The plan evaluated various alternatives that would enhance water
supply resilience, with options focused on storing surplus water from wet years for later utilization
during drought years. ASR was selected as the best alternative.

Other than reduced imported supply during dry years when CVP allocations are limited, local
groundwater is extracted and used from municipal wells owned by Hollister, Sunnyslope, and San
Juan Bautista. This local groundwater has higher levels of hardness, salts, hexavalent chromium,
and, in some cases, nitrate. This affects the quality of treated water during dry years when a larger
proportion of the demand is met with groundwater. Additionally, in dry years, SBCWD is forced to
buy water from the spot market at a higher price, exceeding 4,000% of normal water expenses.
These expenses are passed on to water users, resulting in concerns about water affordability in the
communities. The ADRoP Project, which is the Proposed Project under CEQA, aims to address this
issue by delivering water with consistent quality. The ADRoP Project is specifically designed to meet
the needs of the Basin and directly aligns with specific sustainability goals of the District.

1.3 Purpose and Organization of this Report

The proposed Project is a discretionary action under the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) Guidelines Section 15357. It would be partially funded by federal grants (under Title XIV).
As such, this funding is a proposed Action subject to the requirements of NEPA. Therefore, a joint
environmental document has been prepared in accordance with both CEQA and NEPA
requirements. SBCWD is \the lead agency for CEQA compliance in the preparation of the expanded
Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND), and USBR is the lead agency for NEPA
compliance in the preparation of the current Supplemental Environmental Assessment (SEA). This
joint environmental document publicly discloses the environmental consequences and potential
impacts/effects of the proposed Project, alternatives to the proposed Action as required by NEPA,
and ways to minimize identified adverse effects.

Chapter 2 describes the No Action Alternative (i.e., no funding by Reclamation) and the proposed
Project (made up of the proposed Project, SBCWD-sponsored facilities and improvements, and the
proposed Action [Reclamation-sponsored funding]). Chapter 3 describes the environmental
setting/affected environment and the environmental impacts/environmental consequences (effects)
associated with implementation of the proposed Project/Action. Chapter 4 provides a summary of
the consultation and coordination that occurred during preparation of this IS/SEA. Chapter 5 includes
the references that are cited in this document. Chapter 6 provides appendices to this report. In order
to keep this report as concise as possible, all Environmental and Regulatory Settings can be found
in Appendices C and D, respectively.

2 | Eahnians 2028



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

2 Proposed Action and Proposed Project
2.1 Proposed Action

The proposed Action is the partial funding by USBR of the ADRoP project. The proposed Action by
itself would not generate significant environmental impacts; however, the construction and operation
of the ADRoP project could have potentially significant impacts.

2.2 No Action Alternative

Although not required, it is Reclamation’s practice to include a “No Action Altemative” to provide an
appropriate basis by which other alternatives are compared. For the purposes of this Project, the No
Action Alternative would still include portions of the proposed Project discussed in the 2015 EA
prepared for the WHWTP; which covered the authorization of San Benito County Water District to
connect to the Hollister Conduit for the purpose of delivering CVP water to a the WHWTP, in addition
to new pipelines installed within the footprint of Richardson Road, a private easement north of the
treatment plant site, Riverside Road, and Nash Road.

Because Reclamation is providing partial funding for the project, the No Action Altemative would
consist of Reclamation not contributing funding toward the proposed Action. Without partial funding

by Reclamation, it is expected that SBCWD would still move forward with the ADRoP Project as
described, through other budgetary arrangements. The No Action Altemative would not have any
significant environmental effects, and therefore no further analysis is necessary in this document.

2.3 Proposed Project Overview

The San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) proposes to expand the West Hills Water Treatment
Plant (WHWTP) near the City of Hollister, construct five Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) wells,
and install new pipelines for recharge water transmission from the City of Hollister to the proposed
ASR wells and recovery water from ASR wells to the City’s distribution system (Figure 2-1). The
proposed Project would have the capacity to inject, store, and recover up to 2,700 acre-feet per year
(AFY) of water. The WHWTP has a current design capacity of 4.5 MGD with an annual average flow
of 2.25 MGD. The proposed Project would expand WHWTP capacity from 4.5 million gallons per day
(MGD) to 6.75 MGD. The WHWTP expansion would be based on retaining the same processes and
system design as currently utilized. The WHWTP would be expanded within its existing developed
footprint, while the ASR wells would be newly installed on private lands in an agricultural area
northeast of the City of Hollister. Transmission pipelines and connections to distribution pipelines will
be established along public rights-of-way.

2.4 Proposed Project Objectives

As documented in the 2022 Master Plan, SBCWD can utilize approximately 6,000 AFY of unused
CVP supply in wet years (25% of years) through ADRoP. Implementing ADRoP would:

s Enable the full utilization of CVP supplies
¢ Address water deficits during dry years

¢ Provide desired water quality



e Declaration

ssment with Proposed Mitigated Negativ

Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Asse
Accelerated Drought Response Project

LEGEND
g Projet Losaton D ity of Holkster

s 2antn sz v

A W e A

Figure 2-1: Project Location

- . AnnC



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Envionmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

e Support sustainable groundwater basins
¢ Improve resilience to climate change impacts
s Promote water affordability

in response to prolonged periods of drought, the proposed Project has been reconfigured since the
2021 Groundwater Sustainability Plan (SBCWD 2021) and 2022 Master Plan (SBCWD 2023), with
an accelerated timeline. The changes were documented under the ‘Summary of Accelerated
Drought Response Project’ Technical Memorandum (Appendix C of 2022 Master Plan).

2.5 Existing and Proposed Facilities

The WHWTP was constructed in 2017 and is operated by SBCWD. The Hollister Conduit conveys
untreated CVP water from San Luis Reservoir to San Benito County via a large diameter pipeline (42
to 60 inch). The raw water pump station (RWPS), located at a site adjacent to Union Road, is
currently sized to deliver a range of flows from 1 to 4.5 MGD. The SBCWD has a current design
capacity of 4.5 MGD with an annual average flow of 2.25 MGD. The WHWTP receives CVP water
from the San Justo or San Luis Reservoir, depending on the time of year, to the plant via the 42- to
60-inch-diameter Hollister Conduit pipelines. San Luis Reservoir (SLR) is typically used during
January and February and the San Justo Reservoir (SJR) is used during the rest of the year.

2.5.1 WHWTP Expansion

The proposed Project includes construction of five ASR wells, expansion of WHWTP, and the
installation of new pipelines for water transmission. The proposed Project would have the capacity to
inject, store, and recover up to 6,000 AFY of water. The proposed Projectwould expand the capacity
of the WHWTP from 4.5 MGD to 6.75 MGD. The WTP expansion would be based on retaining the
same processes and system design as currently utilized. This would be accomplished by the
following design elements to be located within the footprint of the existing WTP:

e One new 2.25 MGD raw water pump added to the existing raw water pump station (RWPS)
* One new 3.0 MGD automatic strainer
o One new 4.5 MGD ballasted clarification pretreatment
e One new 2.25 MGD duai media gravity filter
¢ Chemical feed and storage facilities:
o One 2,500-gallon sulfuric acid storage tank
o One 6,650-gallon sodium hydroxide storage tank

¢ One new solids drying bed sized for the 2.25 MGD expansion

These design elements would not expand the physical footprint of the WHWTP and would be placed
within existing areas of gravel and/or aggregate base. The WHWTP site can be seen in Figure 2-2.

Photos of the proposed WTP equipment can be seen in Figure 2-3 and Figure 2-4.

February 2025 | §



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

| ) }l, TA““]":: ?é‘fb-r»,j‘

&F“«r / | A.\"'

‘ / [

| I - Holister |

 N— D | K =
A -

LEGEND

R TRESTSIENT S 820t
21

E PROCELT
Ty ANTER LS TRICT

6 | February 2025

Figure 2-2: WHWTP Site Layout




Draft [nitial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Figure 2-3: 2.25 MGD Raw Water Pump Added to the Existing Raw Water Pump Station
(RWPS)

Figure 2-4: 2.25 MGD Dual Media Gravity Filter

February 2025 | 7



Draft Initial Study/Supp|ementa| Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

2.5.2 ASR Wells and Outfalls

Five ASR wells would be constructed as part of the proposed Project. Figure 2.5 shows the location
of the proposed ASR wells. ASR s the recharge of aquifers through direct injection of water into the
aquifer. A typical ASR cycle consists of recharge, shut-in, and recovery, with each phase lasting
from months to years depending on the conditions of local aq uifers and demands. The long-term full
cycle of ASR operation would be a 10-month recharge period, followed by one to five years of
storage with the well shut-in, followed by a minimum of 12-month recovery period that could be
spread over multiple dry years.

Each ASR well site would consist of a well, a vertical turbine, line shaft pump, hollow shaft motor,
piping, and appurtenances setupona concrete pad. The discharge head assembly and wellhead
piping would sit on a concrete pad and the remaining site would be paved with vehicular gravel
allowing driving access surrounding all above-grade site features. Figure 2-6 shows the basic site
plan for each ASR well site. Electricity to the well sites would be provided via underground medium
voltage lines. No overhead utility lines are proposed. The well sites would be spaced at least 1,500
feet apart from onée another, as well as 1,500 feet from any existing groundwater wells. Each ASR
well site would occupy 0.3 acres surrounded by an 8-foot-high intruder resistant fence for security
purposes. Each well site will be placed on fill at least 1 foot above the FEMA 100-year floodplain
elevation. As shown in Figure 2-5, all five ASR well sites have been sited within the farmlands
surrounding the Fallon Road area north of the City of Hollister.

Four of the ASR well sites would be located north of Fallon Road, while the fifth site would be
located to the south of Fallon Road. Each well site would be located within existing agricultural fields
along unincorporated County roads. The wells were sited in consultation with landowners to
minimize impacts to ongoing agricultural activities.

As shown on Figure 2-5, each ASR well will be connected via buried pipe to an outfall that
discharges into the agricultural drainage ditch running northward from ASR 5- ASR 1. Each outfall
will include a 10'x20’ splash apron made of uncemented 6" riprap. Table 2-1 shows discharge
scenarios for the ASR well and pipeline backflush operations.

Table 2-1: ASR Well Operation Discharges

ASR Water Duration | Flowrate Volume Frequency
Operation Source (min) (gpm) (gal)
ASR Well If a well is not used for
Startup Groundwater 10 L_ 1,000 \ 10,000 | more than a few days \

If recharge pressure and
rate drops to a

predetermined level (~2-3
weeks)

ASR Well
Backflush

Groundwater 15 1,000 15,000

Once or twice per year
depending on the
operation

Few times per year
depending on the
operation

Purged Water
(18-inch i leijr:g?sater i
Transmission) PP

200,000

Purged Water Purged
(Laterals) pipeline water

@ e ¥ .AnNnC



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration )
Accelerated Drought Response Project

2.5.3 Disinfection

Sodium hypochlorite will be used to disinfect recovered water, consistent with the primary
disinfectant used for the City of Hollister's distribution system. A disinfection building will be located
along Fallon Road to continuously inject chlorine into the raw water extracted from the ASR wells as
it begins westward transit in the 24-inch pipeline to the City of Hollister distribution system.

The disinfection site will have an 8-inch-thick Concrete Masonry Unit (CMU) building, approximately
20 feet by 20 feet, to house chemical equipment. The sodium hypochlorite feed system will consist
of high-density polyethylene (HDPE) totes, chemical metering pumps, piping and valves. The HDPE
totes will be on portable grate platforms for drainage and containment. The chemical feed system,
including pumps, piping and valves will be constructed of corrosion-resistant materials compatible
with sodium hypochlorite. Double-walled chemical piping will be routed in a chemical trench for ease
of access and for containment in case of a leak. Metering pumps will be on manufacturer-provided
pump skids that can be easily mounted on a wall or anchored to the floor. The disinfection building
will include continuous water quality analyzers to measure chlorine residual and adjust the
disinfection dose. Sample water will be routed to a floor drainpipe made of C9800 PVC, and
discharged to a dry well on the building pad. Sample water will consist of chiorinated groundwater
consistent with drinking water standards. Approximately 160 gallons per day will be analyzed and
discharged. An emergency shower and eyewash station will also be included in the building.

Februarv 2025 | 9



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

ASR Well
©  Pigeossd Site
Bty Lucalon

——— Propoged 18" Bipelna

e B Ltaral Byl

— 0

e ] QUtlad Pipeline

AR5 160980

_ LGhE
0141200350

LEGEND
Easements
[T Permsnan

oo Crossing Fr

3 oty ot Hotlista

AR -
11708 50,710

10 | February 2025

U AN LSRR VRIIAR 3 BT AIYE £TE R P RGS, WAN R Wl

RN T P

Figure 2-5: ASR Well Locations

| MRETLT RO LA LT L L0 E s



e e T e o e %&tt%a&@;é:fﬁfiﬁ%@%;aﬁi& e e o i e o e et e T %ati.,J
FETTTCEN R i
AL D \ i 1
| AHTACD I ADUYHIEY
: . 3 HSY £
A . AHIAOOTIIOUYHOIY %
- > wev Dl 1401 HAONOFY L
o7l I Y SINED0 0L X BY % i
kst . \ x, i
c . /
Ao e
— iy
<
.ﬂ... .........

x4 HOLWNLDY HOLOW M \m.l.....-li..-u
g3 ONVIBORESE HDIH GV e
. HAL
\ m ARG DILANDYR
[ Rt . A e r
ONISNG 3 MO LG e = R uwm; OIS B
3 i

WG LAAHE WA BES L ) )
M T i

i1
L

t \
! N HBNTE-HOVE .0 -~

a0 L33ME 3385 /
WYl (ROHY NG ~4

A
/

o B BLIWINOD e

4

LA B0 oMY/

v b AR TR T H



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

2 5.4 Water Transmission Pipeline

Figure 2-7 and Figure 2-8 show the proposed water transmission pipeline alignment. The new water
transmission pipeline would convey recharge and recovery water to the ASR wells, WHWTP, and
the Hollister Distribution System to increase the capacity of the existing distribution system. The
pipelines would be installed within a 20- to 30-foot-wide right-of-way at a minimum of 36 inches of
cover below finished grade. The pipelines would travel mostly along the roadway edge or median to
minimize lane closures during construction, when feasible. As shown in Figure 2-9, the pipeline
would cross underneath Santa Ana Creek using bore and jack pipeline installation techniques.
Electricity for the well sites would be provided by cables installed within the same alignment as the
proposed pipelines and would connect to ground mount transformers at each well site. As shown in
Table 2-2, the alignment includes the following pipelines.

Table 2-2: Pipeline Details

Pineline Location Length Diameter
i : (feet) (inches)
Underneath San Felipe Road. Begins near intersection of N Chappell Road. Ends

i i 8,811 18
near intersection of Fallon Road.
Underneath Fallon Road travelling east 5,632 18
Underneath Scagliotti Road from Fallon Road south to ASR 5 3,600 12
Underneath unnamed farm road from Fallon Road north to ASR 4 1,120 18
Underneath unnamed farm road north from ASR 4 to ASR 2 2,220 18
Underneath unnamed farm road north from ASR 2 to ASR 1 2,310 12
Underneath Fallon Road east from unnamed farm road to ASR 3 2,370 12

2 5.5 Construction Methods

255.1 WHWTP Construction

The WHWTP expansion would occur within the developed footprint of the existing WTP. Typical
construction equipment will be similar to that discussed in the 2017 EIR for the WHWTP. These
include earth movers, graders, compactors, and excavators for preliminary site earthwork and other
activities, and backhoes, dump trucks, cranes, front-end loaders, concrete trucks, and forklifts for
subsequent construction work.

12 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project F)?

FREN D1 41200640

FR 7068350
A
\ A\
A\

H 97 . ASR Well [ v o Horstes
{ D 9 o S0 Parcel
i e
| Hodlntes .
1 Ll e P OPOURA Lt Pgebng
{ e
\ e S—— v - —
| g
AC E
e

Figure 2-7: Pipeline Alignment Segment 1

February 2025 | 13



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

""""

LEGEND
e Propumes 1 Plpsdine 3 iy o mcitisten
Pl

\
“Balt shey i

Figure 2-8: Pipeline Alignment Segment 2



Sl | Gzoz Aerugay

Buissoun auiadid :6-z ainbi4

e BNET e BT S E AR AR VN A0 R CIAL o AT ANET S A oA LT S L ST A S SRS SLRR IS €30 DHET L LT SR S Wi

109014 esuodsey jybnoiq pejeis|eady
uonesepaq anijebaN pajebyy pasodoid ypm juswssassy |ejuswuoiaug [ejuswajddng/Apmis [eniuf yeig



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

255.2 ASR Well Construction

Construction of the ASR well sites will include the wells, pumps, disinfection building, electrical
cabinets, transformers, appurtenant structures, and security fences. Temporary Construction
Easements of 1 acre each are also being acquired at each of the ASR well sites to facilitate drilling
and construction of the ASR wells. SBCWD will install gravel roadway surfaces to each well site to
facilitate all-weather access.

2 553 Water Transmission Pipeline Construction

Pipeline installation will predominantly utilize open-cut construction. This includes pavement removal
and replacement, excavation, shoring, pipe bedding, new pipe installation, backfilling, compaction,
and resurfacing. Trenching would comply with all applicable standards of SBCWD, San Benito
County, and the City of Hollister. All open-cut installation will be bedded with clean sand per
ANSI/ASTM C 33 requirements and backfilled with suitable engineered material or acceptable native
material. In County right-of-way along Fallon Road, post-construction road repair including patching
and chip sealing may be required for pavement rehabilitation.

The proposed 18-inch diameter pipeline will cross undemeath Santa Ana Creek. Trenchless
crossing entry and exit pits will be located on the east and west sides of Santa Ana Creek. The entry
pit will be 35 feet by 15 feet and approximately 20 feet deep. The exit pit will be 15 feet by 10 feet
and approximately 20 feet deep. The water transmission pipe will be installed inside a 30-inch
diameter steel casing pipe. The launching and receiving pits will begin at 100 feet from the edges of
the Santa Ana Creek. The trenchless crossing will likely be constructed by jack and bore method
depending on the results of a geotechnical investigation and suitability of subsurface material
characteristics.

Construction staging areas have been sited along San Felipe Road and Fallon Road. The proposed
Project would follow the 2022 Caltrans Standard Specifications for general construction traffic
control. Although the pipelines mostly run along roadway margins, traffic control will periodically be
required on San Felipe and Fallon Roads. The contractor will be required to prepare a traffic control
plan to be stamped and signed by a registered California engineer.

Significant amounts of solid waste are not anticipated. However, any surplus concrete, removed pipe
material, rubble, asphalt, or other waste from construction would be taken to an appropriate disposal
site or landfill and would not be deposited into local waterbodies.

2.5.6 Equipment / Staging / Workers

The proposed Projectwould be constructed by up to five construction crews composed of up to 20
workers. Construction equipment needed for project construction is presented in Table 2-3.

Table 2-3: Construction Equipment

Equipment Quantity
Dozer for Surface Preparation 1
Loader for Surface Preparation 2
Excavator 2
Pile Driver -
Concrete mixer 1
Pickup truck 5-7
Water truck 2
Electric hand tools 5-7 sets

16 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmen

tal Assessment with Proposed Mitigated

Equipment Quantity
Gas/diesel-powered hand tools 3-5 sels
Gas/diese!-powered generators 5-7
Stand-on-skid-steers 2-3
Concrete/dump trucks 3-5
Temporary diesel-powered bypass pumps 2-4
Drill rigs 1-2
Cranes 2-4
mini Excavator 5-7
2.5.7 Schedule

The construction duration will be approximately

Friday, excluding legal holidays, between
proposed during construction.

pavement, and/or vegetation from

includes jack hammers, pavement saws, graders,

the

Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

R

23 months. Construction will occur Monday through
hours of 7 am. to 6 p.m. Nighttime work is not

Mobilization, including surface preparation, involves removing any structures (such as fences),

the surface of the trench area. Equipment used for this activity

bulldozers, loaders, and trucks. Prior to

construction, the proposed Project contractor(s) will implement an underground services alert (USA)
to identify existing underground utilities and service connections prior to commencing any excavation
work. Existing utilities would be avoided and protected in place. Temporary disruption of service of

relocation may be required to allow

such lines would not be disrupted until prior approval is receive

2.5.8 Proposed Project/Action Operation and Maintenance

for construction pending final engineering design. Service on
d from the service provider.

Periodic maintenance will be required after the proposed Project is operational. SBCWD staff will
inspect components of the proposed Project regularly and will reptace equipment that reaches the

end of its lifetime or fails during use.

2.6 Right-of-Way lssues and Permits Required

Table 2-4 presents the agencies and app!

Table 2-4: Permits and Approvals

icable permits for the proposed Project.

Agency

Permit/Approval

Federal: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFW

S)

Endangered Species Act Section 7 consultation

Federal: State Histo ric

Preservation Officer (SHPO)

Section 106 of National Historic Preservation Act

(NHPA)
State: California Department of Fish and Wwildlife California Endangered Species Act Incidental Take
(CDFW) Permit
State: California Department of Transportation Section 660 of the California Streets and Highways
(Caltrans) Code

State: California Native American Heritage Com
(NAHC})

mission

Tribal Consuitation per Assembly Bill 52

Board (RWQCB)

State: Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control

Elimination System
General Permit

CWA Section 402 National Pollutant Discharge
(NDPES) Construction Stormwater

State: RWQCB

CWA Section 401 Waste Discharge Requirements

Local: San Benito County Encroachment Permit
i—[acah City of Hollister Encroachment Permit

February 2025 | 17



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3

© N o o K~ W D

10.

1.

Environmental Checklist

Project Title: Accelerated Drought Response Project

Lead Agency name and address: San Benito County Water District
Contact person and phone number: Jeff Cattaneo, SBCWD 831.637.8218
Project location: City of Hollister and unincorporated San Benito County
Project sponsor's name and address:

General Plan designation: Various

Zoning: Various

Project Description: SBCWD proposes to expand groundwater storage capacity for later use
during drought conditions. Specifically, SBCWD proposes to expand the WHWTP, construct five
ASR wells, and install new pipelines for water transmission. The WHWTP expansion aims to
treat available CVP water for recharge of the ASR wells. The wells are spaced for efficient
groundwater recharge. Pipelines are sized to accommodate conveyance of injected and
recovered water and to eliminate hydraulic bottlenecks in the current Hollister distribution
system.

Surrounding land uses and setting: San Benito County is a primarily rural area, with the City
of Hollister as its County seat and largest incorporated jurisdiction. Land uses surrounding the
proposed Project area include Agricultural, Industrial, Residential, and Commercial properties.
The Hollister Municipal Airport is located to the northwest of the proposed Project area.

Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or
participation agreement.): U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, California Department of Water
Resources, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Regional
Water Quality Control Board.

Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the
project area requested consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code section
21080.3.1? If so, is there a plan for consultation that includes, for example, the
determination of significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources, procedures
regarding confidentiality, etc.? Yes, tribal consultation has been conducted, with no responses
received.

18 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.1 Environmental Factors Potentially Affected

The environmental factors checked below could be potentially affected by this project, before
mitigation is incorporated, as indicated by the Determination checklist below.

Aesthetics Noise

Agriculture and Forestry Resources [0 Population and Housing

I Air Quality O Public Services

Biological Resources [0 Recreation

Cultural Resources L] Transportation/ Traffic
Geology/Soils [ Utilities and Service Systems

[J Greenhouse Gas Emissions 1 Wildfire

[] Hazards & Hazardous Materials [ Environmental Justice

[] Hydrology/Water Quality U1 Indian Trust Assets

[J Land Use/Planning (1 Mandatory Findings of Significance

[0 Mineral Resources

3.2 Determination (To be Completed by the Lead Agency)

On the basis of this initial evaluation:

|

X

1 find that the project would not have a significant effect on the environment, and a NEGATIVE
DECLARATION will be prepared.

I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, there
will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by or
agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

[ find that the proposed project may have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

I find that the proposed project may have a "potentially significant impact” or "potentially
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has
been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached
sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the
effects that remain to be addressed.

[ find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,
because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or
NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or
mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or
mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required.

Signature . Date:

Febniarv 2025 | 19



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.3 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts

A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately
supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each
question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources show
that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project falls outside
a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project-specific
factors, as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to
pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis).

1. Allanswers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site,
cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as
operational impacts.

2. Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than
significant with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate
if there is substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more
"Potentially Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required.

3. "Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the
incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact”
to a "Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures,
and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less than significant level (mitigation
measures from "Earlier Analyses," as described in (5) below, may be cross-referenced).

4. Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA
process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration.
Section 15063(c)(3)(D). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:

a. Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

b. Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were within
the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal
standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation measures based on
the earlier analysis.

c. Mitigation Measures. For effects that are "Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures
Incorporated,” describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or refined from the
earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project.

12. Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information
sources for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously
prepared or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or
pages where the statement is substantiated.

13. Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.

14. This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead
agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a
project's environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

15. The explanation of each issue should identify:
a. The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and
b. The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance.

20 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration 1
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.4 Aesthetics

Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Have a substantial adverse effecton a ] O
scenic vista?
b) Substantially damage scenic 0 [

resources, including, but notiimited to,
trees, rock outcroppings, and historic
building within a state scenic highway?

¢} In non-urbanized areas, substantially O [ X 0
degrade the existing visual character
or quality of public views of the site
and its surroundings? (Public views
are those that are experienced from
publicly accessible vantage points). If
the projectis in an urbanized area,
would the project conflict with
applicable zoning and other
regulations governing scenic quality?

d) Create a new source of substantial O ] < 0
light or glare which would adversely
affect day or nighttime views in the
area?

3.4.1 Impact Analysis

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

The majority of the proposed Project is located below-grade. Above-grade project components
include the ASR welis with concrete pads, security fencing, and appurtenant equipment. A
disinfection building of less than 500 square feet will be located adjacent to the north side of Fallon
Road opposite Scagliotti Road. The single-story disinfection building will be made of 8-inch-thick
Concrete Masonry Unit (CMU) and steel truss framed gable roof, with the gable pitched over a
double hollow metal door. Due to the location of the building within the 100-year floodplain, the
building would be placed on an elevated pad of approximately 6 feet in height. The ASR well sites
will be surrounded by an eight-foot fence and will be sited a minimum of 1,500 feet away from Fallon
Road. None of these project features are expected to encroach on or obstruct existing views of
scenic vistas in the area, mainly the Gabilan mountains. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock
outcroppings, and historic building within a state scenic highway?

The proposed Project is not located near any significant natural or manmade visual resources. No
trees, rock outcroppings, or other significant scenic features occur within the Project area. The one
potential scenic resource in the area — Santa Ana Creek — would be avoided by trenchless
construction. There are no recorded historic buildings within the Project area.

State Route (SR) 25 is listed as an “eligible” scenic highway from SR 198 in Monterey County north
to its junction with SR 156 in Hollister. However, there are no officially designated scenic highways
or designated viewpoints within the vicinity of the proposed Project (Caltrans 2024). While SR 25 is
located near the proposed Project area, the proposed Project would likely not be visible from the

February 2025 | 21



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

highway because the ASR well sites would be located at least 1,500 feet from existing roads.
Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of
public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are
experienced from publicly accessible vantage points). If the project is in an urbanized
area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing
scenic quality?

Construction activities from the proposed Project would be visible from various streets, businesses,
and residences along the alignment. In general, construction activities would include vegetation
removal, grading and excavation, concrete formwork, construction of facilities, pipeline installation,
and backfilling. While project construction may obstruct or otherwise affect views of the surrounding
landscape, impacts would be temporary and would cease with the end of construction work. Where
pipeline installation would occur, the construction area would be restored to its pre-construction
condition.

During operation of the proposed Project, the majority of project features would not cause a
significant change to existing visual conditions. Water transmission pipelines would be below-grade.
ASR well sites would include relatively small equipment installations surrounded by an eight-foot
security fence. These sites would be located on existing agricultural land. The well sites would be
visible along Fallon Road; however, they would result in a relatively minor change to the existing
agricultural landscape. Additionally, most of the proposed Project is located within a generally
urbanized landscape. The proposed Project would not substantially degrade the existing visual
character of the area. Impacts would be less than significant.

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area?

Lighting in the proposed Project area is limited to exterior lighting from residential and commercial
development. The ASR well sites and disinfection building would have minimal nighttime security
lighting. No occupied structures are proposed. Any lighting structures included in the proposed
Project would be shielded according to local standards. The disinfection building will have lights
inside and outside above the main entrance. The ASR well sites will have a light post near the
electrical equipment that can be turned on via a switch located in the electrical enclosure. Impacts
would be less than significant.

22 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supp‘ementa\ Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.5 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

in determining whether impacts 10 agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead
agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997)
prepared by the California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing
impacts on agriculture and farmiand. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including
timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by
the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of forest
land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment
project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the
California Air Resources Board, would the project:

Environmental issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless impact
Mitigation
incorporated
a) Convert Prime Farmiand, Unique [ ® ]

Farmiand, of Farmiand of Statewide
importance (Farmland), as shown on
the maps prepared pursuantto the
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring
Program of the California Resources
Agency. to non—aqricultural use?
b) Confiict with existing zoning for
agricultural use, of a Williamson Act
contract?
¢) Confiict with existing zoning for, of
cause rezoning of, forest land (as
defined in Public Resources Code
section 12220(g ), timberland (as
defined by Public Resources Code
section 4526), or timberland zoned
Timberiand Production (as defined by
Government Code section 51104(d ?
d) Resultin the loss of forest land of
conversion offorestiand to non-forest
use?
e) Involve other changes in the existing
environment which, due to their
location or nature, could resultin
conversion of Farmiand, to non-
agricu\tural use of conversion of forest
land {0 non-forest use?

3.5.1 Impact Analysis

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agn‘cultural use?

The majority of the proposed Project would be located underneath San Felipe Road and Fallon
Road within the existing right-of-way in the form of new pipeline installations. This would be
constructed in areas designated Urban and Built-Up Land, which is not Farmland as defined in the
CEQA Guidelines Appendix G and in this checklist.

The five ASR well sites would be constructed in the vicinity of Fallon Road, northeast of the city of
Hollister. Agricuitural land in the area of the well sites is considered Farmland of Statewide

Eebruary 2025 | 23



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Importance. The proposed Projectwould convert small areas of agricultural land for the construction
of ASR well sites. Each well site would be no larger than 0.25-acre, for a maximum total of 1.25
acres, and would be placed in areas determined, in consultation with landowners, to cause the least
amount of disturbance to agricultural operations. The well sites would be located in the vicinity of
Fallon Road and would be connected via laterals to the proposed Fallon Road water transmission
pipeline. Given the minimal amount of land involved and lack of effect on agricultural operations,
impacts related to Farmland conversion would not be significant.

While Project construction may temporarily inhibit the use of some agricultural land, once
construction is completed, the affected area would continue to be used for agricultural uses with
minimal loss of land. The temporary area of disturbance around the well sites would be slightly larger
than the permanent area of disturbance. To lessen the impact of the temporary disturbance area, the
proposed Project would incorporate Mitigation Measure (MM) AG-1 to restore the area to
preconstruction conditions. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant after mitigation is
incorporated.

Mitigation Measures:

MM AG-1: All designated Important Farmland, as defined by the California Department of
Conservation's Farmiand Mapping and Monitoring Program, in areas currently, or with the potential
for future use as, agricultural operations that are impacted by Project co nstruction will be restored to
their preconstruction conditions. This would include, but not necessarily be limited to, replacement of
crops, recontouring of soils, and/or replacement of infrastructure such as irrigation works. In lieu of
SBCWD performing required restoration of affected areas, the District may instead compensate
property owners for the restoration, replacement, or re-establishment of agricultural operations within
the temporary construction easement areas. Agreements with applicable landowners shall be in
place prior to the start of construction.

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

The ASR well sites are on land zoned by San Benito County as Agricultural Productive. However,
wells are allowable uses on agricultural land, provided they comply with applicable County
ordinances and regulations. Other features of the proposed Projectare located on lands that are not
agriculturally zoned or are within road rights-of-way.

Portions of the proposed Project are located on land under Williamson Act contracts. Construction of
the proposed Project may temporarily inhibit the use of some Williamson Act land. However, once
construction is completed, the affected land would continue to be used for agricultural purposes. The
replacement of the ASR wells would not require the cancellation of any Williamson Act contracts.
Impacts would be less than significant.

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code
section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government
Code section 51104(g))?

The proposed Project would not take place in the vicinity of any land zoned as forest Jand or
timberland. There would be no impact.

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest Jand to non-forest use?

No forest land would be lost due to the proposed Project. There would be no impact.

24 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supp!emental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature,
could resultin conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest

Jand to non-forest use?

Portions of the proposed Project would be located on land identified as Farmiand of Statewide
importance or land under Williamson Act contract. However, the nature of the proposed Project
would not result inthe significant loss or conversion of existing farmiand. Operation of the proposed
Project would allow for continued use of the affected land as Farmland.

The ASR wells would be used only to recharge and recover groundwaterfor use in times of drought.
They would not be used to supportany proposed development in the vicinity. As such, the proposed
Project would not lead to the indirect conversion of Farmiand. Impacts would be less than significant.

February 2025 | 25



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.6 Air Quality

Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management
district or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations, would
the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated

a) Conflict with or obstruct d 0 X O

implementation of the applicable air

quality plan?
b) Violate any air quality standard or d O X O

contribute substantially to an existing
or projected air quality violation?

c) Resultin a cumulatively considerable O O X a
netincrease of any criteria pollutant
for which the project region is non-
attainment under an applicable
federal or state ambient air quality
standard?

d) Expose sensitive receptors to
substantial pollutantconcentrations?

e) Resultin other emissions (such as O O
those leading to odors adversely
affecting a substantial number of
people?

3.6.1 Impact Analysis
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

The proposed Project would not conflict with or obstruct the implementation of any applicable air
quality management plans (AQMP), such as the 2017 MBARD AQMP. The proposed Project would
generate criteria air pollutant emissions during construction from the operation of heavy-duty
construction equipment, truck trips associated with hauling construction materials, and vehicle trips
associated with construction worker commutes. With the implementation of standard BMPs, as
included in the MBARD CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (MBARD 2008), the proposed Project would
not exceed the MBARD construction thresholds for criteria air pollutant emissions. Moreover, the
proposed Project would implement MBARD dust-related best practices to reduce PM10 emissions
during construction. In addition, emissions generated from construction activities resulting from the
Proposed Project would be short term, intermittent, and temporary in nature.

Operational emissions would be minimal and limited to vehicles on occasional maintenance trips.
Therefore, proposed Project operational emissions would likewise not conflict with nor obstruct the
implementation of applicable AQMPs. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air
quality violation?

Construction of the proposed Project would generate fugitive dust and other criteria pollutant,
primarily through excavation activities, construction equipment exhaust and haul truck trips, and
related construction worker commute trips. This impact would be temporary and limited to a local
level. Because residential uses occur along the proposed pipeline alignment, standard BMPs would
be implemented to reduce potential impacts. Implementation of these BMPs would ensure that

26 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

violations of air quality standards or substantial contribution to an existing or projected air quality
violation would be less than significant.

Operation of the proposed Project would not generate any criteria pollutant emissions. Truck travel
associated with the facilities would generate minimal criteria pollutant emissions. As such,
operations of the proposed Project would not result in the violation of any air quality standard or
contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation. Impacts would be less than
significant.

¢) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality
standard?

Construction of the proposed Project would not exceed the MBARD thresholds for criteria air
pollutant emissions. Furthermore, the proposed Project would be required to implement MBARD's
dust-related best practice measures, and construction emissions would be temporary. Therefore,
construction emissions would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of PM10
emissions, for which San Benito County is in nonattainment status.

Operation and maintenance of the proposed Project would require minimal new vehicle trips. Heavy-
duty diesel trucks would not be required, and worker trips would be limited to routine maintenance
and well operation activities. Therefore, operation of the proposed Project would not generate
substantial criteria air pollutant emissions, including PM10, that would result in a cumulatively
considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant. Impacts would be less than significant.

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

A “sensitive receptor” is generally defined as any residence, including private homes, condominiums,
apartments, and living quarters; education resources such as preschoois and kindergarten through
grade twelve (K-12) schools; daycare centers; and health care facilities such as hospitals or
retirement and nursing homes. A sensitive receptor also includes long-term care hospitals, hospices,
prisons, and dommitories or similar live-in housing.

Various receptors, primarily commercial properties, are in the vicinity of the proposed Project where
construction activities would occur along the proposed pipeline alignment on San Felipe Road. DPM
would be the main TAC of concem during construction of the proposed Project. Construction would
include site preparation, trenching, and rehabilitation activities. These activities utilize heavy
equipment that bums diesel fuel and subsequently emits DPM. DPM generally dissipates rapidly
from its original concentration. DPM would also be emitted from diesel vehicles used by
maintenance workers. However, as noted, operational emissions would occur only occasionally.
Therefore, DPM operational emissions would not be generated at a level that would cause concern
for sensitive receptors. Impacts would be less than significant.

e) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors adversely affecting a
substantial number of people?
The proposed Project would not result in odor emissions adversely affecting a substantial number of
people because the proposed Project does not include any components that would result in the
generation of long-term odors or similar emissions. Construction activities that have the potential to
emit odors and similar emissions include operation of diesel equipment, generation of fugitive dust,
and paving (asphalt). Odors and similar emissions from construction are intermittent and temporary,
and they generally would not extend beyond the construction area. Due to the temporary and
intermittent nature of construction odors, impacts would be less than significant.

February 2025 | 27



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.7 Biological Resources
Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either O X 0 O

directly or through habitat modifications,
on any species identified as a candidate,
sensitive, or special status species in
local or regional plans, policies, or
regulations, or by the California
Department of Fish and Game or

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any O X O O
riparian habitator other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional
plans, policies, and regulations or by the
California Department of Fish and Game
or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on O O X O
state or federally protected wetlands
(including, but not limited to, marsh,
vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct
removal, filling, hydrological interruption,
or other means?

d) Interfere substantially with the O O X |
movement of any native resident or
migratory fish or wildlife species or with
established native resident or migratory
wildlife corridors, or impede the use of
wildlife nursery sites?

()
~

Conflict with any local policies or a O O X
ordinances protecting biological
resources, such as a tree preservation
policy or ordinance?

f) Conflict with the provisions of an O O O X
adopted Habitat Conservation Plan,
Natural Community Conservation Plan,
or other approved local, regional, or
state habitat conservation plan?

3.7.1 Impact Analysis

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any
species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional
plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

Construction and operation of the proposed project could result in permanent and/or temporary
impacts to seven special-status wildlife species with the potential to occur in the Proposed Action
area including CTS, CRLF, NWPT, Swainson’s hawk, burrowing owl, San Joaquin kit fox, and
western red bat. Table 3-1 shows the breakdown of habitat types that will be impacted by the
Proposed Project.

28 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Tabie 3-1: Land Cover Permanent and Temporary impacts Anticipated from the Proposed
Project

Land Cover Temporary impacts (acres) Permanent Impacts (acres)
Riparian 0.00 0.00
Drainage Ditch 0.05 0.01
Agriculture 9.90 1.13
Ruderal 5.79 0.00
Disturbed 5.81 0.62
Grassland 0.00 0.00

The effects analyses of construction and O&M activities for each species are described below. The
No Action Alternative would not affect any of the below listed species as no construction or O&M
activities would occur within the Project area. Swainson’s hawk was observed during the 2024 site
visit and is present within the Project area. The other species listed have potential to occur within the
Project Area but were not observed during the site visit.

Impact BlO-1a: California Tiger Salamander

Open trenching for installation of the proposed pipeline may directly injure or kill CTS individuals if
they enter the active work area during construction. Exposure to chemicals during construction also
has the potential to have lethal impacts to CTS. Although trenching will occur within actively farmed
areas that are not suitable habitat, CTS are mobile and have the capability to migrate within the
Project Area. Construction of the well outfalls in the drainage ditch would have the potential to injure
orkill CTS utilizing the ditch as a migratory channel. Implementation of MM BIO 1a through 1¢ would
reduce the level of impact to less than significant. Construction equipment could also injure or kill
CTS in burrows during the installation of the ASR wells in the agricultural fields. MM BIO 1d and 1e
would help to lessen impacts to CTS by limiting work when the species would be most active and
keeping construction site conditions safe for the species. Loss of upland habitat from filling of
burrows would result in indirect effects to CTS. Impacts to CTS would be less than significant with
mitigation incorporated. Operation and maintenance would not require any additional disturbance.

The potential impacts to CTS that may result from work at the WHWTP have already been evaluated
in the 2014 FEIR for the construction of the initial treatment plant (ESA 2014). A Notice of
Determination was issued in 2024 declaring that this FEIR was sufficient to cover the activities
proposed under the Proposed Action. There will be no expansion of the plant footprint, so no
additional impacts will be incurred.

Impact BlO-1b: California Red-Legged frog

Construction will likely not affect CRLF because jack and bore trenchless pipe installation will be
used to drill beneath Santa Ana Creek, avoiding all impacts to the riparian area. Jack and bore
installation does not carry the risk of frac-out as it does not involve the use of drilling fluid. If CRLF
migrate outside of the riparian corridor they could be directly killed or injured by construction
equipment operating. By implementing MM BiO-1a and 1b, impacts to CRLF would remain less than
significant as preconstruction surveys would ensure that no CRLF are present in the work area and
exclusion fencing excludes additional individuals from accessing the work area. Sediment release
during construction could indirectly impact CRLF by burying suitable egg deposition vegetation and
rootwads. Erosion and sedimentation measures included in the Project's SWPPP will minimize the

February 2025 | 29



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

potential for inadvertent release of sediment into the riparian corridor. Construction of new features
at the WHWTP would occur within the existing disturbed footprint and are unlikely to disturb CRLF.

Impact BIO-1c: Swainson’s hawk

The trees within the corridor of Santa Ana Creek or scattered trees throughout the agricultural areas
near the ASRs would be suitable nesting habitat within the Project Area. There will be no impacts to
the corridor of Santa Ana Creek as a result of the Proposed Project. All pipeline installation work is
proposed outside of the corridor of Santa Ana Creek. However, if there are trees within the semi-
natural herbaceous stand or agricultural areas that limit access for construction equipment some
limbing or tree removal may be required. If construction occurs during the nesting season, removal
of nesting substrate in the marshes could destroy nests and cause failure. Removal of nesting
substrate could cause adverse effects to the species. Construction noise in the vicinity of nests could
also lead to nest abandonment. Pre-construction nesting bird surveys would be required as
avoidance and minimization. By adhering to MM BIO-1c, loss of nests could be avoided. Impacts
would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated.

Impact BlO-1d: Burrowing Owl

Burrowing owl may utilize small mammal burrows in semi-natural herbaceous stands or agricultural

areas for overwintering habitat. Additionally, agricultural areas may provide foraging habitat for the
species within the Project Area. If occupied burrowing owl dens are within the construction footprint
forthe ASR wells, construction could have the potential to directly and indirectly impact the species.
Collapse of occupied burrows could trap individual owls within burrows, leading to injury or death.

Pre-construction burrow surveys as outlined in MM BIO-1g would decrease the decrease the level of
impact to less than significant with mitigation incorporated. Construction at the WHWTP is unlikely to
impact burrowing owl as all construction will take place within the developed footprint of the existing
facility.

Impact Bio-1e: Western Red Bat

The range of the western red bat overlaps with the Project Area and Santa Ana Creek provides
suitable roosting habitat for the species. However, there will be no direct disturbance to the Santa
Ana Creek corridor and no direct impacts to suitable roosting habitat. In addition, work areas would
be sited over 100 feet away from the riparian corridor along Santa Ana Creek. Therefore, indirect
impacts to the species would also be avoided. The impact to western red bat will be less than
significant.

Impact Bio-1f: Northwestern Pond Turtle

Northwestern pond turtle has been documented upstream of the Project Area in Santa Ana Creek.
As there are no barriers to dispersal, the species could be found within the project area if there is
water in the creek during the time of project activities. Exclusion fencing, as required by MM BIO-1b
will help minimize the risk of NWPT entering the work area. As there will be no direct disturbance to
the Santa Ana Creek corridor, the species should not be directly impacted. Increased noise levels
from construction does have the potential to alter behavior patterns of the species. Implementation
of MM-BIO1f will minimize impacts to a less than significant level.

Impact Bio-1g: San Joaquin Kit Fox

San Joaquin kit fox habitat is present in the area surrounding the WHWTP facility. The ASR well and
pipeline area is not suitable for the species as they are unlikely to establish dens within active
agricultural areas. There will be no expansion of the existing WHWTP footprint, so there will be no

30 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

impact to kit fox habitat. Exclusion fencing will be required around active work areas. The impact to
kit fox will be less than significant.

Mitigation Measures:
MM BIO-1a: California Tiger Salamander Pre-Construction Survey

¢ Prior to the commencement of ground disturbing activities, a qualified biologist will survey the
work area for suitable CTS burrows. Where feasible, a 50-foot no disturbance buffer will be
placed around suitabie CTS upland burrows. If burrows cannot be avoided and will be impacted
by construction, they must first be hand excavated under the supervision of a qualified wildlife
biologist. If CTS are found in the burrows, the biologist will relocate them to the nearest burrow
outside of the construction area.

MM BIO-1b: Exclusion Fencing

¢ Prior to the commencement of ground disturbance, temporary exclusion fencing should be
installed between the active work area and suitable habitat. The exclusion fencing must remain
in place for the duration of activities in that footprint. The exclusion fence will be regularly
maintained to ensure effectiveness. The exclusion fence will have the following properties:

o At least 3 feet in height.

o The top few inches of the exclusion fencing must be folded over and away from the
construction area.

o Refuge opportunities in the form of fallen logs, leaf litter, or artificial cover boards should be
placed along or near the outside of the exclusion fence.

e Work should only occur between the hours 30 minutes after sunrise and 30 minutes before
sunset. No nighttime work.

¢ If there are any open trenches left at the end of the workday, a temporary cover board should be
placed on top so no gaps occur between the cover and the ground. Any trenches or holes that
must be left open shall be fitted with an escape ramp for trapped individuals.

MM BIO-1c: Dry Season Work

s Any ground disturbing work within orimmediately adjacent to CRLF or CTS potential breeding or
migration habitat (ex: within 562 meters [+1,500 feet] of known or potential habitat) shall be
confined to the dry season from June 15 to October 31 to the maximum extent feasible.

MM BIO-1d: CTS Precipitation Work Limits

o No work within 1,500 feet of suitable CTS habitat shall occur if there is a 70% or greater chance
of rainfall predicted by the National Weather Service within 72 hours of project activity. If work
must continue with rain in the forecast, a qualified biologist will survey the Action Area before
construction each day rain is forecast. if rain exceeds 0.25 inch during a 24-hour period, work
will cease until no further rain is forecast. The qualified biologist will survey the work area
following the precipitation event and remove any CTS that may have entered the work area.

MM BlO-1e: Accidental Entrapment Prevention

s To prevent the accidental entrapment of listed species during construction, all excavated holes
or frenches deeper than 6 inches shall be covered at the end of each workday with plywood or
similar materials. Foundation trenches or larger excavations that cannot easily be covered shall

February 2025 | 31



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

be ramped at the end of the workday to allow trapped animals an escape method. Prior to the
filling of such holes, these areas shall be thoroughly inspected for listed species by a qualified
biologist. In the event of a trapped animal, construction shall cease until the individual has been
relocated to an appropriate location

MM Bio-1f: Preconstruction Nesting Bird Surveys

If clearing and/or construction activities would occur during the nesting season (March 1 to
August 31), then preconstruction surveys to identify active migratory bird and/or raptor nests
shall be conducted by a qualified biologist no more than 7 days prior to construction initiation.
Focused surveys shall be performed by a qualified biologist for the purpose of determining the
presence or absence of active nest sites within the following distances form the disturbance
footprint:

o Passerines: Disturbance footprint only, or at the biologist’s discretion
o Raptors: 500 feet, or within sight of the disturbance footprint, whichever is smaller

o Special-status Raptors: 14 mile, or within sight of the disturbance footprint, whichever is
smaller.

If alapse in project activities of 7 days or greater occurs for any reason during the nesting
season, a qualified biologist shall perform another survey for nesting birds and raptors prior to
resuming project activities. If feasible, tree and vegetation clearing will be co nducted outside the
nesting season.

If active nest sites are identified within the survey distances defined in the Nesting Bird and
Raptor Surveys measure, a no-disturbance buffer shall be established for all active nest sites
prior to commencement of any project-related activities to avoid disturbances to nesting
activities. A no-disturbance buffer constitutes a zone in which project-related activities such as
vegetation removal, earth moving, and construction cannot occur. The size of no-disturbance
buffers would be determined by a qualified biologist based on the species, activities in the
vicinity of the nest, and topog raphic and other visual barriers.

A qualified biologist shall monitor all active nests during construction activities until the nest(s) is
deemed inactive. The amount and duration of monitoring would be determined by the qualified
biologistand would depend on the same factors mentioned above when determining the size of
the no disturbance buffer. If active special-status raptor nests are detected and an appropriately
sized no-disturbance buffer (per current national or CDFW guidelines) is not feasible, the
biologist may monitor the nest full time depending on the nest location, or only when noise are
above background levels tolerated by raptors. Monitoring shall occur until the nestlings have
fledged, or the nest is deemed inactive. If disturbance resulting from project activities is
observed, construction may be delayed until the nest is no longer active, as determined by a
qualified biologist, or the appropriate agency can be consulted.

MM Bio-1g: Preconstruction Burrowing Owl Surveys

No more than 30 days prior to ground disturbance, a qualified biologist will survey the proposed
construction area for occupied burrowing owl burrows. If owls are detected and work is
scheduled to occur within nesting season (February 1 through August 31), burrows will be
avoided. No-work buffers of at least 200 meters will be placed around occupied burrows during
the breeding season, and 100 meters during the non-breeding season.

32 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

e If work must occur where burrows are occupied, owls may be passively relocated. This may only
occur outside of the breeding season. Breeding owls must not be disturbed. Owis would be
excluded from burrows in the immediate impact zone within a 160-foot buffer zone by installing
one-way doors in burrow entrances. These doors will be in place at least 48 hours prior to
excavation to ensure the owls have departed.

o The work area will then be monitored daily to ensure that the owls have departed.
MM BlO-1h: Minimization of Light

« Temporary lighting within the Action area should be directed away from suitable roosting habitat
regardless of documented species presence in or within 100 feet of the project area.

MM BIO-1i: NWPT Nest Avoidance

o If work is performed between May-July during northwestern pond turtie nesting season, surveys
for nesting females will be required no more than 48 hours prior to ground disturbance activities.
A qualified biologist shall survey the work site and 400 m up and downstream for signs of nesting
and occupation. If nests are encountered, an exclusion buffer will be delineated around the nest
area where no work shall occur until the end of nesting season. If work must occur within the
nesting area, contact USFWS for relocation authority and procedures.

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural
community identified in local or regional plans, policies, and regulations or by the
California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

The proposed project will utilize jack and bore drilling to install a water transmission pipeline beneath
the bed and bank of Santa Ana Creek. As a result, there will be no direct impact to Santa Ana Creek,
which is the only sensitive natural community within the Project Area. GENMM-1 would be
implemented to ensure that the area of potential impacts on the Santa Ana Creek corridor
environment is as small as possible during construction. MM BIO-2 would require fencing of
sensitive habitats to discourage accidental disturbance during construction. With the institution of
these measures, impacts would be less than significant.

Mitigation Measures:
MM BlO-2: Sensitive Community Fencing

« If sensitive communities occur within 100 feet of proposed ground-disturbing activities,
including construction access routes and temporary work areas, with no pre-existing barrier
petween them and the proposed ground disturbance, protective fencing, such as silt
fencing, will be installed between habitats that are to be avoided and the construction limits
to prevent accidental disturbance and to protect water quality during construction.

c¢) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but
not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling,
hydrological interruption, or other means?

Two aquatic features were identified during the wetland delineation field efforts: Santa Ana Creek
(an intermittent channel) and a drainage channel perpendicular to Fallon Road at Scagliotti Road.
Only Santa Ana Creek would be considered a federal water of the U.S. (HDR 2024). Santa Ana
Creek would be fully avoided during construction as the pipeline would be drilled underneath the
waterway. The drainage channel is an ephemeral feature that connects to Santa Ana Creek and will
be permanently impacted by the installation of six ASR well backwash outfalls. Impacts to this

February 2025 | 33



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

feature will be permitted under Section 401 of the Clean Water Act. Any necessary mitigation will be
compliant with the stipulations of the Clean Water Act permit. Temporary impacts will be restored
onsite to pre-project conditions. Mitigation through the use of permits will keep impacts to aless than
significant level. No additional mitigation is required.

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or
wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or
impede the use of wildlife nursery sites?

Santa Ana Creek is the main migratory route that runs through the Project Area. CTS and CRLF
may utilize the creek as a migration corridor. The special-status birds discussed above that have the
potential to nest within the Project Area do migrate throughout the region but are not solely reliant on
the Santa Ana Creek corridor. No work is proposed within Santa Ana Creek, and nothing will impede
migration of species throughout the Project Area during construction. Construction of the discharge
outfalls in the drainage channel would occur outside of the CTS migratory season and would not
impact migration. Work around the WHWTP will be limited to the disturbed footprint and would not
alter current conditions. During the operational phase impacts to migration would be less than
significant and no mitigation measures are proposed.

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a
tree preservation policy or ordinance?
The policies cited from the City of Hollister General Plan and the San Benito County General Plan
mainly pertain to preserving open space, endangered species habitats, and minimizing impacts to
sensitive environments. Impact areas for the proposed project are limited to previously disturbed
areas and active agricuitural fields, neither of which provide optimal endangered species habitat or
qualify as sensitive environments. Tree removal is not anticipated to complete project work. As a
result, the project will not conflict with any local policies or ordinances. There will be no impact.

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community
Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

San Benito County is in the process of developing the San Benito County Conservation Plan which
will be a joint Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) and Natural Community Conservation Plan (NCCP).

The Project Area will be included in the plan area, but the HCP/NCCP has not yet been developed.

As a result, the project does not conflict with any HCP/NCCP and there wili be no impact.

34 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.8 Cultural Resources
Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
tmpact Unless impact
Mitigation
Incorporated

a) Cause a substantial adverse changein d O O
the significance of a historical resource
pursuant to §15064.57
b) Cause a substantial adverse change in O X O
the significance ofan archaeological
resource pursuant to §15064.57
¢) Directly or indirectly destroy @ unique O ® ‘ O \ O

paleontological resource or site or
unique geologic feature?

d) Disturb any human remains, including O = O
those interred outside of dedicated
cemeteries?

3.8.1 Impact Analysis

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant
to §15064.57

The proposed Project would not cause a substantial adverse change in the sig nificance of a historical
resource as defined in Section 15064.5 because no cultural resources located in or near the Project
area that qualify as CEQA historical resources would be affected by the proposed Project. There would
be no impact.

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource
pursuant to §15064.5?

The cultural resource inventory and intensive pedestrian survey did not identify archaeologica
resources. Nevertheless, it is possible that a currently unknown archaeological resource could be
encountered. If any previously unidentified buried resources are encountered and damaged during
construction, the destruction of the archaeological resources would be a potentially significant impact.
MM-CUL-1 would require implementation of measures to ensure that any unanticipated cultural
resources discovered during Project-related ground-disturbing activities are appropriately handled and
documented and that all necessary parties are contacted and coordinated withina timely manner, in
order to either avoid or minimize impacts on the cultural resources. Implementation of MM-CUL-1
would reduce this impact to aless than significant level.

Mitigation Measures:

MM-CUL-1: If unrecorded cultural resources are encountered during Project-related ground-disturbing
activities, a qualified cultural resources specialist shall be contacted to assess the potentid
significance of thefind. If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.9- unusual amounts of shell,
animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, structure/building remains) is made during Project-related
construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find will be halted, and a qualified
professional archaeologist will be notified regarding the discovery. The archaeologist will determine
whether the resource is potentially sig nificant per the CRHR and develop appropriate mitigation, such
as avoidance or data recovery. Construction work can continue on other parts of the project while
archaeological mitigation takes place.

February 2025 | 35



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature?

There are no records of any paleontological resources within the proposed Projectarea. Due to past
ground disturbance by development and agricultural activities, it is unlikely that any intact
paleontological resources would be encountered within the Project area. However, paleontological
resources have been encountered in the County, and the possibility exists that such resources could
be encountered during construction activities. MM GEO-1 would set forth procedures to address any
paleontological discoveries. No unique geological features are known to exist within the vicinity of
the proposed Project area. Impacts would be less than significant with mitigation.

Mitigation Measures:

MM GEO-1: If any paleontological resources are encountered during construction activities, all
construction work within 50 feet of the encounter shall be halted until a qualified paleontologist can
examine the find. If the find is determined to be significant, then the paleontologist shall recommend
measures that may include, but are not limited to, preservation in place or excavation and curation.
Work shall not resume around the find until the recommendations of the paleontologist are
implemented.

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

No evidence forprecontact orearly historic interments has been found inthe Project area to the extent
documented. However, this does not preclude the existence of buried human remains. California law
recognizes the need to protect historic-era and Native American human burials, skeletal remains, and
items associated with Native American interments from vandalism and inadvertent destruction.
Damage to or destruction of human remains during Project construction or other Project-related
activities would be considered a significant impact.

In accordance with the California Health and Safety Code Sections 7050.5 and 7052, and Public
Resources Code Section 5097.98, if human remains are uncovered during ground-disturbing
activities, all such activities in the vicinity of the find would be halted immediately, and the San Benito
County coroneris to be notified to arrange the propertreatment and disposition of the human remains.
If the remains are identified—on the basis of archaeological context, age, cultural associations, or
biological traits—as those of a Native American, California Health and Safety Code 7050.5 and Public
Resource Code 5097.98 require that the coroner notify the Native American Heritage Commission
(NAHC) within 24 hours of discovery. The NAHC will then identify the Most Likely Descendent who
will, in coordination with the landowner, determine the manner in which the remains are treated.
Compliance with the applicable codes would reduce impacts on any encountered human remains to
a level that would be less than significant.

36 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.9 Energy

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Resultin potentially significant O | X O

environmental impact due to wasteful,
inefficient, orunnecessary consumption
of energy resources, during project
construction or operation?

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local 0 O X [
plan for renewable energy or energy
efficiency?

3.9.1 Impact Analysis

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or
unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

Energy use consumed by the proposed Project is expected to be relatively low due to the nature of
the proposed operations, and because the construction of the proposed Project would conform to
state and local standards for energy efficiency.

The anticipated construction schedule assumes that the proposed Project would be built over a
period of approximately 23 months. The proposed Project would require site preparation,
construction, and rehabilitation of construction sites. The construction phase would require energy
for the manufacture and transportation of building materials, preparation of the site (e.g., excavation,
and grading), and the actual construction of the buildings. Petroleum-based fueis such as diese! fuel
and gasoline would be the primary sources of energy for these tasks.

The overall construction schedule and process is designed to be efficient in order to avoid excess
monetary costs. Equipment and fuel are not used wastefully due to the added expense associated
with renting, maintaining, and fueling the equipment. The proposed Project would implement

applicable construction methods and BMPs to reduce any potentially inefficient energy consumption.

Operation of the proposed Project would consume energy in the form of electricity for uses related to
pumping water. The proposed Project would be built to the most recent California Building Code
standards and Title 24 energy efficiency standards. As a result, implementation of the proposed
project would not result in substantial operational energy impacts. impacts would be less than
significant.

b) Confiict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

Construction and operation of the proposed Project would have a less than significant impact due to
energy usage and efficiency and, thus, would not conflict with local or state plans for energy
efficiency. As aresult, the proposed Project would comply with existing state energy standards and
would not conflict with or obstruct a state or local pian for renewable energy or energy efficiency.
Impacts would be less than significant.

Februarvy 2025 | 37



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.10 Geology and Soils

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential
substantial adverse effects, including the
risk of loss, injury or death involving:

i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, O O O X
as delineated on the most recent
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning
Map issued by the State Geologist for
the area or based on other substantial
evidence of a known fauit? Refer to
Division ofMines and Geology Specia
Publication 42?

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking?

iii. Seismic-related ground failure,
including liquefaction?
iv. Landslides?

b) Resultin substantial soil erosion or the
loss of topsoil?

c) Be located on ageologicunit or soil that
is unstable, or that would become
unstable as a result of the project and
potentially resultin on- or off-site
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,
liquefaction, or collapse?

ol gyof ojg
al gie| oo
X XX OX
al oo x|O0

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined O O X O
in Table 18-1B of the Uniform Building
Code (1994), creating substantial direct
or indirect risk to life or property?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately O O X O
supporting the use of septic tanks or
alternative wastewater disposal systems
where sewers are not available for the
disposal of wastewater?

f) Directly orindirectly destroy a unique O X O |
paleontological resource or site or
unique geologic feature?

3.10.1

a-i) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving: Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on
the most recent Alquist -Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State
Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to
Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42?

Impact Analysis

No faults identified under the Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act, or any other active faults,
pass through the proposed Project area. The only mapped fault within the proposed Project area is
the concealed Carnadero Fault near the raw water pump station. The fault is buried beneath recent

creek deposits and is not considered capable of rupture because there is no evidence of Holocene
or late Quaternary activity on the fault. Thus, there would be no impact with respect to fault rupture
on the site.

2R | Fehnians 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

a-ii) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving: Strong seismic ground shaking?

Due to the location of the proposed Project, ground shaking would likely occur at some point during
the life of Project operations. Most structures such as roads, paved areas, and pump stations, as
well as surface and buried pipelines, could be subject to damage from earthquakes and earthquake-
induced ground failures. However, the effects of ground shaking on the proposed structures and
pipelines would be accounted for by design and construction detailing in accordance with the
foundation and seismic design provisions included in applicable state and local building codes,
including the Califoria Building Code. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant.

a-iii) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving: Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

Soils within the proposed Project area are at low risk for liquefaction. Static groundwater levels in the
area are typically too deep to result in liquefaction effects at the surface (ESA 2014). In addition, the
proposed Projectis not located within a California Geologic Survey Liquefaction Zone (USDA 2024).
No other seismic-related ground failure risks were identified within the proposed Project area. No
impact would occur.

a-iv) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of
loss, injury or death involving: Landslides?

The ASR well sites and water transmission pipeline would be constructed on relatively flat land, and
therefore would not be susceptible to landslides. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

Construction activities associated with the proposed Project, including clearing, grading, and
disturbances to the ground such as stockpiling and excavating, could expose soils to erosive forces
such as wind and water. Because the proposed Project would result in over an acre of ground
disturbance, the proposed Project would be required to obtain coverage under the SWRCB’s
General Pemit for Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Construction Activity (Construction
General Permit; Order 2009-0009-DWQ). The Construction General Permit requires development
and implementation of a Stormwater Poliution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) that includes best
management practices to be implemented to avoid or minimize adverse water quality impacts.
Compliance with the Construction General Permit, including preparation and implementation of a
SWPPP, would reduce soil erosion impacts. impacts would be less than significant.

¢) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a
result of the project and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading,
subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse?

There is a low potential for liquefaction to occur in the Hollister area. The SBCWD, under contract
with HDR, conducted geotechnical and utility explorations within the proposed Project area,
including the proposed pipeline alignment and at the ASR well sites. The proposed Project will be
designed to address any identified geotechnical issues in accordance with applicable laws,
regulations, and standards. Impacts would be less than significant.

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1B of the Uniform Building Code
(1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risk to life or property?

The proposed Project would take place within the footprint of the existing pipeline, which is in an
area of artificially compacted and stabilized soils. While some expansive clay soils are located within

February 2025 | 39



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

the agricultural fields surrounding the proposed ASR wells, construction and operation of these wells
and appurtenant structures would not be negatively impacted by these soils. Impacts would be less
than significant.

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative
wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of
wastewater?

No new wastewater disposal systems are proposed as part of the Project. No impact would occur.

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic
feature?

There are no records of any paleontological resources within the proposed Projectarea. Due to past
ground disturbance by development and agricultural activities, it is unlikely that any intact
paleontological resources would be encountered within the Project area. However, paleontological
resources have been encountered in the County, and the possibility exists that such resources could
be encountered during construction activities. MM GEO-1 would set forth procedures to address any
paleontological discoveries. No unique geological features are known to exist within the vicinity of
the proposed Project area. Impacts would be less than significant with mitigation.

Mitigation Measures:

MM GEO-1: If any paleontological resources are encountered during construction activities, all
construction work within 50 feet of the encounter shall be halted until a qualified paleontologist can
examine the find. If the find is determined to be significant, then the paleontologist shall recommend
measures that may include, but are not limited to, preservation in place or excavation and curation.
Work shall not resume around the find until the recommendations of the paleontologist are
implemented.

40 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.11 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, O O X 0

either directly or indirectly, that may
have a significant impacton the
environment?

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, 0 O b g
orregulation adopted for the purpose of
reducing the emissions of greenhouse
gases?

3.11.1 Impact Analysis

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a
significant impact on the environment?

Construction of the proposed Project would emit GHG emissions from the combustion of diesel fuel
in heavy equipment. Construction GHG emissions are a one-time release and are typically
considered separate from operational emissions, as global climate change is inherently a cumulative
effect that occurs over a long period of time and is quantified on a yearly basis. Because Project
related emissions are inherently temporary, construction emissions would be below the significance
threshold. Therefore, construction-related GHG impacts are considered less than significant.

Emissions from operations of the proposed Project would be limited to vehicle trips for project
operations and maintenance. These activities would result in a negligible increase in additional
traffic, and the resulting additional trips would not generate GHG emissions that would exceed the
significance threshold of 1,100 metric tons CO2e. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing
the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Because construction emissions from the proposed Project would be below the threshold of
significance and minimal operational GHG emissions would be generated, the proposed Project
would not generate GHG emissions that would conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs, including the Climate Action Plans
currently being prepared and the State’s Scoping Plans. The proposed Project’s contribution to
cumulative effects associated with climate change is considered less than significant.

February 2025 | 41



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.12 Hazards and Hazardous Materials
Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Create a significant hazard to the public O O X O

or the environment through the routine
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous
materials?

X
O

b) Create a significant hazard to the public O a
or the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident
conditions involving the likely release of
hazardous materials into the
environment?

X

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle O O O
hazardous or acutely hazardous
materials, substances, or waste within
one-quarter mile of an existing or
proposed school?

d) Be located on asite which isincluded on O O X O
a list of hazardous materials sites
compiled pursuantto Government Code
Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would
it create a significanthazard to the public
or the environment?

®
—

For a project located within an airport ] O X a
land use plan or, where such a plan has
not been adopted, within two miles of a
public airportor public use airport, would
the project result in a safety hazard or
excessive noise for people residing or
working in the project area?

f) For aproject within the vicinity of a O 0 O X
private airstrip, would the project result
in a safety hazard for people residing or
working in the Project area?

g) Impair implementation of or physically O O O
interfere with an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation
plan?

h) Expose people or structures, either O O X O
directly orindirectly, to a significant risk
of loss, injury, or death involving wildland
fires?

3.12.1 Impact Analysis

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport,
use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

Construction activities would involve the use of Sodium hypochlorite (i.e., bleach), fuels, lubricants,
paints, and solvents. Storage and use of hazardous materials at the construction site and staging
areas could result in the accidental release of small quantities of hazardous materials, which could
result in exposures to construction workers and/or degrade soil and groundwater quality at the
project site, and surface water quality in downstream water bodies.

42 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration :
Accelerated Drought Response Project

As discussed in Section 3.10, Geology and Soils, Project construction would require preparation of a
SWPPP and implementation of best management practices to minimize the risk of a hazardous
materials release during construction activities. Best management practices would include protection
measures for the temporary onsite storage of fuel and other hazardous materials used during
construction, inciuding requirements for secondary containment and berming to prevent any such
release from reaching an adjacent waterway or stormwater collection system. All equipment and
materials storage would be routinely inspected for leaks, and records maintained for documenting
compliance with the storage and handling of hazardous materials. Through compliance with
construction water quality regulations, potential adverse effects related to reasonably foreseeable
upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous construction chemicals into the
environment would be less than significant.

Operation of the pipelines and ASR well sites would not involve significant use of potentially
hazardous materials. The one ASR well site containing the chemical storage building would house
relatively small amounts of necessary chemicals used for operational activities of the system. The
site would comply with all applicable regulations pertaining to the use and storage of hazardous
materials.

As required by law, the contractor would prepare a HMBP that outlines hazardous materials storage
and handling, emergency response and notification procedures, and employee health and safety
training requirements. The HMBP would include an emergency response and contingency plan
specifying procedures to contain a release or threatened release of hazardous materials, as well as
required training for employees involved in handling hazardous materials. The HMBP would also
provide local agencies with the information needed to plan appropriately for a chemical release, fire,
or other incident. Through compliance with legal requirements, potential impacts related to the
storage and use of hazardous materials during project operations would be less than significant.

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the likely release of hazardous

materials into the environment?

Implementation of the proposed Project is not anticipated to create a significant hazard to the public
or environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release
of hazardous materials into the environment. Construction and operation of the proposed Project
could result in the accidental release of a hazardous material resulting in a potential hazard to the
public. Construction activities would require the use of hazardous materials (e.g., fuel for
construction equipment, oil, solvents, or paints). Hazardous materials impacts could aiso occur
during operation due to growing operations or maintenance activities. Hazardous materials used
during construction and operation would be stored properly within the staging area, in accordance
with best management practices and applicable regulations, and the staging area would be secured
from public access and identified per County requirements. Runoff controls would be implemented to
prevent water quality impacts, and a spill plan would be developed to address any accidental spills.
Any waste products resuiting from construction and operations would be stored, handled, and
recycled or disposed of in accordance with federal, state, and local laws. Impacts would be less than
significant.

¢) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials,
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school?

There are no schools located within one-quarter mile of the Proposed Project area. Although the
proposed Project would involve hazardous materials typical of a construction project, the use of

February 2025 | 43



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

these materials would be in compliance with federal, state, and local regulations, as described
above. No impact would occur.

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a
significant hazard to the public or the environment?

According to the EnviroStor database maintained by the DTSC, the proposed Project is not located
on any active hazardous material cleanup sites (DOTC 2024). While the proposed pipeline along
San Felipe Road and Fallon Road is in the vicinity of two cleanup sites listed in the database, none
of these sites are considered active and all violations have been resolved. Impacts would be less
than significant.

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result

in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

Portions of the proposed Project are located within a two-mile radius of the Hollister Municipal
Airport. The proposed water transmission pipeline along San Felipe Road and Fallon Road would be
installed within the existing right-of-way that runs adjacent to the southeastern boundary of the
airport’s footprint. According to the Hollister Municipal ALUCP, land uses associated with the
proposed Project such as Transportation Routes and non-livestock Agriculture would not pose a
significant noise or safety risk (San Benito County ALUC 2012). In addition to land uses associated
with sensitive receptors, safety hazards associated with airports are generally related to construction
of tall structures and the creation of wildlife attractants (e.g., wetlands, golf courses, and waste
disposal operations) that could interfere with airplane flight paths.

No tall structures or features that would attract people or animals to the area would be constructed.
The water transmission pipeline would be installed underground, and the ASR well sites located
along Fallon Road would not be tall enough to interfere with airplane flight paths. In addition, the
ASR well sites would not be occupied structures and would only require maintenance workers on-
site on an as needed basis. Impacts would be less than significant.

f) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result
in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

There are no private airstrips in the vicinity of the proposed Project. There would be no impact.

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response
plan or emergency evacuation plan?

San Benito County has prepared the San Benito County Operational Area Emergency Operations
Plan (Emergency Plan) in coardination with the cities of Hollister and San Juan Bautista and two
water agencies. The Emergency Plan designates certain roadways in the County for primary
evacuation routes. Panoche Road is the primary evacuation roadway for the County. Portions of the
proposed Project, located on San Felipe Road, could physically interfere with designated evacuation
routes or otherwise conflict with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation
plan. However, the proposed Project would be required to follow the 2022 Caltrans Standard
Specifications for general construction traffic control. Traffic control would be required on the east
side of San Felipe Road, which would have reduced access for trenching of the new pipeline. The
implementation of a traffic control plan would reduce potential conflicts with emergency response
and evacuation plans. Impacts would be less than significant.

A4 | Fahnians 2N258



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ,
Accelerated Drought Response Project

h) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss,
injury, or death involving wildland fires?

The proposed Project site is not located in any fire hazard severity zone as delineated by CAL FIRE.
While the proposed Project is located in a semirural area, it is not adjacent to wildlands. While
wildfire could occur on-site or on adjacent properties, the proposed Project would comply with
applicable fire safety provisions of the California Building Code and standard conditions of approval,
thereby reducing the risk of damage from fire to the maximum extent practicable. Impacts would be
less than significant.

February 2025 | 45



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.13 Hydrology and Water Quality

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area:

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Potentially
Significant
Unless
Mitigation
Incorporated

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No Impact

a) Violate any water quality standards or
waste discharge requirements or
otherwise substantially degrade surface
ar ground water quality?

a

]

b) Substantially decrease groundwater
supplies or interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such that the
project may impede sustainable
groundwater management of the basin?

X

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage
pattern of the site or area, including
through the alteration of the course of a
stream orriverorthrough the addition of
impervious surfaces, in a manner which
would:

i. resultin substantial erosion or siltation
on- or off-site;

ii. substantially increase the rate or
amount of surface runoffin a manner
which would resultin flooding on- or
offsite;

iii. create or contribute runoffwater which
would exceed the capacity of existing
or planned stormwater drainage
systems or provide substantial
additional sources of polluted runoff;
or

iv. impede or redirectflood flows?

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche
zones, risk release of pollutants due to
projectinundation?

X (X

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation
of a water quality control plan or
sustainable groundwater management

_plan?

3.13.1 Impact Analysis

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise
substantially degrade surface or ground water quality?

Construction of the proposed Project would take place within previously disturbed environments
such as the WHWTP footprint and the existing rights-of-way of San Felipe Road and Fallon Road.
Portions of the proposed Project would be constructed within active agricultural fields, which, while
containing pervious surfaces, are still considered previously disturbed land. However, construction of
the proposed Project may have the potential to result in degradation of surface water and
groundwater quality. Construction activities associated with the proposed Project, including grading,
staging, trenching, and excavation, could make soils more susceptible to erosive forces. Eroded

material could be transported to a receiving stream or other type of waterway. Clearing, grading and

46 | February 2025




Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

compaction activities may also increase the rate of runoff from the construction areas, possibly
resulting in increased erosion and sedimentation within nearby receiving waters.

Construction activities could also result in the accidental release of other poliutants including oil and
grease, solvents, petroleum hydrocarbons, chemical substances used during construction, waste
concrete, and wash water. Contaminated runoff could enter on-site drainage channels and uitimately
drain off-site to downstream waterbodies. Further, the accidental release of pollutants to surface
waters or the ground surface would have the potential to infiltrate and contaminate groundwater,
affecting groundwater quality.

ASR well backflush and treated pipeline water will be discharged through six separate outfalls (one
for each ASR well, plus the water transmission line — see Table 2-1) into the agricultural drainage
ditch running northward from ASR Well 5. All discharges will be required to meet Central Coast
RWQCB Basin Plan discharge standards. Regular monitoring and reporting will be required to
demonstrate compliance with waste discharge requirements and water quality objectives.

Because the proposed Project would disturb more than one acre of soil, all construction activities
would be subject to the provisions and requirements of the General Construction Permit. As a
requirement of the General Construction Permit, the SBCWD and/or the contractor would be
required to prepare a SWPPP, which would include relevant BMPs to reduce or eliminate the
impacts of construction activities on stormwater and receiving water quality and quantity. These
BMPs would include such measures as scheduling practices to avoid earthwork during periods of
heavy rainfall, minimizing the amount of time soils are exposed to wind and rain, and stabilizing and
protecting soils prior to anticipated rainfall events and after construction would be completed. In
addition, the SWPPP requires that construction sites employ sedimentation and erosion control
BMPs, such as containment of the site within silt fences and coir rolls and installation of slope breaks
(e.g., straw wattles) near drainages and road crossings, and it would require that existing vegetation
be preserved to the maximum extent feasible.

An exploratory borehole was constructed to determine existing groundwater quality in the vicinity of
the proposed ASR well locations. Groundwater in the proposed Project area was found to be of
generally high quality. While elevated concentrations of some contaminants were found in multipie
zones, the primary regional water quality constituents of concern were mostly below regulatory
thresholds or not detected. Water quality of the deepest two zones appeared generally good,
however, detections of iron, manganese, and boron, were found to be above regulatory levels.
These two zones also had concentrations of arsenic that were somewhat elevated, yet below the
relevant levels. Soil samples from these zones showed the presence of some metals including iron,
arsenic, and chromium.

A preliminary geochemical evaluation was conducted to investigate potential adverse chemical
reactions between the groundwater, sediments, and municipal and industrial (M&I) water. Overall,
the native groundwater, aquifer matrix, and potential recharge waters (M&! water) were found to be
generally compatible. Native groundwater may be more saline but would be generally similar to the
M&I water in terms of chemical makeup. Release of regulated chemical constituents of concern
(COCs) that could potentially lower quality of recharged water was found to be a small to negligible
impact. However, oninjection, a gradient of salinity would exist between native groundwater and the
recharge water bubble. The magnitude of that gradient would be caused by physical mixing rather
than a geochemical process. It was found that using the identified recharge waters would be
compatible with the native groundwater environment. Construction and operation of the proposed

February 2025 | 47



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Project would not violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise
substantially degrade surface or ground water quality. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater
recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the
basin?

The proposed Project would improve groundwater supply and recharge by injecting additional water
into existing ambient groundwater. The proposed Project would have the capacity to inject, store,
and extract up to 2,700 AF of water between the five ASR wells.

Simulated operations were conducted for the proposed five ASR wells near Fallon Road. The
operations assumed that each well would receive up to a maximum of 500 acre-feet of CVP water —
the amount a well injecting at 500 gallons per minute could inject over a nine-month injection season
(June through February). Movement of water to and from the ASR wells was simulated using the
particle tracking method. The results of the simulation indicate that most of the traces of the particles
leave a well and later retum to it because the injected water is extracted after a few years. Particles
at the ASR wells traveled only 500 to 2,000 feet over the course of the simulation, and 76 percent of
them were recaptured by the ASR well where they were injected. By contrast, simulations for ASR
wells in southwestern Hollister indicated particles would travel up to 5,600 feet from the well of
injection and in most cases traveled beyond the recapture zone of the well. As a result of the shorter
distance traveled underground by water injected in the Fallon Road ASR wells, there would likely be
less mixing of injected and ambient groundwater prior to extraction, which should generally result in
better quality of recovered water than in southwestern Hollister.

The proposed Project would not substantially increase the number of impervious surfaces within the
Project area. Expansion of the WHWTP would take place within the existing facility footprint, while
the proposed water transmission pipeline would be primarily constructed within the existing rights-of-
way of San Felipe Road and Fallon Road. While the ASR wells would be constructed within active
agricultural fields, each site would be no larger than 0.25-acre. Implementation of the proposed
Project would not interfere with groundwater supplies or recharge. Impacts would be less than
significant.

c-i) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through
the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious
surfaces, in a manner which would: result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-
site?

The proposed Project would generally be located within previously disturbed areas such as existing
road rights-of-way and would not greatly expand the number of impervious surfaces in the area.
Construction of the water transmission pipeline, WHWTP expansion, and ASR wells would take
place on previously disturbed lands. Expansion of the WHWTP would take place within the existing
footprint of the facility. The new water transmission pipeline would be constructed underneath San
Felipe Road and Fallon Road and would be rehabilitated to previous conditions upon the completion
of construction. A portion of the pipeline would be installed beneath Santa Ana Creek. This would be
accomplished by boring underneath the creek to avoid any potential alterations to the streambed.
ASR wells would be constructed on active agricultural land, but each well would be no larger than
0.25-acre in size.

The proposed Project would be required to prepare a SWPPP, which would include relevant BMPs
to reduce or eliminate the impacts of construction activities on stormwater and receiving water

48 | February 2025



Draft initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

quality and quantity. These measures would include BMPs to reduce the amount of erosion and
sedimentation caused by Project construction.

Due to the relatively small footprint of the proposed facilities and their locations, the proposed
facilities would not substantially alter site drainage or the course of Santa Ana Creek. Pipelines
would be buried underground, and above ground structures would be located away from water
courses in a manner that would not result in substantial erosion or siltation on or off-site. Impacts
would be less than significant.

c-ii) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through
the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious
surfaces, in a manner which would: substantially increase the rate or amount of surface
runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or offsite?

The proposed Project would include necessary drainage infrastructure as to not create additional
runoff. New localized drainage facilities would be constructed at the ASR well sites. In addition to the
ASR well sites, the centralized chlorination facility would include sufficient onsite stormwater
drainage. Runoff from these sites would be relatively minor and would be collected on site. Minor
alteration of existing drainage patterns within agricultural lands at these sites would not increase the
rate or amount of surface runoff such that either on or off-site flooding would occur, result in an
exceedance of the capacity of the existing stormwater drainage systems or create additional sources
of polluted runoff.

No additional runoff would be created from the proposed Project within the WHWTP footprint and
San Felipe Road and Fallon Road rights-of-way, as these surfaces would be rehabilitated to
previous conditions after construction is completed. Impacts would be less than significant.

c-iii) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through
the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious
surfaces, in a manner which would: create or contribute runoff water which would
exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide
substantial additional sources of polluted runoff?

In addition to erosion and sedimentation, operation and maintenance of the proposed Project has
the potential to result in the discharge of contaminants to receiving waters, such as pollutants that
accumulate on impervious surfaces during the dry season and get washed off during the rains. In
addition, operation and maintenance of the proposed Project would require the use and storage of
various chemicals and fuels used in the water treatment process. However, all chemicals would be
stored in bulk chemical storage tanks located in an enclosed area on a concrete slab, and all
chemical piping located outside of the chemical containment area would be installed in double-
contained piping.

With these precautions, any leak or spill would be contained onsite and would not reach receiving
waters. In addition, the implementation of a SWPPP, a condition of the required General
Construction Permit, would reduce the likelihood of any polluted waters leaving the proposed Project
area. Impacts would be less than significant.

c-iv) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through
the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious
surfaces, in a manner which would: impede or redirect flood flows?

The proposed Project would not lead to a significant increase in impervious surfaces and would not
impede existing flood flows. The proposed Project would include the preparation of a SWPPP, which

February 2025 | 49



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

would reduce the risk of uncontrolled stormwater releases. The section of the new water
transmission pipeline crossing Santa Ana Creek would be accomplished by boring underneath the
streambed. Therefore, no alteration of the streambed would be necessary. Impacts would be less
than significant.

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project
inundation?

The proposed Project is not located in a tsunami or seiche zone. There would be no impact.

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable
groundwater management plan?

Implementation of the proposed Project would require the preparation of a SWPPP under the
General Construction Permit. Additionally, the Hollister Municipal Code requires all development
projects in the City to be designed to detain stormwater runoff on-site, consistent with the most
current requirements, in order to prevent stormwater from entering the storm drain system.

Ultimately, the project would result in a net benefit for current groundwater storage. Due to the
minimal increase in impervious surfaces, the proposed Project would not significantly inhibit
groundwater recharge. The project would not substantially contribute to the depletion of groundwater
supplies and would not substantially interfere with groundwater recharge. Therefore, the Project
would not conflict with water quality control plans or groundwater management efforts. Impacts
would be less than significant.

50 | Februarv 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.14 Land Use and Planning

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Uniess impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Physically divide an established O O X
community?
b) Cause a significant environmental O 0 X |

impact due o a conflict with any land
use plan, policy, or regulation adopted
forthe purpose ofavoiding or mitigating
an environmental effect?

c) Conflict with any applicable HCP or O 0 [ X
NCCP?

3.14.1 Impact Analysis
a) Physically divide an established community?

The proposed Project would not physically divide an established community, as facilities either
would be underground, built on previously developed sites, or built in a rural area. There would be
no impact.

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy,
or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

The installation of new pipelines underneath San Felipe Road and Falion Road would be located
within the existing right-of-way. ASR well sites would be located on private farmland adjacent to
Fallon Road. Private landowners would be compensated for any land used for the ASR well sites,
and any applicable permits would be obtained prior to construction. As discussed in Section 3.2,
Agriculture and Forestry Resources, ASR well sites would have relatively small footprints and would
not result in significant loss of usable farmiand. They also would be consistent with land uses
allowed under the existing agricultural zoning. The project would not conflictwith applicabie land use
plans and regulations. Impacts would be less than significant.

¢c) Confiict with any applicable HCP or NCCP?

The proposed Project area is not currently under an HCP or NCCP. There would be no impact.

February 2025 | 51



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.15 Mineral Resources

Would the project:

locally-important mineral resource
recovery site delineated on alocal
general plan, specific plan, or other land
use plan?

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated

a) Resultin the loss of availability of a O O O X

known mineral resource that would be of

value to the region and the residents of

the state?
b) Resultin the loss of availability of a O O O X

3.15.1 Impact Analysis

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the
region and the residents of the state?

San Benito County identifies areas surrounding Hollister that are considered mineral resource areas
with a Mineral Resource (MR) zoning designation. The proposed Project site is not located in an
area known to contain mineral resources or with a MR designation. There would be no impact.

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery site
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan?

The proposed Project site is not located in an area that has an MR designation. Therefore, it is not in
an area that has been identified as a locally important mineral resource recovery site. There would

be no impact.

52 | February 2025




Draft Initial Study/Suppiemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.16 Noise

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Generation ofa substantial temporary or | X O0 O

permanent increase in ambient noise
levels in the vicinity of the project in
excess of standards established in the
local general plan or noise ordinance, or
applicable standards of other agencies?

b) Generation of excessive groundborne O O X O
vibration or groundborne noise levels?
c) Fora projectlocated within the vicinity of l O ® 0

a private airstrip or an airport land use
plan or, where such a plan has not been
adopted, within two miles of a public
airport or public use airport, would the
project expose people residing or
working in the project area to excessive
noise levels?

3.16.1 Impact Analysis

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in
the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or
noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Construction of the proposed Project would result in short-term noise increases in the Project
vicinity. Noise impacts from construction activities depend on the type of construction equipment
used, the timing and length of activities, the distance between the noise generating construction
activities and receptors and shielding. Construction activities would occur over six months.
Construction equipment wouid include drill rigs, graders, tractors, loaders, backhoes, cement and
mortar mixers, pavers, rollers, saws, dozers, cranes, forklifts, and air compressors. According to the
San Benito County 2035 General Plan, typical hourly construction noise levels could be as loud as
75 - 80 decibels at a distance of approximately 100 feet from the construction area during active
construction periods, The nearest sensitive receptors would be the businesses and residences along
Highway 156 adjacent to the pipeline alignment. Construction of the project would be temporary and
intermittent.

Construction activities would be limited to weekdays between the hours of 7:00 AM and 8:00 PM; no
night-time construction is proposed, which serves to limit noise impacts to neighboring residences.
Moreover, as MM NOI-1, the proposed Project would be required to prepare and implement a
Construction Noise Control Plan consistent with the County’s Health and Safety Policy 8.12 -
Construction Noise Control Plan (San Benito County, 2015a). This policy requires all construction
projects within 500 feet of sensitive receptors to develop and implement construction noise control
plans that consider available abatement measures to reduce construction noise levels as low as
practical. Applicable measures to be considered would include (at a minimum) the following:

o Ultilize ‘quiet’ models of air compressors and other stationary noise sources where technology
exists;

CAabrminns N | R



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

e Equip allinternal combustion engine-driven equipment with mufflers, which are in good condition
and appropriate for the equipment;

e Locate all stationary noise-generating equipment, such as air compressors and portable power
generators, as far away as possible from adjacent land uses;

e Locate staging areas and construction material areas as faraway as possible from adjacent fand
uses;

« Prohibit all unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines;
e Notify all abutting land uses of the construction schedule in writing; and

o Designate a "disturbance coordinator” (contractor foreman or authorized representative) who
would be responsible for responding to any local complaints about construction noise. The
disturbance coordinator would determine the cause of the noise complaint (e.g., starting too
early, bad muffler) and would require that reasonable measures warranted to correct the problem
be implemented. Notices would be posted at the construction site and sent to neighbors
regarding the construction schedule.

Project construction noise would be less than significant with mitigation.

Operation of the proposed Project involves the acquisition and storage of groundwater. The new
pipeline, once installed underground, would not be a significant source of noise. The ASR well sites
would be located on farmland in the vicinity of Fallon Road and would not be located near any
sensitive receptors. The proposed Project would be in operation 24 hours per day and 7 days per
week but would not result in a significant new source of noise. Impacts would be less than
significant.

Mitigation Measures:

MM NOI-1: In accordance with Policy 8-12 of the Health and Safety Element of the San Benito
County General Plan, the Project shall prepare a Construction Noise Control Plan to be reviewed
and approved by San Benito County prior to final Project approval. The Project shall implement the
approved Construction Noise Control Plan.

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

Increases in groundbome vibration levels attributed to the proposed Project would be primarily
associated with co nstruction-related activities. Construction on the proposed Project site would have
the potential to result in varying degrees of groundborne vibration, depending on the specific
construction equipment used and the operations involved. Ground vibration generated by
construction equipment spreads through the ground and diminishes in magnitude with increases in
distance. The effect on buildings located in the vicinity of the construction site often varies depending
on soil type, ground strata, and construction characteristics of the receiver. Vibrations would be
temporary and would cease with the completion of construction work. In particular, work along the
pipeline would last no longer than a few days at any specific location.

The proposed Project would not generate significant groundborne vibration that could be felt at
surrounding receptors. Proposed Project operations would notinvolve typical sources of operational

vibration such as railroads or substantial heavy truck operations, and therefore would not result in
vibration impacts at surrounding uses. Impacts would be less than significant.

c) For aproject Jocated within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or,
where such a plan has not been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use

54 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/SupplementaI Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

airport, would the project exposé people residing or working in the project area to
excessive noise levels?
Portions of the proposed Project are jocated adjacent to or in the vicinity of the Hollister Municipal
Airport. The proposed water transmission pipeline would be adjacent to the airport near the

intersection of San Felipe Road and Fallon Road. The pipeline would intersect both the 55-60 and
60-65 dB CNEL Noise impact Zones, respectively. Some ASR wells may be located within the 55-60

dB CNEL Noise impact Zone.

The water transmission pipeline would be installed by open trenching within the existing right-of-way
forboth San Felipe Road and Fallon Road. While construction crews would be in the vicinity of the
airport, the exposure would be temporary in nature. Operation of the proposed Project woutd not
require any personnel on-site, other than maintenance on an as needed basis. Impacts would be

less than significant.

February 2025 | 55



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.17 Population and Housing

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Induce substantial unplanned population O O O

growth in an area, eitherdirectly (e.g., by
proposing new homes and businesses)
or indirectly (e.g., through extension of
roads or other infrastructure)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing O O O X
people or housing, necessitating the
construction of replacement housing
elsewhere?

3.17.1 Impact Analysis

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (e.g., by
proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (e.g., through extension of roads or
other infrastructure) ?

The proposed Project does not include the construction of new housing, nor would it cause an
increase in the housing supply indirectly through the increased demand for housing or extension of
roads or other infrastructure. The intent of the proposed Project is to provide a supply of water that
can be used in times of drought; it is not intended to support future development. Therefore, it would
not induce any unplanned population growth in the area. There would be no impact.

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the
construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

The proposed Project would not displace existing housing or people because elements of the
proposed Project are located within the public road right-of-way and agricultural fields. None of these

areas have existing housing or residents. There would be no impact.

&6 | Fehniarv 2025




Draft initial Study/SuppIemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.18 Public Services

Would the project resuitin substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new
or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the
public services:

Environmental lssue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
impact Unless impact
Mitigation
Incorporated

i Fire Protection? [ 1 [
i, Police Protection? 0 ] X O
i, Schools? 0 0 O | X
jv. Parks? O ] ] i X
[} ] [l

v. Other public facilities?

3.18.1 Impact Analysis

a-i) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause

significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: Fire
Protection?

The proposed Project would not result in an increased demand for fire protection services, as it
would construct water infrastructure facilities that would not be occupied. Therefore, no new or
expanded fire facilities would be required.

During construction, temporary traffic impacts could potentially lengthen fire crew response times.
However, the proposed Project would be required to follow the 2022 Caltrans Standard
Specifications for general construction traffic control. Traffic control would be required on the east
side of San Felipe Road, which would have reduced access for trenching of the new pipeline. The
implementation of a traffic control plan would reduce potential conflicts with emergency response
times. Impacts would be less than significant.

a-ii) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered govemmental facilities, need for new or
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause

significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: Police
Protection?

The proposed Project would not result in an increased demand for police protection services, as it
would construct water infrastructure facilities that would not be occupied. Therefore, no new or
expanded police facilities would be required. implementation of a traffic control plan would reduce
any potential conflicts with emergency response times. Impacts would be less than significant.

a-iiij) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause

February 2025 | 57



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:
Schools?

The proposed Project would construct water infrastructure facilities that would not be occupied. As it
would not construct any residences, it would not generate an increase in the student population that
would require new or expanded school facilities. No impact would occur.

a-iv) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or

physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: Parks?

The proposed Project would construct water infrastructure facilities that would not be occupied. As it
would not construct any residences, it would not generate an increase in the population that would
require new or expanded park facilities. No impact would occur.

a-v) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios,
response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services: Other
public facilities?

Other public facilities in the area include various City of Hollister offices and the San Benito County
Free Library. The proposed Project would construct water infrastructure facilities that would not be
occupied. As it would not construct any residences, it would not generate an increase in the
population that would require new or expanded City or library facilities. No impact would occur.

58 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.19 Recreation
Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
. Incorporated
a) Would the project increase the use of O O O DY

existing neighborhood and regional
parks or other recreational facilities such
that substantial physical deterioration of
the facility would occur or be
accelerated ?

b) Does the project include recreational O | O X
facilities or require the construction or
expansion ofrecreational facilities, which
mighthave an adverse physical effecton
the environment?

¢) Would the Project affect recreational 0 1 [
facilities or its users by introducing
safety hazard?

X

3.19.1 Impact Analysis

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other
recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would
occur or be accelerated?

The proposed Project would not result in an increase in population that would result in increased use
of existing neighborhood or regional parks. There would be no impact.

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of
recreational facilities, which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

The proposed Project does not include the construction or expansion of recreational facilities that
might have an adverse physical effect on the environment. There would be no impact.

¢} Would the Project affect recreational facilities or its users by introducing safety hazard?

Construction and operation of the proposed Project would not introduce a new safety hazard to
existing recreational facilities. There would be no impact.

February 2025 | 59



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.20 Transportation

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Conflict with @ program plan, ordinance O a X O
or policy addressing the circulation
system, including transit, roadway,
bicycle and pedestrian facilities?
b) Conflict with or be inconsistent with O = X \ O \
CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3,
subdivision (b)?
c) Substantially increase hazards due to a a O O X
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp
curves or dangerous intersections) or
incompatible uses (€.9. farm
equipment)?
d) Resultin inadequate emergency O O X \
access?
e) Resultin a change in air traffic patterns,
including either an increase in traffic
levels ora changein location that results
in substantial safety risks?
f) Resultin inadequate parking capacity? O 0 | ] J

3.20.1 Impact Analysis

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system,
including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

The proposed Project is not considered a trip-generating project. The ASR wells will be situated on
private lands in a rural/agricultural area. Pipelines would be undergrounded within existing rights-of-
way. Operation of the proposed Project is not anticipated to increase traffic. While periodic
maintenance of pipelines and the ASR wells would be required, maintenance activities would result
in a negligible increase in additional traffic.

Construction would result in a short-term increase in traffic levels on roadways in the proposed
Project area. Construction vehicles and equipment expected to be used include, but are not limited
to, haul trucks, delivery and service trucks, and construction worker vehicles. At estimated peak day
levels, up to approximately 30 one-way construction worker vehicle trips could occur. Therefore,
construction-related traffic would result in a negligible increase in traffic volumes throughout the
proposed Project area. Construction of the proposed Project could result in temporary detours to
roadways and pedestrian and bicycle routes; all facilities, including sidewalks and pavement, would
be retumned to pre-existing conditions after construction. Therefore, no long-term impacts to transit,
bicycle, or pedestrian facilities would occur.

Construction of the Proposed Project could result in temporary lane closures. Lane closures, if not
properly regulated, could potentially conflict with a program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing
the circulation system. However, a traffic control plan would be prepared in accordance with local
requirements. Accordingly, the proposed Project would not conflict with an applicable plan,
ordinance, or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle, and
pedestrian facilities, and a less than significant impact would occur.

60 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

b) Conflict with or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?

CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3 describes specific considerations for evaluating a project’s
transportation impacts. Section 15064.3(b) establishes VMT as the most appropriate measure of
transportation impacts, shifting away from the use of level of service analysis that evaluates a
project’'s impacts on traffic conditions at nearby roadways and intersections.

The Office of Planning and Research (OPR) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation
Impacts in CEQA contains screening thresholds for land use projects and suggests lead agencies
may screen out VMT impacts using project size, maps, and transit availability. For small projects,
absent substantial evidence indicating that a project would generate a potentially significant ievel of
VMT, or inconsistency with a SCS or general plan, and projects that generate or attract fewer than
110 trips per day generally, may be assumed to cause a less than significant impact.

As described previously, the proposed Project, a water infrastructure project, would generate a
limited number of vehicle trips, mainly by maintenance and repair vehicles. Therefore, the number of
additional trips generated by the Proposed Project would likely be below the 110-trip screening
threshold for VMT impacts contained in the OPR Technical Advisory. The proposed Project would
cause a less than significant transportation impact related to VMT.

¢) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

The proposed Project does notinclude modification to the existing roadways or design features that
would increase hazards. As described above, construction of the proposed Project could result in
temporary roadway detours; however, all facilities would be returned to pre-existing conditions after
construction, and a traffic control plan would be prepared in accordance with local requirements.
Therefore, the proposed Project would not substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design
feature or incompatible uses. No impact would occur.

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?

Construction of the proposed Project could result in temporary lane closures. Lane closures, if not
properly regulated, could potentially result in inadequate emergency access. However, as described
previously, a traffic control plan shall be prepared in accordance with local requirements. Therefore,
with implementation of a traffic control plan, adequate emergency access would be provided to all
land uses adjacent to construction activities. Accordingly, the proposed Project would not resuit in
inadequate emergency access, and a less than significant impact would occur.

e) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a
change in location that results in substantial safety risks?

The proposed Project would not involve any changes to air traffic pattems. There would be no
impact.

f) Result in inadequate parking capacity?

Construction of the proposed Project may temporarily decrease available parking in the vicinity of
the new water transmission pipeline. However, this area would be restored to previous conditions

upon the completion of construction. Operation of the proposed Project would not result in
inadequate parking capacity within the Project area. Impacts would be less than significant.

February 2025 | 61



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.21 Tribal Cultural Resources

Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource
defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape
that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or
object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Listed or eligible for listing in the O O O X

California Register of Historical
Resources, or in a local register of
historical resources as defined in Public
Resources Code section 5020.1(k)?

b) A resource determined by the lead 0 O ]
agency, in its discretion and supported
by substantial evidence, to be significant
pursuant to criteria set forth in
subdivision (c) of Public Resources
Code Section 5024.1. In applying the
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of
Public Resources Code Section 5024.1,
the lead agency shall consider the
significance of the resource to a
California Native American tribe?

3.21.1

If alead agency determines that a project may cause a substantial adverse change to a TCR, the lead
agency must consider measures to mitigate that impact. Consultation concludes when either: 1) the
parties agree to measures to mitigate or avoid a significant effect, if a significant effect exists, on a
TCR, or 2) a party, acting in good faith and after reasonable effort, concludes that mutual agreement
cannotbe reached (PRC § 21080.3.2). Under existing law, environmental documents must notinclude
information about the locations of an archaeological site or sacred lands or any other information that
is exempt from public disclosure pursuant to the Public Records act.]

Impact Analysis

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local
register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k)?

The proposed Project would not cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical
resource as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k) because no cultural and/or tribal
resources located in or near the project area that qualify as CEQA historical resources would be
affected by the proposed Project. There would be no impact.

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public
Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public
Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the
resource to a California Native American tribe?

Although no specific tribal cultural resources were identified during consultation, any previously
unrecorded archaeological resource discovered during construction, or any other phase of the Project

may also be determined to be a tribal cultural resource perthe CEQA criteria noted above. Protocols

£92 | Eahrmians 202K



Draft Initial Study/Supplementai Environmentai Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

detailed under the Inadvertent Discovery MM CUL-1 would address such a potential impact, along
with applicable State statutes and therefore, impacts to tribal cultural resources would be less than
significant and no additional mitigation measures are required.

February 2025 | 63



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.22 Utilities and Service Systems

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Require or resultin the relocation or O O X O

construction of new or expanded water,
wastewater treatment or storm water
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or
telecommunications facilities, the
construction or relocation of which could
cause significant environmental effects?

b) Have sufficient water supplies available dJ O d X
to serve the project and reasonably
foreseeable future development during
normal, dry and multiple dry years?

c) Resultin a determination by the O O O
wastewater treatment provider, which
serves or may serve the project that it
has adequate capacity to serve the
project’s projected demand in addition to
the provider's existing commitments?

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State O O X O
or local standards, or in excess of the
capacity of local infrastructure, or
otherwise impair the attainment of solid
waste reduction goals?

e) Comply with federal, state, and local 0 O O X
management and reduction statutes and
regulations related to solid waste?

3.22.1

a) Require or resultin the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater
treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications
facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental
effects?

Impact Analysis

The proposed Project would not require or resutt in the construction of new or expanded water or
wastewater treatment facilities, or expansion of existing facilities beyond those evaluated in this joint
environmental document. As described in Chapter 2.0, Project Description, the proposed Project
contractor(s) will implement a USA to identify existing underground utilities and service connections
prior to commencing any excavation work. Existing utilities would be avoided to the maximum extent
practical and protected in place. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable
future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

Proposed Project operations would not consume water. No potable water supplies would be
delivered to customers as part of the proposed Project. As such, the proposed Project would not
require new or expanded entitlements. There would be no impact.

64 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project A

¢) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider, which serves or may
serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in

addition to the provider’s existing commitments?

The proposed Projectwould not generate wastewater. As such, it would not place any demands on
existing wastewater treatment capacity. There would be no impact.

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of
local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

Construction and implementation of the proposed Projectis not anticipated to generate a significant
amount of solid waste. To the extent possible, excavated soil would be reused on site. The
construction contractor(s) would be required to dispose of excavated soil and solid waste generated
during project-related construction in accordance with local solid waste disposal requirements. Once
constructed, operation and maintenance activities would generate minimal solid waste, thereby not
placing demand on capacity at the local landfill. The impact would be less than significant.

e} Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations
related to solid waste?

The proposed Project wouid only generate solid waste during the construction phase. Construction
and operation of the proposed Project would comply with applicable federal, State, and local
management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste. There would be no
impact.

February 2025 | 65



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.23 Wildfire

If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity
zones, would the project:

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Substantially impair an adopted O O X O

emergency response plan oremergency
evacuation plan?

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other O O X O
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and
thereby expose project occupants to,
pollutant concentrations from a wildfire
or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

c) Require the installation or maintenance O 0 X O
of associated infrastructure (such as
roads, fuel breaks, emergency water
sources, power lines or other utilities)
that may exacerbate fire risk or that may
result in temporary orongoing impactsto
the environment?

d) Expose people or structures to O O X O
significantrisks, including downslope or
downstreamflooding or landslides, as a
result of runoff, post-fire slope instability,
or drainage changes?

3.23.1 Impact Analysis

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation
plan?

Construction of the proposed Project could temporarily impact emergency response times and
evacuation routes. Portions of the proposed Project, located on Highway 156, could physically
interfere with designated evacuation routes or otherwise conflict with an adopted emergency
response plan or emergency evacuation plan. However, the proposed Project would be required to
follow the 2022 Caltrans Standard Specifications for general construction traffic control. Traffic
control would be required on the east side of San Felipe Road, which would have reduced access
for trenching of the new pipeline. The implementation of a traffic control plan would reduce potential
conflicts with emergency response and evacuation plans. Impacts would be less than significant.

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby
expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled
spread of a wildfire?

The proposed Project would not exacerbate wildfire risks due to slope, prevailing winds, or other
factors due to the proposed Project’s location away from areas susceptible to wildfire. The proposed
Project site is not located within an area of moderate, high, or very high fire hazard severity for the
LRA. The proposed Project is located in a semi-rural area predominantly surrounded by agricultural
fields and developed urban land uses. Impacts would be less than significant.

66 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ‘
Accelerated Drought Response Project

¢) Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel
breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire

risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

Due to the location of the proposed Project and lack of interface with any natural areas susceptible
to wildfire, infrastructure associated with the proposed Project would not exacerbate fire risk nor
result in temporary or ongoing impacts related to wildfire risk. Impacts would be less than significant.

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream
flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage

changes?

The proposed Project would not expose people or structures to significant wildfire risks, given its
location away from natural areas susceptible to wildfire. The proposed Project is also located in an
area that is considered low in landslide susceptibility due to the predominantly flat topography. As
such, it would not be vuinerable to downslope or downstream flooding that may result from runoff,
post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes. Impacts would be less than significant.

February 2025 | 67



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.24 Environmental Justice

If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity

zones, would the project:

income populations that are
disproportionately high and adverse,
either directly, indirectly, or
cumulatively?

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
Impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Cause impacts to minority or low- ] O X 0O

3.241 Impact Analysis

a) Would the project cause impacts to minority or low-income populations that are
disproportionately high and adverse, either directly, indirectly, or cumulatively?

According to the U.S. Census, the city of Hollister has a median income, in 2023 dollars, of
approximately $101,000 and has a poverty rate of approximately 10% (USCB 2023). The proposed
Project would not be located in areas inhabited by low-income or minority populations. Although
construction would generate impacts such as dust, traffic, and noise, these activities would be

intermittent and temporary and would cease upon completion of work activities. Where potential
impacts could occur, mitigation measures have been identified to reduce such effects to less than
significant. In addition, construction-related effects would be similar regardless of their locations
within or outside census tracts that contain minority/low-income communities. While construction of
the proposed Project has the potential for short-term adverse environmental effects, Project
operations would benefit the Hollister community, including low-income and minority households, by
providing for the storage of water that can be used during dry years, thereby minimizing the need for
substantial reductions in water use. Impacts would be less than significant.

68 | February 2025




Accelerated Drought Response Project

Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)?

3.25

Would the project:

Indian Trust Assets

Environmental Issue Area: Potentially Potentially Less Than No Impact
Significant Significant Significant
impact Unless Impact
Mitigation
Incorporated
a) Have a potential to affect Indian Trust 0 O O X
Assets?
3.25.1 Impact Analysis

a) Would the project have a potential to affect Indian Trust Assets?

The proposed Project does not have a potential to affect Indian Trust Assets, as there are none

within San Benito County.

February 2025 | 69



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Accelerated Drought Response Project

326 CEQA Mandatory Findings of Significance

Would the project:

Environmental Issue Area:

Potentially
Significant
Impact

Potentially
Significant
Unless
Mitigation
Incorporated

Less Than
Significant
Impact

No Impact

a) Does the project have the potential to
substantially degrade the quality of the
environment, substantially reduce the
habitat ofa fish orwildlife species, cause
a fish or wildlife populationto drop below
self-sustaining levels, threaten to
eliminate a plant or animal community,
substantially reduce the number or
restrict the range of arare or
endangered plant or animal or eliminate
importantexamples ofthe major periods
of California history or prehistory?

d

X

O

b) Does the project have impacts that are
individually limited, but cumulatively
considerable (“Cumulatively
considerable” means that the
incremental effects of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection
with the effects of past projects, the
effects of other current projects, and the
effects of probable future projects)?

c) Does the project have environmental
effects, which will cause substantial
adverse effects on human beings, either
directly or indirectly?

|

3.26.1 Impact Analysis

a) Does the project have the potential to su
environment, substantially reduce the ha
wildlife population to drop below self--sustaining levels,

animal community, substantially reduce the number or restri

endangered plant or animal or eliminate

California history or prehistory?

CEQA Determination: The proposed Project
special-status plant and animal species, and

important examples o

bstantially degrade the quality of the

pitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or
threaten to eliminate a plant or
ct the range of a rare or

f the major periods of

is located in a highly disturbed environment where
habitat to support such species are absent. The

proposed Project does not have the potential to substantially degrade habitat for fish or wildlife

species or cause a drop in population levels. While the Proje

ct would not threaten to eliminate a

plant or animal community, it could potentially reduce the number of some special-status species.
However, mitigation measures described in Section 5.7 would reduce these impacts to a level that

would be less than significant. No known historic or pre
Project, and mitigation described in Section 5.8 would re

historic resources would be affected by the
duce impacts on encountered resources to

a level that would be less than significant. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant with

mitigation.

b) Does the project have impacts that
(“Cumulatively considerable” mean

70 | February 2025

arei

ndividually limited, but cumulatively considerable
s that the incremental effects of a project are



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of
other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects)?

CEQA Determination: The Project would have less than significant impacts, with and without
incorporation of mitigation measures, or no impacts on the environment as discussed throughout this
Initial Study. Mitigation measures have been prescribed, where applicable, to reduce all potential
environmental impacts to less than significant levels. Upon implementation of mitigation measures
and compliance with existing regulations, the Project would not have the potential to contribute any
significant cumulative impacts. As has been noted, the proposed Project is intended to provide water
storage, which would be used only during dry years. It is not intended to be used to support future
development of the Hollister area beyond that outlined in the Hollister General Plan. Potential
cumulative impacts of the project would be less than significant.

¢) Does the project have environmental effects, which will cause substantial adverse effects
on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

CEQA Determination: The Project would have less than significant impacts, with and without
incorporation of mitigation measures, or no impacts on the environment as discussed throughout this
Initial Study. Mitigation measures have been prescribed, where applicable, to reduce all potential
environmental impacts to less than significant levels. Upon implementation of mitigation measures
and compliance with existing regulations, the Project would not have the potential to result in
substantial adverse impacts on human beings either directly or indirectly. Therefore, a less than
significant impact is anticipated.

February 2025 | 71



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

4 Consultation and Coordination

4.1 Summary of Public Involvement

This document is a joint CEQA Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) and NEPA
Supplemental Environmental Assessment (SEA). SBCWD will conduct public outreach during the
environmental review process, as required by CEQA. Notices of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative
Declaration (MND) will be published, and a public meeting will be held by the SBCWD Board of
directors to consider adoption of the IS/MND. The combined Initial Study/Supplemental
Environmental Assessment (IS/SEA) will be posted on Reclamation’s website and will be available
for review for 30 days.

4.2 |IS/SEA Document Distribution

The CEQA public review period will start with publication of this document and will end after 30 days.
The NEPA public review period is expected to coincide with the CEQA public review period. SBCWD
will publish notices and will submit the IS/MND to the State Clearinghouse.

4.3 Final MND/NOD

SBCWD will consider adoption of the MND at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors. Meetings
occur monthly, on the second Wednesday of the month. The date for consideration of adoption of
the IS/MND has not yet been determined.

4.4 Public Meetings

As noted above, SBCWD will consider adoption of the IS/MND at a regular Board meeting. The
public will have the opportunity to provide comments at that meeting.

4.5 Compliance with Federal Statutes and Regulations

This section describes the status of compliance with relevant federal laws, executive orders, and
policies, and the consultation that has occurred to date or will occur in the near future. Most of these
regulations involve ongoing compliance, which would occur in coordination with preparation of the
IS/SEA.

Federal Endangered Species Act

Section 7 of the FESA requires federal agencies, in consultation with the Secretary of the Interior, to
ensure that their actions do not jeopardize the continued existence of endangered or threatened
species, or result in the destruction or adverse modification of the critical habitat of these species.
Under Section 7, a project that could result in incidental take of a listed threatened or endangered
species must consult with the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) to obtain a
Biological Opinion (BO). If the BO finds that the project could jeopardize the existence of a listed
species (‘jeopardy opinion”), the agency cannot authorize the project until it is modified to obtain a
“non-jeopardy” opinion.

Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act, Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Aci, and Executive Order
13168

72 | February 2025



Draft initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

The Migratory Bird Treaty Act and the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act prohibit the take of
migratory birds (or any part, nest, or eggs of any such bird) and the take and commerce of eagles.
Executive Order (EQ) 13168 requires that any project with federal involvement address impacts of
federal actions of migratory birds. No impacts migratory birds and other protected birds and their
nests are anticipated by this Project, as no trees would be removed (see Section 3.7, Biological
Resources). As such, the lead agency would be in compliance with this Act.

National Historic Preservation Act

The purpose of this act is to protect, preserve, rehabilitate, or restore significant historical,
archeclogical, and cultural resources. Section 106 requires Federal agencies to take into account
effects on historic properties. Once an undertaking has been established, the Section 106 review
involves a step-by-step procedure described in detail in the implementing regulations (36 CFR Part
800). As described in Section 3.8, Cultural Resources, a cultural resource inventory of the proposed
Project/Action area was conducted (ICFi 2013b). This inventory does not include elements that
provide a full Section 106 evaluation. The full Section 106 compliance is anticipated during the
design phase. Once complete, the cultural resources report will be submitted to Reclamation for
initiation of the consultation process with SHPO. Completion of the cultural resources report and
concurrence by SHPO would ensure compliance with the NHPA.

Executive Order 11988 — Floodplain Management and Executive Order 11990 - Protection of
Wetlands

EO 11988 requires federal agencies to recognize the values of floodplains and to consider the public
benefits from restoring and preserving floodplains. Under EO 11990, federal agencies must avoid
affecting wetlands unless it is determined that no practicable alternative is available. Section 3.12,
Hydrology and Water Quality, discusses proposed facilities relative to the 100-year flood zones.
Portions of the proposed facilities would be located in 100-year flood plains; however, their
placement would occur within existing developed areas and would not exacerbate flooding or create
additional risks to the environment or the public. Section 3.7, Biological Resources, describes
impacts on wetlands. As discussed, no work would occur within creek or canal channels; thus, there
would be no loss of riparian habitat or waters of the U.S. from proposed activities. As such, the lead
agency would be in compliance with these EOs.

Farmiand Protection Policy Act

The Farmland Protection Policy Act (FPPA) requires a federal agency to consider the effects of its
actions and programs on the nation’s farmlands. The FPPA is intended to minimize the impact of
federal programs with respect to the conversion of farmland to nonagricultural uses. It assures that,
to the extent possible, federal programs are administered to be compatible with state, local, and
private programs and policies to protect farmland. The proposed Project/Action would be located
entirely within urban areas and would not occur within any designated important farmlands. As such,
the lead agency would be in compliance with this Act.

Executive Order on Trails for America in the 215t Century

The EO on Trails for America requires federal agencies to protect, connect, promote, and assist
trails of all types throughout the United States. The Delta de Anza Regional Trail is located adjacent
to one of the Near-Term Project components. With implementation of the mitigation measure
identified in this document, no adverse effects on the trail would occur.

Clean Air Act

February 2025 | 73



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

U.S. Congress adopted general conformity requirements as part of the Clean Air Act (CAA)
Amendments in 1990 and the USEPA implemented those requirements in 1993 (Sec. 176 of the
CAA (42 U.S.C. § 7506) and 40 CFR Part 93, Subpart B). General conformity requires that all
federal actions “conform” with the SIP as approved or promulgated by USEPA. The purpose of ‘the
general conformity program is to ensure that actions taken by the federal government do not
undermine state or local efforts to achieve and maintain the national ambient air quality standards.
Before a federal action is taken, it must be evaluated for conformity with the SIP. All “reasonably
foreseeable” emissions predicted to result from the action are taken into consideration. These
include direct and indirect emissions, and must be identified as to location and quantity. If it is found
that the action would create emissions above de minimis threshold levels specified in USEPA
regulations (40 CFR § 93.153(b)), or if the activity is considered “regionally significant” because its
emissions exceed 10 percent of an area’s total emissions, the action cannot proceed unless
mitigation measures are specified that would bring the proposed Project/Action into conformance.

As described in Section 3.6, Air Quality, the proposed Project/Action’s potential emissions are below
minimum thresholds and are well below 10 percent of the area’s inventory specified for each criteria

pollutant designated non-attainment or maintenance for the Bay Area. As such, the lead agency is in
compliance with this Act.

Executive Order 13007 — Indian Sacred Sites

Sacred sites are defined in Executive Order 13007 (May 24, 1996) as "any specific, discrete,
narrowly delineated location on Federal land that is identified by an Indian tribe, or Indian individual
determined to be an appropriately authoritative representative of an Indian religion, as sacred by
virtue of its established religious significance to, or ceremonial use by, an Indian religion; provided
that the tribe or appropriately authoritative representative of an Indian religion has informed the
agency of the existence of such a site." The proposed Project/Action would not be located on or
impact any Federal lands and therefore would not affect any Indian sacred sites.

7A | Eahnians 2N2K



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

5 References

Amah Mutsun Tribal Band. 2024. The Tribal Band. https://www.amahmutsunlandtrust.org/the-tribal-
band. Accessed October 10, 2024.

Bennyhoff, J.A. and Fredrickson, D.A. 1994. A proposed integrative taxonomic system for central
California archaeology. Toward a New Taxonomic Framework for Central California
Archaeology, pp.15-24.

Bancroft, H.W. 1884. The Works of Hubert Howe Bancroft. Volume XXIL. History of California
Volume V 1846-1848 The History Company, Publishers, San Francisco. Available online at
https://archive.org/details/histofcaliforn05bancroft.

Barrows, H. D. 1893. A memorial and biographical history of the coast counties of Central California.
Smith, Lewis Publishing Company, Chicago. Available online at
https://archive.org/details/bub_gb_nxUVAAAAYAAJ.

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2024. California Wildlife Habitat Relationships
System Life History Accounts and Range Maps. CDFW Biogeographic Data Branch;
Sacramento, CA. https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CWHR/Life-History-and-Range.

Califomia Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2015. Caltrans Transportation Management Plan
Guidelines. Accessed July 30, 2024. https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/traffic-
operations/documents/tmp/tmp-guidelines-07202122763-rt1.pdf.

Califomia Energy Commission (CEC). 2024. California Electric Transmission Lines. Accessed
February 20, 2024. https://cecqis-
caenergy.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/260b4513acdb4a3a8e4d64e69fc84fee 2/explore?|
ocation=36.852733%2C-121.392322%2C13.73.

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2024. “Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants” (online
edition, v8-01a). CNPS; Sacramento, California.

CAL FIRE. 2008. Fire Hazard Severity Zones Maps — San Benito County. Available at:
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/what-we-do/community-wildfire-preparedness-and-mitigation/fire-
hazard-severity-zones/fire-hazard-severity-zones-maps.

Califomia Geological Survey. 2002. California Geomorphic Provinces. Accessed February 20, 2024.
https://www.coastal.ca.gov/coastalvoices/resources/California_Geomorphic_Provinces.pdf#:
~:text=The%20Coast%20Ranges % 20are%20northwest-
trending % 20mountain% 20ranges %20%282%2C000,0cean. %20The%20coastline%20is % 20
uplifted %2C%20terraced % 20and % 20wave-cut.

Caltrans. 2024. List of eligible and officially designated State Scenic Highways. Accessed February
19, 2024. https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-landscape-architecture-and-community-
livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways.

CARB. 2024a. “CARB Identified Toxic Air Contaminants.” Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/carb-identified-toxic-air-contaminants.

CARB. 2024b. “Summary: Diesel Particulate Matter Health Impacts.” Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/summary-diesel-particulate-matter-health-impacts.

CARB. 2024c. “Maps of State and Federal Area Designations.” Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/maps-state-and-federal-area-designations.

Central Coast Community Energy. N.d. Accessed February 20, 2024. https://3cenergy.org/about-
us/how-ccce-works/.

City of Hollister. 2005. City of Hollister General Plan. Accessed February 19, 2024.
https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2014/12/Complete_General_Plan.pdf.

February 2025 | 75



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

City of Hollister. 2018. Park Facility Master Plan. Accessed April 2, 2024. https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2018/03/Draft-City-of-Hollister-Parks-Master-Plan-March-2018.pdf.

City of Hollister. 2022. Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.16 Noise Control Requlations. Accessed July
2024.
https://library.municode.com/ca/hollister/codes/code of ordinances?nodeld=TITSHESA_ CH
8.28NO.

City of Hollister. 2024. Parks and Facilities. https://hollister.ca.gov/govermment/city-
departments/recreation/parks-facilities/.

California Department of Conservation (DOC). 2015a. Geologic Map of California. Accessed
February 20, 2024. https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/gmc.

DOC. 2015b. Fault Activity Map of California. Accessed April 2, 2024.
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/fam/.

DOC. 2016. Division of Mines Reclamation. Accessed March 8, 2024.
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/mol/index.html.

DOC. 2022. California Important Farmland Finder. Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/DLRP/CIFF/.

DOC. 2023b. California Williamson Act Enroliment Finder. Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/WilliamsonAct/.

DOC. 2024a. Important Farmland Categories. Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/dIrp/fmmp/Pages/Important-Farmland-Categories.aspx.

DOC. 2024b. Land Conservation Act. Available at http://www.conservation.ca.gov/dirp/lca. Accessed
July 30, 2024.
eBird. 2024. eBird: An online database of bird distribution and abundance [web application]. eBird,

Cornell Lab of Ornithology, lthaca, New York. Available: https://ebird.org/home Accessed
November 5, 2024.

Council of San Benito County Governments. 2012. Hollister Municipal Airport Land Use
Compatibility Plan. http://www.sanbenitocog.org/pdf/ADOPTED %20%20ALUCP %20-
June%202012.pdf.

County of San Benito and County of Santa Clara. 2024. Priority Climate Action Plan. March 2024.
Available at: hitps://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2024-03/san-benito-and-santa-
clara-counties-pcap.pdf.

Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 2024. EnviroStor Database. Accessed July 30,
2024. https://envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?myaddress=hollister%2C+ca.

Eshleman, J. A. and David Glenn Smith. 2007. Prehistoric Mitochondrial DNA and Population
Movements. In California Prehistory: Colonization, Culture, and Complexity, edited by T. L.
Jones and K. A. Klar, pp. 63-70, AltaMira Press, New York.

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 2023. Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.
December 2023. Accessed July 30, 2024. https://mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/kno_11th_Edition.htm

Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 2006. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual.
Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://www.transit.d ot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/FTA_Noise_and Vibration_Manual.pd

Forbes, A. 1839. California: a History of Upper & Lower California from Their First Discovery to the
Present Time, Comprising an Account of the Climate, Soil, Natural Productions, Agriculture,
Commerce, and a Full View of the Missionary Establishments and Condition of the Free and
Domesticated Indians. Smith, Elder and Company, Cornhill, London. Available online at
https://archive.org/details/bub_gb_NH4FAAAAQAAJ/mode/2up.

76 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/SuppIementaI Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

HDR, 2008. Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan — City of Hollister, San Benito
County, San Benito County Water District, and Sunnyslope County Water District. November
2008.

HDR, 2024, Tech Memo - PHREEQC Geochemical Evaluation, October 30, 2024.
Hollister School District. N.d. Schools. Accessed April 2, 2024. https://hesd.orq/en—US/schools.

Jones, T. L. and Kathryn A. Klar. 2007 Colonization, Culture, and Complexity. In California
Prehistory: Colonization, Culture, and Complexity, edited by T. L. Jones and K. A. Klar, pp.
63-70, AltaMira Press, New York.

Jones, T.L., N.E. Stevens, D.A. Jones, R.T. Fitzgerald and M.G. Hylkema. 2007. The Central Coast:
A Midlatitude Milieu. In California Prehistory: Colonization, Cultural and Complexity, edited
by Terry Jones and Kathryn A. Klar, pp. 229-245. Altamira Press, Lanham, MD.

McMahon, J. and P. Sonne. 2012. Hollister. Arcadia Publishing, Charleston, South Carolina.

Monterey Bay Air Resources District (MBARD). 2017. 2012-2015 Air Quality Management Plan.
Adopted March 15, 2017. Accessed July 30, 2024.

https:/IWWW.mbard.orq/files/6632732f5/2012—2015-AQMP FINAL.pdf.

Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control District (MBUAPCD). 2008. CEQA Air Quality Guidelines.
February 2008. Accessed July 30, 2024.
httos:/IWWW.mbard.orq/fiIes/Oce48fe68/CEQA+Guidelines.Ddf.

Moratto, M.J. 1984. California Archaeology. Academic Press, Orlando, Florida.

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2024. Soil Survey Staff, United States
Department of Agriculture. Web Soil Survey. Available online at the following link:
https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/. Accessed July 16, 2024.

Rosenthal, J., J. Meyer, W. Hildebrandt and J. King. 2003. A Geoarchaeological Study and

Sensitivity Model for the Southern Santa Clara, Hollister, and San Juan Valleys, Santa Clara

and San Benito Counties, California. Far Westem Anthropological Research Group, Inc.,
Davis, Califomia.

San Benito County. 1980. San Benito County General Plan: Scenic Roads and Highways Element.
Access October 2024.

San Benito County Water District (SBCWD), 2011. Final Program Environmental Impact Report
Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan and Coordinated Water Supply and
Treatment Plan, SCH 2010061069, January 2011.

San Benito County. 2015a. 2035 San Benito County General Plan Update Final Environmental
Impact Report. June 19, 2015. https://www.cosb.us/departments/resource—management-
agency/building-planning/general-plan/2035-general-p|an-background-materials-and-

historical-documents.

San Benito County. 2015b. San Benito County 2035 General Plan. Accessed April 2, 2024.
https://www.sanbenitocountyca.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/5859/637347294134470
000.

San Benito County. 2021. North San Benito Groundwater Sustainability Plan.
httos://www.sbcwd.com/vm:
content/uploads/2021l11/PUBLICDRAFTNorthSanBenitoGSP Final.pdf. Accessed October
2024.

San Benito County Water District. 2023. San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment
Master Plan Update. httos://www.sbcwd.com/wp-content/up|oads/2023/ 11/SBUA-WST-
Master-Plan-Update Final 20231025.pdf. Accessed October 2024.

February 2025 | 77



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

San Benito High School District. 2024. About San Benito High School District. Accessed April 2,
2024. https://www.sbhsd.org/.

San Benito County Water District, Sunnyslope County Water District, and City of Hollister. 2015.
2015 Urban Water Management Plan. https://hollister.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2016/07/PUBLIC-DRAFT-HUA-UWMP-FINAL-071516.pdf.

Todd Groundwater (Todd), 2024a, Simulation of ADRoP ASR Wells near Fallon Road, North San
Benito Groundwater Basin, San Benito County, California, September 23, 2024.

Todd Groundwater (Todd), 2024b, Exploratory Borehole Drilling and Testing for Aquifer Storage and
Recovery (ASR) Well Location Evaluation, Fallon Road Area, Hollister, California,
September 25, 2024.

Pierce, Marjorie. 1981. East of the Gabilans. Santa Cruz, California: Western Tanager Press.
Available online at https://archive.org/details/eastofgabilans0000marj.

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation. 2015. Final Environmental Assessment for the West Hills Water
Treatment Plant EA-12-096. Accessed November 2024.

U.S. Census Data. 2020. American Community Survey Table H1 Occupancy Status. 2022 5- Year
Estimate Detailed Table. Accessed May 2023.
https://data.census.gov/table/DECENNIALPL2020.H1?q=B011003&t=Housing&g=050XX00
US06069_1400000US06069000702_160XX00US0634120.

U.S. Census Data. 2023. QuickFacts Hollister City, CA. Accessed January 2025.
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/hollistercitycalifornia/IPE120223#IPE120223

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2023. “Ecosystem Effects of Ozone
Pollution.” November 1, 2023. Accessed July 30, 2024. https://www.epa.gov/ground-level-
ozone-poliution/ecosystem-effects-ozone-pollution.

USEPA. 2024a. “Health Effects of Ozone Pollution.” April 9, 2024. Accessed July 30, 2024.
https://www.epa.gov/ground-level-ozone-pollution/health-effects-ozone-pollution.

USEPA. 2024b. “Basic Information about Carbon Monoxide (CO) Outdoor Air Pollution.” June 21,
2024. Accessed July 30, 2024. https://www.epa.gov/co-poliution/basic-information-about-
carbon-monoxide-co-outdoor-air-poliution#What%20is %20CO.

USEPA. 2024c. “Health and Environmental Effects of Particulate Matter (PM).” July 16, 2024.
Accessed July 30, 2024. https://www.epa.gov/pm-pollution/health-and-environmental-effects-
particulate-matter-pm.

78 | February 2025



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

6 Appendices

February 2025 | 79



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Appendix A. Biological Resources



R

pendix A. Biological

Ap
hnical

Resources Tec
Memorandum
ght Response Project

Accelerated Drou
San Benito County Water District

From: Eliza Schlein (HDR)

‘\\\\\\\\“ 1
e \)NTY H,f‘ l;\""

S
AT ENN ';,’
"0,

Prepared By: F A
F57

258 . 7%

Zai Y

2z i TV =

245 W‘mnw‘ 0z

G % AT SNE

(N | s =

%, *s, Yoy, 3 160 o =

% AALE A 4
aeew Js

0y
1 LL TR
LRy

HDR Engineering, Inc.
1 Capitol Mall
Sacramento, California

95814-3245




Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmentai Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration *_3‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

This page is intentionally left blank.

January 2025 | A+



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration FD?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Contents
ADDIEVIALIONS ....oeiiieee ettt e ettt st et s e an e e e s en e e ran e s iv
Management SUMMEAIY ...ttt sre e erae s mbe s snesenernnas v
Proposed Project DesSCrptON........c.ooiiiiiiii e e s 1
1.1 PUrPoSE @aNA NEE .......ooiiiii et e s e e 1
1.2  Description of Proposed Project.........coociviiii i 1
1.3 LoCation DESCHPIION .....ooiiiiic ettt 2
T4 PrOJECE AT o e et e e st e e nare e an 2
2.0 Methods for Determining Existing Conditions ..........cccceovriiiriniiiins 4
2.1 LIterature REVIEW .....c..eiiiiiie ettt esee e e n e nne e 4
2.2 FIBld SUIVEYS ... ettt r e rr e e e e e e e e a s aner e s n e 4
3.0 EXiStiNG CONAIIONS ....coniieiiiie et e 9
0 T B I T To BN O 1Y 7= U U O RSP TPTORRR 9
3.1.1 AGIICUIRUI @ ... e e s 9
3.1.2  Drainage DitCh .......oooieiie e s 10
3.1.3 Pacific WIlIOW GrOVE .......ooiieiiee ettt e 10
3.14 DISturbed. ... ..o 10
315  ANNUAl Grasslands........coveririiiiee e s 10
3.1.6 RUAEIAL ... ..ttt seren e s e e e s anreseneeeaas 10
3.2 Wetlands and Waters of the United States............ccooveeviiiii e, 11
3.3 SpecCial-Status SPECIES ......cceveiriieiie ettt 11
3.3.1 Special-Status PlantS.......ccccoviiiieriie et 12
3.3.2  Special-Status WAIIfe ........cooviiiiiien e 14
34 Critical Habitat.........coooiiiiie et s 17
3.5 Wildlife COrTIAOrS .....occueieiie ettt ettt et a et e et ee e s sre e s n e se s enesne e 18
4.0 Regulatory FrameWOrK ........cccoriiiiiiirrie ettt e see e nr s e e 19
A FEABTAL..... . et r et et et b e ae e nrr e a 19
411 Federal Endangered Species ACt.......c.ccoiiiiiiiieiiiicc e 19
412 Fish and Wildlife Coordination ACt ..o 20
41.3 Migratory Bird Treaty ACt........coooei i 20
414  Clean Water ACL.........oo ottt 20
415  Executive Order 13112: Prevention and Control of Invasive Species ...... 21
A - | (- T TP O PP RUPPOTRRPPPRRPRTN 21

January 2025 | A-i



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmentai Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)Q
Accelerated Drought Response Project

4.2.1 California Endangered Species ACt ... 21
4.2.2  California Fishand Game Code ........coceveiireiecicciiii e 22
4.2.3  California Native Plant Protection ACt ...........cccociiiiiniiiii e, 22
5.0 REEIBNCES.....teei e et a e s 23
Figures
Figure 1. Project LOCAtioN ........cccccoriiiiereei i 3
Figure 2. Land Cover Types (Page 1 0f 3) ..o 6
Figure 2. Land Cover Types (Page 2 of 3) ... 7
Figure 2. Land Cover Types (Page 3 of 3) ... 8
Tables
Table 1. Land Cover Types Present in the Project Area ..., 9
Table 2. Special-Status Plant Species Potential to Occur within or near the Project Area
............................................................................................................................................. 13

January 2025 | Adii



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)'z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Abbreviations

ADRoOP Accelerated Drought Response Project
ASR aquifer storage and recovery

BO Biological Opinion

CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildiife
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act
CESA California Endangered Species Act

City City of Hollister

CNDDB California Natural Diversity Database
CNPS California Native Plant Society

Corps United States Army Corp of Engineers
CRPR California Rare Plant Rank

CWA Clean water act

DPS Distinct population segment

ESA federal Endangered Species Act

IPaC USFWS Information for Planning and Consultation
ITP Incidental Take Permit

LSAA Lake or Streambed Alteration Agreement
MBTA Migratory Bird Treaty Act

NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service
SBCWD San Benito County Water District

SSC species of special concern

USFWS United States Fish and Wildlife Service
WOTUS Waters of the U.S

January 2025 | A-iv



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Management Summary

The Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADROP) is the first phase a larger Aquifer
Storage and Recovery (ASR) project designed to address water supply deficits in the
San Benito Urban Area. The San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) proposes to
expand the West Hills Water Treatment Plant (WHWTP) near the City of Hollister,
construct five ASR wells, and install new pipelines for recharge water transmission from
the City of Hollister to the proposed ASR wells and recovery water from ASR wells to
the City’s distribution system (Proposed Project or Project).

This biological technical appendix summarizes findings from field studies (aquatic
delineation surveys, biological reconnaissance surveys, and habitat mapping) that were
conducted in 2024 and provides regulatory context for future analyses. The Project area
for the field studies includes the alignment (Figure 1). Much of the Project area occurs
within or adjacent to developed areas which do not provide high-quality habitat for
special-status plant or wildlife species. In advance of field studies, HDR conducted a
desktop review of the Project area as outlined in Section 2, Background Information
Review. Common and scientific names of special-status plant and wildlife species
identified through the desktop review and field studies as having potential to occur in the
Project area, along with their current statuses, are listed below.

Three special-status plant and seven special-status wildlife species were identified as
having the potential to occur within the Project area:

e San Joaquin spearscale (Extriplex joaquinana) — CRPR 1B.2
e Prostrate vernal pool navarretia (Navarretia prostrata) - CRPR 1B.1
e Saline clover (Trifolium hydrophilum) — CRPR 1B.2

¢ California tiger salamander (Ambystoma californiense) — Federally and State
threatened

e California red-legged frog (Rana draytonii) — Federally threatened, State species
of concern

¢ Northwestern pond turtle (Emys marmorata) — Federally proposed threatened,
State species of concern

e Burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia) — State candidate, State species of concern
e Swainson’s hawk (Buteo swainsoni) — State threatened
o Western red bat (Lasiurus frantzii) — State species of concern

e San Joaquin kit fox (Vulpes macrotis mutica) — Federally endangered, State
threatened

January 2025 | Av



Draft initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_32
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Proposed Project Description

This section includes the purpose and need, description, and location of the Proposed
Project. It concludes with a discussion of how the Project area was defined.

11 Purpose and Need

The primary purpose of the ADRoP project is to capture excess surface water in wet
years and store it in the aquifer for later use during drought years. ADRoP, aligned with
the overall ASR project, will improve water quality, ensure sustainability, and improve
the resilience of the groundwater basin.

1.2 Description of Proposed Project
The Proposed Project consists of four elements:

o WHWTP Expansion — The Proposed Project would expand the capacity of the
WHWTP from 4.5 MGD to 6.75 MGD. This would be accomplished by the
following design elements to be located within the footprint of the existing WTP:

o One new 2.25 MGD raw water pump added to the existing raw water
pump station (RWPS)

One new 3.0 MGD automatic strainer

One new 4.5 MGD ballasted clarification pretreatment

One new 2.25 MGD dual media gravity filter

Chemical feed and storage facilities:
= One 2500-gallon sulfuric acid storage tank
» One 6650-gallon sodium hydroxide storage tank

o One new solids drying bed sized for the 2.25 MGD expansion

o 0 O O©O

e ASR Wells — Five ASR wells would be constructed as part of the proposed
Project. Each ASR well site would consist of a well, a vertical turbine, line shaft
pump, hollow shaft motor, piping, and appurtenances set up on a concrete pad.
The discharge head assembly and wellhead piping would sit on a concrete pad
and the remaining site would be paved with vehicular gravel allowing driving
access surrounding all above-grade site features. Each ASR well site would
occupy 0.3-acres surrounded by an 8-foot-high intruder resistant fence for
security purposes. all five ASR well sites have been sited within the farmlands
surrounding the Fallon Road area north of the City of Hollister. Four of the ASR
well sites would be located north of Fallon Road, while the fifth site would be
located to the south of Fallon Road. Each well site would be located within
existing agricultural fields along unincorporated County roads.

e Disinfection Building - A disinfection building will be located along Fallon Road to
continuously inject chlorine into the raw water extracted from the ASR wells as it
begins westward transit in the 24-inch pipeline to the City of Hollister distribution
system. The disinfection site will have an 8-inch-thick Concrete Masonry Unit
(CMU) building, approximately 20 feet by 20 feet, to house chemical equipment.

January 2025 | A1



Draft initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ‘_3‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

The sodium hypochlorite feed system will consist of high-density polyethylene
(HDPE) totes, chemical metering pumps, piping and valves. The HDPE totes will
be on portable grate platforms for drainage and containment.

« Water Transmission Pipeline - The new water transmission pipeline would
convey recharge and recovery water to the ASR wells, WHWTP, and the
Hollister Distribution System to increase the capacity of the existing distribution
system. The pipelines would be installed at a minimum of 36 inches of cover
below finished grade. The alignment includes the following pipelines:

o Approximately 7,000 LF of new 12-inch water pipe northward from N.
Chappell Road along San Felipe Road parallel to an existing water main.

o Approximately 5500 LF of new 24-inch diameter pipeline eastward along
Fallon Road from San Felipe Road.

o Approximately 11,000 LF of lateral pipelines to the ASR well sites

1.3 Location Description

The Proposed Project is located within San Benito County, with portions being located
within the City of Hollister (City). The Proposed Project extends from Union Road to the
southwest of the City, to the intersection of Fallon Road and Fairview Road to the
northeast of the City. New pipelines would be installed underneath San Benito Road
near the intersection with Santa Ana Road, continuing north to San Felipe Road, and
would continue northeast on to Fallon Road. ASR well sites would be constructed along
Fallon Road. The pipeline would include approximately 8,900 linear feet along San
Felipe Road, and approximately 9,800 linear feet along Fallon Road. Total new pipeline
would be approximately 18,700 linear feet, or approximately 3.5 miles. Surrounding land
uses are predominantly agricultural, with some commercial uses along San Felipe
Road.

14 Project Area

The Project area spans approximately 3.5 miles along the proposed pipeline route of
San Felipe and Fallon Roads and encompasses approximately 75 acres of agricultural
lands where the five ASR wells may be placed (Figure 1).

January 2025 | A-2



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Figure 1. Project Location

T LEGEND

[ emtect Lozatinn 3 oty of Hopizter
ey |
-,
--I‘

January 2025 | A-3



Draft initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

2.0 Methods for Determining Existing Conditions

The following information sources and field activities were used to identify existing
conditions of the Project area and the biological resources occurring or potentially
occurring in the Project area.

21 Literature Review

To assess terrestrial biological resources with the potential to occur within the Project
area, four United States Geological Survey quadrants (USGS quads) were queried in
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) CNDDB (CDFW 2024). These
USGS quads included Hollister, San Felipe, Three Sisters, and Tres Pinos. Information
on federally listed species was obtained from a query of the USFWS Information for
Planning and Consulting (IPaC) database (USFWS 2024a). In addition, the foliowing
references were reviewed:

USFWS Critical Habitat Portal (USFWS 2024b);

USFWS National Wetland Inventory (USFWS 2024c);

California Native Plant Society (CNPS) species list query for the Project area
(CNPS 2024);

e California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), California Natural
Diversity Database (CNDDB) species list query for a 5-mile buffer around the
Project area (CDFW 2024);

e Soil map unit descriptions for the Project area (NRCS 2024); and

e eBird records for the Project area (eBird 2024).

Additional information on the environmental setting was collected from general sources
on special-status plants and wildlife (e.g., California Bird Species of Special Concern
[Shuford and Gardali 2008], California Amphibian and Reptile Species of Special
Concern [Thomson et al. 2016], and California Wildlife Habitat Relationships information
[CDFW 2023]).

2.2 Field Surveys

A delineation of aquatic resources and a biological reconnaissance survey were
conducted in June 2024 by HDR (HDR 2024). For the purposes of the aquatic resources
delineation, the “field delineation survey area” was equal to the Project area and included
the footprint the pipeline. Data collected during the biological survey was used to create
a biological resources map with vegetation, conspicuous special-status species, and
special-status species habitat. The field mapping was prepared consistent with the
Guidelines for Assessing the Effects of Proposed Actions on Rare, Threatened, and
Endangered Plants and Natural Communities (CDFW 2018). HDR conducted vegetation
mapping in accordance with CDFW's List of Vegetation Alliances and Associations (or
Natural Communities List) (CDFW 2024e). This list is based on A Manual of California
Vegetation, Second Edition (Sawyer et al. 2009), which is the California expression of the
National Vegetation Classification. HDR mapped vegetation communities and land
covers at the alliance level;, however, where appropriate, vegetation communities not
included in this list were mapped to accurately describe the vegetation present within the

January 2025 | A4



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration i_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Project area. The vegetation communities were then cross-walked to the descriptions
outlined in the California Wildlife Habitat Relationships Classifications (CDFW 2023e).

HDR compiled a general inventory of plant and animal species detected by sight, calls,
tracks, scat, or other signs as part of the field survey and assessed the potential for
special-status species occurrence. HDR also mapped observable sensitive resources
including flowering annual plants, shrubs and trees, and conspicuous wildlife (i.e., birds
and some reptiles) commonly accepted as regionally sensitive by CNPS, CDFW, or
USFWS. No focused surveys for plant or wildlife species were performed. Field
observations of vegetation communities and special-status species were digitized into a
GIS and georeferenced to produce land cover maps as shown on Figure 2.

January 2025 | A5



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Figure 2. Land Cover Types (Page 1 of 3)

DA Project Araa (97.7 ac) Drainage Citen FIGURE 2

# Proposed ASR Weli T IRiparian LAND COVER TYFES

SUONER — Broposed 18" Pipeline I Ruderal

== Praposed Lataral Pipeline =
Habitats AN

W Agriculturs '-—v-@-v—-.
E Oeveloped @ ,-% T

HOLLISTER 71 Disturbed
UATA SOURCES HOR e, CU28) Eanseriad
’ DISCLAIMER Map rformatan wies complec from e 206t avadabie scures F)?
Ho waranty 16 mace for 15 ACCasy of 2Hrpietenass

EMMENT_I0CWE_60ADR TR AT - UBER. ANTAIT - CATE. 123003

TATY GieMIiNT

Januarv 2025 | A6



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Figure 2. Land Cover Types (Page 2 of 3)

=) Project Area (97 7 ac) FIGURE 2
== Proposed 18" Pipeline LAND COVER TYPES
HUDHES HKabitats
530 Developed ~
[ Ruderal @
] 330 o
FEET
HOLUISTER
DRTR SOURCTS MR o (20M), sl weral
, DISCLANVER Mg nformalisn was compded from the bast svaliadie sourees F)?
iy warranty 1s traoe B s sooirecy o compleleness

FLTM G MR SESC ATAINDRT 2 WIRRINZARRXY S TATISENT_SHCWND_ALROR 178 A0 el ANTANL - D4R 1200

January 2025 | A7



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Figure 2. Land Cover Types (Page 3 of 3)

HUDNRER

0 Project Area (877 ac)
Habitats

B Developad

Disturbed

[ Grassland

FIGURE 2
LAND COVER TYPES

HOLLIATER
Z DATA SULRCES #iDR, re (N2M) Esisensl
LUSCLAMER: Viap infermation wes sommled rom e dest avalabie soaces F)Q
o warmarty 15 madke f 45 SUCAACy O (orpinieasess
AW G PR PRy TURCHWENT TGl _ALMCE 1P GRS - LAaE ANTANNG - 478 TRuETas

January 2025 | A-8



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)?
’ Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.0 Existing Conditions

34 Land Cover

This section provides descriptions for all vegetation communities and land cover types
found to occur throughout the Project area (Sawyer et al. 2009; CDFW 2023). Table 1
shows land cover types in the Project area. Figure 2 depicts the location of each
vegetation community over a current aerial image of the region.

Some vegetation communities are deemed sensitive communities/habitats and are
identified in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by CDFW or USFWS.
CDFW's Rarity Ranking follows NatureServe's Heritage Methodology (Faber-
Langendoen et al. 2012; CDFW 2023f) in which communities are given a G (global) and
S (State) rank ranging from 1 (very raré and threatened) to 5 (demonstrably secure).
Natural Communities with ranks of $1-S3 are considered sensitive. The only sensitive
community within the Project area is Pacific willow grove habitat.

Table 1. Land Cover Types Present in the Project Area

Land Cover Total Acres
Agriculture 13.09
Disturbed 9.70
Drainage Ditch 1.50
Pacific Willow Grove 0.01
Ruderal 11.23
Annual Grassland 0.84
Total 36.37
3141 Agriculture

California agricultural lands are fields, enclosed or otherwise, used for agricultural
purposes such as cultivating crops. A field may also be an aréa left to lie fallow or as
arable land California annual grassland is dominated by a dense to sparse cover of annual
grasses. Some plant species observed in this land cover included lacinato kale (Brassica
oleracea var. palmifolia), Swiss chard (Beta vulgaris), and celery (Apium graveolens).
Some wildiife species observed in this vegetation community included: cabbage white
(Pieris rapae), loggerhead shrike (Lanius judovicianus), Swainson's hawk (Buteo
swainsoni), American Crow (Corvus brachyrhynchos), common raven (Corvus corax),
barn swallow (Hirundo rustica), and red-winged blackbird (Agelaius phoeniceus).
Agricultural lands occur throughout the Project area. Agricultural fields can provide
suitable nesting and overwintering habitat for burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia) as well
as foraging habitat for western red bat (Lasiurus frantzii).

January 2025 | A9



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l")?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.1.2 Drainage Ditch

A drainage is an artificial hydraulic system used to transport water from a source (dam
and river) to different agricultural fields for irrigation. Within the Project area, a drainage
ditch runs along an agricultural access road that intersects Fallon Road. This drainage
ditch empties into the Santa Ana Creek.

31.3 Pacific Willow Grove

Pacific willow grove habitat typically occupies areas along the banks of rivers, streams,
lakes, springs, and floodplains and can sometimes co-occur with wetlands. Plant species
observed in this land coverinclude Pacific willow (Salix lasiandra), Fremont's cottonwood
(Populus fremontii ssp. fremontii), English walnut (Juglans regia), edible fig (Ficus carica),
mulefat (Baccharis salicifolia subsp. salicifolia), clustered dock (Rumex conglomeratus),
poison hemlock (Conium maculatum), and bristly oxtongue (Helminthotheca echioides).
Wildlife species observed in this vegetation community include western tiger swallowtail
(Papilio rutulus), Anna's hummingbird (Calypte anna), Swainson's hawk (Buteo
swainsoni), Nuttall's woodpecker (Dryobates nuttallii), ash-throated flycatcher (Myiarchus
cinerascens), cliff swallow (Petrochelidon pyrrhonota), and northern rough-winged
swallow (Stelgidoptegryx serripennis).

314 Disturbed
The disturbed landcover is comprised by dirt roads, road shoulders, and areas that have
been previously altered.

Native plants have been replaced by horticultural varieties. Some wildlife species
observed in this land cover included: rock pigeon (Columba livia), European starling
(Sturnus vulgaris), and northern mockingbird (Mimus polyglottos).

3.1.5 Annual Grasslands

The annual grassland land cover only occurs in the area surrounding the existing
WHWTP that has not been previously disturbed. The grassland is dominated by wild oat
(Avena fatua).

3.1.6 Ruderal

Ruderal plant communities consist of varied, often temporary, collections of mostly non-
native plants along roadsides or other disturbed areas. Shallow soils may be underlain by
gravel and compacted or hard-pan surfaces, preventing many plants from establishing.
Disturbed areas may be devoid of vegetation due to a recent human-induced activity.
Semi-natural herbaceous stands were noted in the central and southern portions of the
Project area. Some plant species observed in this land cover included: bindweed
(Convolvulus arvensis), wild oat, and ltalian ryegrass (Festuca perennis). Some wildlife
species observed in this land cover included: Eurasian collared-dove (Streptopelia
decaocto), mourning dove (Zenaida macroura), house sparrow (Passer domesticus), and
house finch (Haemorhous mexicanus).

January 2025 | A-10



Draft Initiai Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)‘z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

3.2 Wetlands and Waters of the United States

The term waters of the United States is an encompassing term used by U.S. Army Corps
of Engineers (USACE) for areas that are subject to federal regulation under the Clean
Water Act (CWA), Sections 404 and 10, which refer to wetlands and non-wetland (other
waters) features. Wetlands that exhibit the prevalence of hydrophytic vegetation, hydric
soils, and wetland hydrology were identified within the Project area and include fresh and
saline emergent wetlands.

Based on the field delineation conducted in June 2024 by HDR, a preliminary jurisdictional
determination (PJD) is being sought for the Proposed Project.

Inland non-wetland waters of the United States are seasonal or perennial waterbodies,
including lakes, stream channels, drainages, ponds, and other surface water features that
exhibit an OHWM or mean high water line but lack positive indicators for one or two of
the three wetland parameters (33 CFR 328.4). Non-wetland waters of the United States
that occur in the Project area are restricted to Santa Ana Creek.

In addition, the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) regulates water quality
under California’s Porter-Cologne Act. Waters regulated under the Porter-Cologne Act
are called waters of the state. Waters of the state include any surface or groundwater,
including saline waters, within state boundaries. Pacific willow grove plant communities
associated with stream channels, such as the Santa Ana Creek corridor in the Project
area, could also be considered jurisdictional by RWQCB. Aquatic features that do not falll
under USACE jurisdiction (e.g., isolated features, ditches, features excavated in uplands)
would be considered waters of the state and include the drainage channel and freshwater
emergent wetland.

California Fish & Game Code Section 89.1, through referral to California Water Code
Section 13050, defines waters of the state as “any surface water or groundwater,
including saline waters, within the boundaries of the state.” Activities that result in
diversion or obstruction of the natural flow of any river, stream or lake; substantially
change or use any material from the bed, channel, or bank of any river, stream, or lake;
or deposit debris, waste, or other materials that could pass into any river, stream, or lake
require that the Project applicant enter into a Lake or Streambed Alteration Agreement
(LSAA) with CDFW under Section 1602 of the California Fish and Game Code. Therefore,
any work over, within, or under the banks of Santa Ana Creek would require an LSAA
with CDFW under Section 1602.

3.3 Special-Status Species
For the purposes of this document, special-status plant and wildlife species refers to
those species that meet one or more of the following criteria:

e Species listed or proposed for listing as threatened or endangered under the
FESA (50 CFR 17.11 [listed animals], 50 CFR 17.12 [listed plants], and
various notices in the FR [proposed species]).

e Species that are candidates for possible future listing as threatened or
endangered under FESA (81 FR 87246, December 2, 2016).

January 2025 | A-11



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration '_)'2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

e Species listed or proposed for listing by the State of California as threatened
or endangered under the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) (14
CCR 670.5).

e Plants listed as rare under the California Native Plant Protection Act
(California Fish and Game Code Section 1900 et seq.).

e Plants with a California Rare Plant Rank (CRPR) of 1 or 2.

Animal species of special concern to CDFW, Special Animals List.

e Animals fully protected in California (California Fish and Game Code Sections
3511 [birds], 4700 [mammals], 5050 [amphibians and reptiles], and 5515
[fish]).

¢ Taxa (i.e., taxonomic categories or groups) that meet the criteria for listing,
even if not currently included on any list, as described in Section 15380 of the
CEQA Guidelines (e.g., species that appear on the CDFW special animals
list).

Special-status species were identified through a search of CNDDB database, USFWS
Critical Habitat Portal, the CNPS database, and other sources as being historically
reported to occur within the general project vicinity and Project area (CDFW 2024;
USFWS 2024; CNPS 2024; Thomson et al. 2016). The potential for special-status
species to occur in the project site and the Project area was evaluated according to the
following criteria:

¢ None: Project area contains a complete lack of suitable habitat, the local
range for the species is restricted, and/or the species is extirpated in this
region.

e Not Expected: suitable habitat or key habitat elements might be present in
the Project area but might be of poor quality or isolated from the nearest
extant occurrences. Habitat suitability refers to factors such as elevation, soil
chemistry and type, vegetation communities, microhabitats, and
degraded/substantially altered habitats.

o Possible: the presence of suitable habitat or key habitat elements in the
Project area that potentially support the species.

e Present: either the target species was observed directly or its presence was
confirmed by diagnostic signs during field investigations or in previous studies
in the Project area.

3.31 Special-Status Plants

Approximately 13 special-status plant species occur in or within the vicinity (5 miles) of
the Project area (CDFW 2024; CNPS 2024). Reconnaissance-level surveys were
conducted by HDR in June 2024; no special-status plant species were observed. All
species with potential to occur in the Project area were first identified through a search of
CNDDB database, USFWS Critical Habitat Portal, and the CNPS database. They were
then evaluated for their potential to occur based on the known range of each species and
their habitat associations.

January 2025 | A-12



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_32
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Approximately 10 plant species do not occur or are not expected to occur within the
Project area due to the lack of key habitat features. These species are therefore not
addressed further in this document. Three species have the potential to occur in the
Project area. Each of these species are listed in Table 2 and discussed in the following
section. Please see land cover mapping on Figure 2 in reference to suitable habitats for
special-status plant species.

Table 2. Special-Status Plant Species Potential to Occur within or near the Project Area

Species Common Name Federal State/CRPR Critical Habitat
Status Status designated?
Plants
Extriplex joaquinana San Joaquin spearscale None None/1B.2 No
Navarretia prostrata Prostrate vernal pool navarretia None None/1B.1 No
Trifolium hydrophilum | Saline clover None None/1B.2 No

Source: Species and Listing Status (CDFW 2024), Critical Habitat (USFWS 2024)

San Joaquin Spearscale

San Joaquin spearscale (Extriplex joaquinana) is a CNPS CRPR 1B.2 annual herb in
the goosefoot family (Chenopodiaceae) that blooms through the early summer to early
fall (April to October). It occurs in alkaline soils in chenopod scrub, meadows, seeps,
playas, and grassland at elevations of 0-2,740 feet. There is one extant location
approximately 7 miles from the Project area in a seasonally wet, regularly plowed
agriculture field (CDFW 2024; CNPS 2024). This species was not observed during the
June 2024 field visit when the species would have been in bloom. Therefore, this
species is not expected to occur in the Project area.

Prostrate Vernal Pool Navarretia

Prostrate vernal pool navarretia (Navarretia prostrata) is a CNPS CRPR 1B.1 annual herb
in the phlox family (Polemoniaceae) that blooms in the spring and summer (April to July).
It occurs in mesic coastal scrub, meadows, and seeps, alkaline grassland, and vernal
pools at elevations of 49-3,968 feet. There is one extant location approximately 6 miles
from the Project area on the edge of San Felipe Lake (CDFW 2024; CNPS 2024).
Meadow, seep, and vernal pool habitats are absent from the Project area. The areas
dominated by grassland are slightly to moderately alkaline; however, they are highly
disturbed. This species was not observed during the June 2024 field visit when the
species would have been in bloom. Therefore, this species is not expected to occur in the
Project area.

Saline Clover

Saline clover (Trifolium hydrophilum) is a CNPS CRPR 1B.2 annual herb in the pea family
(Fabaceae) that blooms in the spring (April to June). The general habitats are marshes,
swamps, vernal pools, and mesic, alkaline, valley or foothill grasslands at elevations of
0-985 feet. There is an extant record approximately 5 miles northwest of the Project area
at the north end of a ruderal field (CDFW 2024; CNPS 2024). The field was cultivated in
the last few years. This species was not observed during the June 2024 field visit when

January 2025 | A-13



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

R

the species would have been in bloom. Therefore, this species is not expected to occur
in the Project area.

3.3.2 Special-Status Wildlife

Approximately 22 special-status wildlife species occur in or within the vicinity (four quad
search radius) of the Project area (CDFW 2024; CNPS 2024). One reconnaissance-level
survey was conducted by HDR in June 2024. One special-status wildlife species,
Swainson’s hawk, was observed flying overhead; no other special-status wildlife species
or their sign (i.e., burrows, scat) were observed. No focused surveys for special-status
wildlife species have been conducted for this Project; therefore, all species present in the
Project area vicinity identified through a search of CNDDB database, USFWS Critical
Habitat Portal, the CNPS database, and other sources were evaluated for their potential
to occur based on the known range of each species and their habitat associations.

Approximately 16 wildlife species do not occur or are not expected to occur within the
Project area due to the lack of key habitat features. These species are therefore not
addressed further in this document.

Special-status species with the potential to occur in the Project area are listed in Table 3
and discussed in the following section. Please see land cover mapping on Figure 2 in
reference to suitable habitats for special-status wildlife species.

Table 3. Special-status Wildlife Species Potential to Occur within or near the Project Area

Species and DPS’ Common Name Federal Status® State Status® Critical Habitat
designated?
Amphibians
Ambystoma California tiger | FT ST Yes -~ but not
californiense pop. 1 salamander ~ centra present in the
California DPS Project area
Rana draytonii California red-legged | FT SSC Yes - but notpresent
frog in the Project area
Reptiles
Actinemys marmorata Northwestern  pond | FPT SSC No
turtle
Buteo swainsoni Swainson’s hawk None ST No
Athene cunicularia Burrowing owl None CE No
Mammals
Lasiurus frantzii Western red bat None 8SC No
Vulpes macrotis mutica { San Joaquin kit fox FE ST Yes -~ but not
present in the
Project area

Distinct Population Segment (DPS)
%Federally endangered (FE); Federal Proposed Threatened (FPT)
3State Species of Special Concern (SSC); State Candidate for listing (CE); State Threatened (ST)
Source: Species and Listing Status (CDFW 2024), Critical Habitat (USFWS 2024c)

California red-legged frog

January 2025 | A-14



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration i_)‘?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

The California red-legged frog (CRLF) is federally listed as threatened and a California
species of special concern (CDFW 2023a). The historical range of CRLF generally
extends south along the coast from the vicinity of Point Reyes National Seashore, Marin
County and inland from the vicinity of Redding, Shasta County, southward along the
interior Coast Ranges and Sierra Nevada foothills to northwestern Baja California, Mexico
(Jennings and Hayes 1985).

CRLF inhabit marshes, streams, lakes, ponds, and other, usually permanent, sources of
water that have dense riparian vegetation (USFWS 2002). CRLF primarily breeds in
ponds and less frequently in pools within streams (Thomson et al., 2016). CRLF often
disperse from breeding sites to various aquatic, riparian, and upland estivation habitats
during the summer (66 FR 14628); however, it is common for individuals to remain in the
breeding area year-round (66 FR 14628; USFWS 2002).

CRLF has been observed in Santa Ana Creek approximately 2.5 miles upstream fromthe
Fallon Road bridge (a). Suitable habitat for CRLF exists within the Project area within
Santa Ana Creek along the corridor for upland usage and dispersal. As the site was dry
during the time of the site visit, the ratio of open space to aquatic vegetation is unknown
making it difficult to assess the site’s suitability for breeding. The drainage channel along
the access road may serve as a migratory corridor for CRLF during wetter months. There
are no barriers to dispersal between known CRLF occurrences and habitat within the
Project area is conducive to the species. CRLF has the potential to occur within the
Project area.

California tiger salamander

California tiger salamander (CTS) is a federal and state threatened species. CTS require
specific aquatic and terrestrial habitats to complete different phases of their lifecycle.
Adult salamanders spend the maijority of their lives underground in burrows (Trenham
2001). With the onset of the rainy season in November, adult salamanders will leave their
burrows and return to breeding ponds (Trenham et al. 2000). Males arrive earlier than
females and remain in breeding ponds longer than females. Breeding ponds historically
consisted of vernal pools and ponds, but the species has adapted to breed in livestock
ponds and other modified features as a result of habitat encroachment (USFWS 2014).

Optimal terrestrial habitat consists of annual grasslands and open woodlands occupied
by small burrowing mammals as CTS cannot create their own burrows. Habitats with wide
expanses of open grassland and multiple pools are ideal for CTS breeding and dispersal.

There are multiple occurrences of CTS documented within 2 miles of the Project area.
Additionally, designated critical habitat for the species is hydrologically connected to the
Project area by Santa Ana Creek. Although the conversion of most of the Project area to
agricultural lands renders the area not conducive to CTS, the proximity of the area to CTS
critical habitat and multiple known occurrences provides for species potential. Although
there will be no expansion of the WHWTP footprint, the facility was constructed within
grasslands that were considered by the 2014 BO to be suitable habitat for the species.

January 2025 | A-15



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration FD?
Acceierated Drought Response Project

One CTS individual was found in the project footprint during facility construction. There is
potential for CTS to occur in both portions of the Project area.

Swainson’s Hawk

Swainson’'s hawk is state listed as threatened. The breeding range for Swainson’s hawk
in California consists of the extreme northeast portion of the state, the Sacramento and
San Joaquin Valleys, valleys of the Sierra Nevada Range in Inyo and Mono Counties,
and occasionally elsewhere in the state (Bechard et al. 2020). Swainson’s hawk
primarily winter in South America but some individuals winter in the Sacramento-San
Joaquin Delta (Delta) (Bechard et al. 2020). They usually nest in large, mature trees in
undeveloped areas. Most nest sites (87%) in the Central Valley are found in riparian
habitats (Estep 1989), primarily because trees are more available there. Swainson'’s
hawk also nests in mature roadside trees and in isolated trees in agricultural fields or
pastures. The breeding season is March through August (Estep 1989). Nest sites are
generally adjacent to, or within flying distance of, suitable foraging habitat and near
large tracts of agricultural lands (CDFW 2016).

A Swainson’s hawk was observed flying over the Project area during the June 2024 site
visit. The mature trees within the corridor along Santa Ana Creek could provide suitable
nesting habitat for this species. Swainson’s hawk can be assumed present within the
Project area.

Burrowing Owl/

The burrowing owl is a Candidate species for listing under the California Endangered
Species Act. A small ground dwelling owl, its habitat is associated with open grassland,
open lots near human habitation, and along roadsides. Within California, the breeding
range of burrowing owl includes the northeastern plateau, Central Valley, San Joaquin
Valley, Imperial Valley, Mojave and Colorado deserts, the southwest corner of San Diego
County, and in a few coastal counties between Los Angeles and San Francisco.
Burrowing owls nest in abandoned burrows dug by small mammals, such as ground
squirrels (Spermophilus spp.), as well as larger mammals, such as foxes (Vulpes spp.)
and badgers (Taxidea taxus). If burrows are unavailable, burrowing owls may dig their
own in soft soil, or utilize pipes, culverts and/or nest boxes (Zeiner et al. 1988-1990). The
agricultural fields within the Project area are suitable foraging and nesting habitat for this
species. The species may also utilize small mammal burrows along irrigation ditches and
in fallow fields for overwintering and potentially breeding. There is potential for burrowing
owl within the Project area.

Western red bat

The western red bat (Lasiurus frantzii) is a California species of special concern.
Historically, the range of western red bats extended from southern British Columbia down
into Mexico, with a gap in the Great Basin Desert (Solick et al. 2020); however, Solick et
al. (2020) show more accurate ranges, documenting the species from north-central and
coastal California to southeastern Arizona and sparsely up into Utah and southwestern
Nevada. The western red bat is a foliage roosting species and finds itself in riparian
habitats within arid and semi-arid regions of the southwestern U.S.; it almost exclusively

January 2025 | A-16



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Dedclaration F)‘?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

roosts within densely foliated trees: willow, cottonwood, sycamore, elder, ash species
(Andersen and Geluso 2018, Solick et al. 2020).

This species could roost in the Project area in the foliage of the various dense riparian
trees along Santa Ana Creek. Bats roosting in the area may forage over Santa Ana Creek
or the surrounding agriculture fields. This species is considered possible to roost and
forage within the Project area.

Northwestern pond turtle

The northwestern pond turtle (NWPT) is 2 federal candidate species for listing and a
California species of special concern (CDFW 2023a; 88 FR 68370). The NWPT is the
only endemic freshwater turtle in California. The NWPT occurs throughout a broad range
of permanent and intermittent aquatic habitats including rivers, lakes, ponds, vernal pools,
and marshes with a preference for habitat with abundant basking sites, underwater
refugia, and slow-moving water (Bury and Germano 2008). This species requires upland
habitat suitable for nesting and overwintering, with loose soil forexcavation and infrequent
disturbance (Thomson et al. 2016).

This species has been documented upstream of the Project area within Santa Ana Creek.
Within the Project area, Santa Ana Creek does not contain suitable nesting or basking
habitat due to the overgrowth of emergent vegetation and density of the canopy.
However, the species could utilize the Santa Ana Creek corridor as a migration corridor
to travel among more suitable habitats.

San Joaquin kit fox

San Joaquin kit foxis @ federal endangered and state threatened small fox that only grows
to be five pounds at its largest. The species is endemic to California’s Central Valley. Kit
foxes are primarily found in scrub or annual grassland communities with loose textured
soils for denning (USFWS 2020). Dens are typically found on flat ground and are essential
for kit foxes as they provide shelter during extreme heat, escape from predators, and
safety for pups (USFWS 2020). San Joagquin kit fox is not expected to occur within the
Project area although it was discussed in the CEQA and NEPA documents for the
footprint of the original WHWTP construction. The Biological Opinion issued by the
USFWS for the 2014 construction of the WTP concluded that suitable habitat for kit fox
was likely to be impacted by construction, due to the presence of suitable burrowing
habitat within the footprint of the WHWTP facility at the time of its construction (USFWS
2014). There will be no expansion of the WTP footprint. There will no increased impacts
to grasslands that could support Kit fox, so increased impacts to the species is not
anticipated. The BO issued for the original project still covers activities around the
WHWTP. The Project area around the proposed pipeline and ASR wells consists of
mostly paved roads and agricultural fields. The BO explains that while kit fox may forage
within agricultural fields, the species cannot develop dens in active agricultural fields
(USFWS 2014).

34 Critical Habitat
The USFWS and NMFS maintain areas of critical habitat for federally regulated species
to safeguard the continued existence of such species by restricting the type and extent of

January 2025 | A-17



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration '_D
Accelerated Drought Response Project

activities proposed under Section 7 of Federal Endangered Species Act (FESA). Section
7 of FESA requires federal agencies to consult with USFWS and/or NMFS for actions that
may take a listed species or their critical habitat. There is no designated critical habitat
within the Project area. However, designated critical habitat for CTS is hydrologically
connected to the Project area by Santa Ana Creek and begins approximately 2.4 miles
upstream from the Project area.

3.5 Wildlife Corridors

Wildlife corridors are linear features that connect large patches of natural open space and
provide avenues for the migration of animals. Wildlife corridors contribute to population
viability by assuring continual exchange of genes between populations, providing access
to adjacent habitat areas for foraging and mating, and providing routes for recolonization
of habitat after local extirpation or ecological catastrophes (e.g., fires). Habitat linkages
are small patches that join larger blocks of habitat and help reduce the adverse effects of
habitat fragmentation. Habitat linkages provide a potential route for gene flow and long-
term dispersal of plants and animals and may also serve as primary habitat for smaller
animals, such as reptiles and amphibians. Habitat linkages may be continuous habitat or
discrete habitat islands that function as stepping-stones for dispersal.

The Santa Ana Creek is the primary wildlife corridor in the Project area. The undisturbed
grasslands surrounding the WHWTP also offer dispersal areas for species such as San
Joaquin kit fox and CTS.

dannary 2028 | AR



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration FD?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

4.0 Regulatory Framework
41 Federal
411 Federal Endangered Species Act

Pursuant to FESA, USFWS and NMFS have authority over Projects that may result in
take of a species listed as threatened or endangered under the act. Take is defined
under the FESA, in part, as killing, harming, or harassing. Under federal regulations,
take is further defined to include habitat modification or degradation that results, or is
reasonably expected to result, in death or injury to wildlife by significantly impairing
essential behavioral patterns, including breeding, feeding, or sheltering. If a likelihood
exists that an Project would result in take of a federally listed species, either an
incidental take permit, under Section 10(a) of FESA, or a federal interagency
consultation, under Section 7 of FESA, is required to avoid take liability.

The USFWS and NMFS maintain areas of critical habitat for federally regulated species
to safeguard the continued existence of such species by restricting the type and extent
of activities proposed under Section 7 of FESA. Section 7 of FESA requires federal
agencies to consult with USFWS and/or NMFS for actions that may take a listed
species or their habitat. Federal agency actions include activities that are on federal
land, conducted by a federal agency, funded by a federal agency, or authorized by a
federal agency (including issuance of federal permits and licenses).

Under Section 7, the federal agency conducting, funding, or permitting an action—the
federal lead agency—must consult with USFWS and/or NMFS, as appropriate, to
ensure that the proposed action will not jeopardize endangered or threatened species or
destroy or adversely modify designated critical habitat. If a proposed action “may affect’
a listed species or designated critical habitat, the lead agency is required to prepare a
biological assessment (BA), evaluating the nature and severity of the expected effect. In
response, USFWS and/or NMFS issues a biological opinion (BO), with a determination
that the proposed action results in one of the following.

e Jeopardize the continued existence of one or more listed species (jeopardy
finding) or result in the destruction or adverse madification of critical habitat
(adverse modification finding)

¢ Not jeopardize the continued existence of any listed species (no jeopardy
finding) or result in adverse modification of critical habitat (no adverse
modification finding).

The BO issued by USFWS may stipulate discretionary “reasonable and prudent”
conservation measures. If the proposed action would not jeopardize a listed species,
USFWS will issue an incidental take statement to authorize the proposed activity.

For construction of the Proposed Project, Section 7 consultation may be initiated by the
USACE, who would be the lead federal agency, and would complete the consultation
under Section 7 related to permits for Project elements that affect wetland or waters
within their jurisdiction.

January 2025 | A-19



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)‘?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

41.2 Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act

The Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (FWCA), as amended in 1964, was enacted to
protect fish and wildlife when federal actions result in the control or modification of a
natural stream or body of water. The statute requires federal agencies to take into
consideration the effect that water-related Projects would have on fish and wildlife
resources. Consultation and coordination with USFWS and CDFW are required to
address ways to prevent loss of and damage to fish and wildlife resources, and to further
develop and improve these resources.

41.3 Migratory Bird Treaty Act

The Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) domestically implements a series of international
treaties that provide for migratory bird protection. The MBTA authorizes the Secretary of
the Interior to regulate the taking of migratory birds. The act further provides that it is
unlawful, except as permitted by regulations, “to pursue, take, or kill any migratory bird,
or any part, nest or egg of any such bird...” (16 USC 703). This prohibition includes both
direct and indirect acts, although harassment and habitat modification are not included
unless they result in direct loss of birds, nests, or eggs. The current list of species
protected by the MBTA can be found in the March 1, 2020, Federal Register (75 FR 9281).
This list comprises several hundred species, including essentially all native birds. Permits
for take of nongame migratory birds can be issued only for specific activities, such as
scientific collecting, rehabilitation, propagation, education, taxidermy, and protection of
human health and safety and of personal property. USFWS publishes a list of birds of
conservation concern to identify migratory nongame birds that are likely to become
candidates for listing under FESA without additional conservation actions.

414 Clean Water Act

The Clean Water Act (CWA) is the primary federal law that protects the quality of the
nation’s surface waters, including lakes, rivers, and coastal wetlands. The CWA directs
states to establish water quality standards for all “waters of the United States” and to
review and update such standards on atriennial basis. The U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (USEPA) has delegated responsibility forimplementation of portions of the CWA,
including water quality control planning and control programs, such as the NPDES
program (discussed below), to the SWRCB and the RWQCBs. The SWRCB establishes
statewide policies and regulations for the implementation of water quality control
programs mandated by federal and state water quality statutes and regulations. Key
sections of the CWA include the following.

Section 401

CWA Section 401 requires that an applicant pursuing a federal permit to conduct an
activity that may result in a discharge of a pollutant obtain a Water Quality Certification
(or waiver). A Water Quality Certification requires the evaluation of water quality
considerations associated with dredging or placement of fill materials into waters of the
United States. The CWA section 401 program follows a general approach of: (1) impact
avoidance as a first priority, (2) minimization of impacts if avoidance is not possible, and
(3) mitigation to compensate for unavoidable permanent impacts and ensure no net loss

January 2025 | A-20



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

of water resources occurs. Water Quality Certifications are issued by one of the nine
geographically separated Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCBs) in
California. Under the CWA, the RWQCB must issue or waive a Section 401 Water Quality
Certification for a project to be permitted under CWA Section 404.

Section 404

CWA Section 404 regulates the placement of dredge or fill material into waters of the
United States. Section 404 permits are administered by the USACE. The USACE issues
permits under general categories of Nationwide Permits (NWPs) or issues individual
permits on a case-by-case basis. USACE 404 permits generally require mitigation for loss
of wetlands or aquatic resources.

415 Executive Order 13112: Prevention and Control of Invasive Species
Federal Executive Order (EOQ) 13112, signed February 3, 1999, directs all federal
agencies to prevent and control the introduction of invasive species in a cost-effective
and environmentally sound manner. The EO established the National Invasive Species
Council, which is composed of federal agencies and departments, and a supporting
Invasive Species Advisory Committee composed of state, local, and private entities. The
council's invasive species management plan recommends objectives and measures to
implement the EO and to prevent the introduction and spread of invasive species
(National Invasive Species Council 2008). The EO requires consideration of invasive
species in National Environmental Policy Act analyses, including their identification and
distribution, their potential impacts, and measures to prevent or eradicate them.

42 State

4.2.1 California Endangered Species Act

CESA (California Fish and Game Code Sections 2050-2116) states that all native
species of fishes, amphibians, reptiles, birds, mammals, invertebrates, and plants and
their habitats that are threatened with extinction and those experiencing a significant
decline that, if not halted, would lead to a threatened or endangered designation will be
protected or preserved.

Under Section 2081 of the California Fish and Game Code, a permit from CDFW is
required for Projects that could result in the take of a species that is state listed as
threatened or endangered. Under CESA, take is defined as an activity that would
directly or indirectly kill an individual of a species. The definition does not include harm
or harass, as does the definition of take under FESA. Consequently, the threshold for
take under CESA is higher than that under FESA. For example, habitat modification is
not necessarily considered take under CESA. CESA does, however, require that
impacts be fully mitigated (California Fish and Game Code Section 2081[b]; California
Code of Regulations, Title 14, Sections 783.2-783.8).

January 2025 | A-21



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

422 California Fish and Game Code

Sections 1600 through 1616

Sections 1600 through 1616 of the California Fish and Game Code require that a
notification must be submitted to the CDFW for “any activity that may substantially divert
or obstruct the natural flow of, or substantially change or use materials from the bed,
channel, or bank of any river, stream, or lake.” CDFW reviews the notification package
and, if necessary, submits to the applicant a draft LSAA that includes measures to protect
affected fish and wildlife resources. The final proposal that is mutually agreed upon by
CDFW and the applicant is an LSAA.

Sections 3503, 3503.5, 3513, AND 3800

Sections 3503, 3503.5, 3513, and 3800 of the California Fish and Game Code afford
protection over the destruction of nests or eggs of native bird species, and it states that
no birds in the orders of Falconiformes or Strigiformes (i.e., birds of prey) can be taken,
possessed, or destroyed.

Sections 3511, 4700, 5050, AND 5515

Sections 3511 (birds), 4700 (mammals), 5050 (reptiles and amphibians), and 5515
(fish) of the California Fish and Game Code designate certain species as “fully
protected.” Fully protected species may not be taken or possessed, and incidental take
of these species cannot be authorized, except under a Natural Community
Conservation Plan (NCCP). The State of California first began to designate species as
fully protected prior to the creation of the CESA and the FESA. Lists of fully protected
species were initially developed to provide protection to animals that were rare or faced
possible extinction, including fish, amphibians, reptiles, birds, and mammals. Most fully
protected species have since been listed as threatened or endangered under the CESA
or the FESA. Fully protected species may not be taken or possessed at any time,
except under certain circumstances, such as scientific research and live capture and
relocation of such species pursuant to a permit for the protection of livestock (California
Fish and Game Code Section 3511).

4.2.3 California Native Plant Protection Act

The CNPPA of 1977 gave the California Fish and Game Commission the authority to list
plant species as rare or endangered and authorized them to adopt regulations prohibiting
importation of rare and endangered plants into California, take of rare and endangered
plants, and sale of rare and endangered plants. The CNPPA prohibits take, possession,
transportation, exportation, importation, or sale of rare and threatened plants, except as
a result of agricultural practices, fire control measures, timber operations, mining, or
actions of public agencies or private utilities. Private landowners are also exempt from
the prohibition against removing rare and endangered plants, although they must provide
10-day notice to CDFW before removing the plants. Although still active, the CNPPA has
mostly been superseded by CESA.

January 2025 | A-22



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

5.0 References

Andersen, B. R. and Keith Geluso "Roost Characteristics and Clustering Behavior of
Western Red Bats (Lasiurus blossevillii) in Southwestern New Mexico," Western
North American Naturalist 78(2), 174-183, (19 July 2018).
https://doi.org/10.3398/064.078.0208

Bechard, M. J., C. S. Houston, J. H. Sarasola, and A. S. England (2020). Swainson's
Hawk (Buteo swainsoni), version 1.0. Birds of the World.

Bury, R.B. and Germano, D.J. 2008. Actinemys marmorata (Baird and Girard 1852)—
western pond turtle, Pacific pond turtle. In: Rhodin, A.G.J., Pritchard, P.C.H., van
Dijk, P.P., Samure, R.A., Buhimann, K.A., and Iverson, J.B. (Eds.) Conservation
Biology of Freshwater Turtles and Tortoises: A Compilation Project of the
IUCN/SSC Tortoise and Freshwater Turtle Specialist Group. Chelonian
Monograph No. 5. Chelonian Research Foundation, pp. 1.1-1.9

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2024e. California Sensitive Natural
Communities. California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Sacramento, CA.
Available:

https://wildlife.ca.gov/Data/VegCAMP/NaturalCommunities/Background#sensitive
%20natural%20communities.

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2024. California Natural Diversity
Database. Accessed February 21, 2024. https://wildlife.ca.gov/Data/CNDDB

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2024.

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2016. Status Review: Swainson’s
Hawk (Buteo swainsoni) in California.

eBird. 2024. eBird: An online database of bird distribution and abundance [web

application]. eBird, Cornell Lab of Ornithology, lthaca, New York. Available:
https://ebird.org/home Accessed November 5, 2024.

Estep, J. A. (1989). Biology, Movements, and Habitat Relationships of the Swainson's
Hawk in the Central Valley of California, 1986-87. California Department of Fish
and Game, Nongame Bird and Mammal Section, Sacramento, CA, USA.

Faber-Langendoen, D, J Nichols, L Master, K Snow, A Tomaino, R Bittman, G
Hammerson, et al. 2012. NatureServe Conservation Status Assessments:
Methodology for Assigning Ranks. Available: www.natureserve.org/biodiversity-

science/publications/natureserve-conservation-statusassessments-methodology-
assigning.

HDR. 2024. Aquatic Resources Delineation Report for ADRoP. August.

Jennings, M. R., and M. P. Hayes. 1985. Pre-1900 over Harvest of California Red-

Legged Frog (Rana aurora draytonii): The Inducement for Bullfrog (Rana
catesbeiana) Introduction. Herpetologica 41:94—103.

January 2025 | A-23



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration FD?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS). 2024. Soil Survey Staff, United
States Department of Agriculture. Web Soil Survey. Available online at the
following link: https://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/. Accessed July 16, 2024.

Shuford, W.D. and Gardali, T., editors. 2008. California Bird Species of Special
Concern. A Ranked Assessment of Species, Subspecies, and Distinct
Populations of Birds of Immediate Conservation Concern in California. California
Department of Fish and Game Sacramento, California.

Solick, Donald |.;Barclay, Robert M. R.;Bishop-Boros, Larisa;Hays, Quentin R.;Lausen,
Cori L. (2020). Distributions of eastern and western red bats in western North
America. Western North American Naturalist.
https://doi.org/10.3398/064.080.0111

Thomson, R.C., Wright, A. N., and Shaffer, H. B. 2016. California amphibian and reptile
species

Trenham, P.C. 2001. Terrestrial habitat use by adult California Tiger Salamanders.
Journal of Herpetology. 35:343-346.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2002. Recovery Plan for the California Red-
legged Frog (Rana aurora draytonii). U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Portland,
Oregon, USA. viii + 173 p.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2024a. Information for Planning and
Conservation (IPAC). Species list generator. Accessed May 11, 2024.
https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2024b. Critical Habitat Portal. Accessed
August 8, 2024. www.fws.gov/study/critical-habitat.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2024c. National Wetlands Inventory Mapper.

Zeiner, D. C., W. F. Laudenslayer, Jr., and K. E. Mayer (eds.). 1990. California’s
Wildlife. Volume 2: Birds. California Statewide Wildlife Habitat Relationships
System. Sacramento, CA: California Department of Fish and Game.

January 2025 | A-24



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Appendix B. Cultural Resources



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration }_)‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Appendix B. Cultural Resources

Under CEQA, a project with an effect that may cause a substantial adverse change in the
significance of an historical resource is a project that may have a significant effect on the
environment. Substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource is defined as
physical demolition, destruction, relocation, or alteration of the resource or its immediate
surroundings such that the significance of a historical resource would be materially impaired. The
significance of a historical resource would be significantly impaired when a project demolishes or
materially alters in an adverse manner those physical characteristics of an historical resource that
convey its historical significance and that justify its inclusion in, or eligibility for inclusion in, the
NRHP, the CRHR, or a local register of historic resources pursuant to Section 5020.1(k) of the
Public Resources Code.

This section presents an overview of information on the local precontact history and historic-period
of the Proposed Action area and vicinity. Understanding local cultural history is critical in defining
important local, state, and/or regional events, trends, or patterns in prehistory and history by which
the significance of prehistoric and historical cultural resources may be evaluated and their
significance may be established.

Archaeological Context

Within the Hollister Valley basin, sites older than 2500 Cal B.P. have not been recorded, which may
be reflective of increased alluviation during the late Holocene (Rosenthal et al. 2003). Substantial
alterations in sediment formation process may have erased potential Paleoindian and Millingstone
signatures or Paleoenvironmental patterns may have disfavored a substantial human presence.

Sites dating to the Middle and Middle/Late Transition periods have been identified near Elkhomn
Slough and near Salinas as well as to the northeast in Hollister Valley. Sites from these periods
include bowl and hopper mortars; long-stemmed, concave base, and side-notched projectile points.
Archaeological evidence of the Late and Protohistoric periods (A.D. 1200-1769) is poorly
represented in the adjacent Monterey Bay area but do occur to the southwest in Hollister Valley.
Sites dating to these periods include schist, clamshell, and abalone disc beads; small side-notched
projectile points; hopper and bedrock mortars; millingslabs; pestles; and handstones.

Historic Context

While the Monterey Bay had been explored by Europeans since the 17th century, it would be over a
century until Spain established a settlement. From Monterey, overland explorations were conducted,
bringing Spanish soldiers and missionaries into Hollister Valley. By 1797, Mission San Juan Bautista
was founded though it would not be until 1803 that the comerstone of a permanent mission church
would be laid down (Barrows 1893). By the early 1800s, the population of Mission San Juan Bautista
totaled 987 (Forbes 1839). After more than a decade of intermittent rebellion and warfare, New
Spain (Mexico and the Califomia territory) won independence from Spain in 1821. Extensive land
grants were established in the interior during the Mexican Period, in part to increase the population
inland.

In 1845, the Congress of the United States of America declared war on Mexico. On Tuesday July
7th, 1846, the United States landed 250 marines and sailors at Monterrey who raised the flag of the

January 2025 | B-1



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

United States at the customs house and read an official proclamation claiming Alta California for the
United States (Bancroft 1884). The next several decades brought Euro-American settlers into the
Project area.

An economy centered on agricuiture drove the settlement of the region. The foundations were laid
prior to the American period, with Mission San Juan Bautista being the second most abundant
agricultural producer within the jurisdiction of the Presidio of Monterey (Forbes 1839). The first
Euroamerican to settle within what would later become the City of Hollister was Jacob Watson
(Barrows 1893). By 1855, William Welles Hollister, along with his brother and sister, were leasing
most of Hollister Valley for pastureland (McMahon and Sonne 2012). In 1868, an outline of a town
was laid out near the home of William Hollister with 50 homestead lots (McMahon and Sonne 2012).
The same year, Hollister soid his portion of Hollister Valley to the San Justo Homestead Association
(ibid). In honor of the former landowner, the association named the new town ‘Hollister' (Pierce
1981). By 1880, the town had grown to a population of a thousand residents (Barrows 1893). By
1874, the current county of San Benito County was carved out of Monterey County with Hollister as
its capital (ibid). Agriculture and ranching continue to be the primary drivers of Hollister's economy.

Regulatory Setting

National Historic Preservation Act

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) requires federal undertakings to
consider the effects of the action on historic properties. Historic properties are defined by the
Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP) regulations (36 Code of Federal Regulations
[CFR] Part 800) and consist of any prehistoric or historical archaeological site, building, structure,
historic district, or object included in, or eligible for inclusion in, the National Register of Historic
Places (NRHP) maintained by the Secretary of the Interior. This term includes artifacts, records, and
remains that are related to and located within such properties. The term includes properties of
traditional religious and cultural importance to an Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian organization that
meet the National Register criteria (36 CFR Part 800.186[{]).

To determine whether an undertaking could affect NRHP-eligible properties, cultural resources
(including archaeological, historical, and architectural properties) must be inventoried and evaluated
for listing in the NRHP.

For projects involving a lead federal agency, cultural resource significance is evaluated in terms of
eligibility for listing in the NRHP. For a property to be considered for inclusion in the NRHP, it must
be at least 50 years old and meet the criteria for evaluation set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.4.

The quality of significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, and culture
must be present in districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity of design,
setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. They must also meet one or more of the
four criteria for inclusion on the NRHP:

e Criterion A, Association with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of history;

e Criterion B, Association with the lives of persons significant in the past;

e Criterion C, Embodiment of distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction, the work of a master, high artistic values, or a significant and distinguishable
entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or

January 2025 | B-2



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)Q
Accelerated Drought Response Project

e Criterion D, History of yielding, or the potential to yield, information important in prehistory or
history.

If a cultural resources professional meeting the Secretary of Interior's Qualification Standards
determines a particular resource meets one of these criteria, it is considered as an eligible historic
property for listing in the NRHP. Among other criteria considerations, a property that has achieved
significance within the last 50 years is not considered eligible for inclusion in the NRHP unless
certain exceptional conditions are met.

Resources listed on, or eligible to, the NRHP are automatically considered historical resources for
the purposes of CEQA.

California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 defines a historical resource as a resource included in or eligible
forinclusion in the Califomnia Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) or included in a local register
of historical resources. It also includes any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record, or
manuscript which a CEQA lead agency determines to be historically significant or significant in the
architectural, engineering, scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, social, political, military, or
cultural annals of California.

Generally, a resource shall be determined by a CEQA lead agency to be “historically significant” if
the resource meets the criteria for listing in the CRHR, which include the following:

e Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
California’s history and cultural heritage;

e s associated with the lives of persons important in our past;

 Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of construction,
or represents the work of a master or possesses high artistic values; or

e Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. (CCR 14
Section 4852).

To be considered a historical resource for the purpose of CEQA, the resource must also have
integrity, which is the authenticity of a resource’s physical identity evidenced by the survival of
characteristics that existed during the resource’s period of significance. Resources, therefore, must
retain enough of their historic character or appearance to be recognizable as historical resources
and to convey the reasons for their significance. Integrity is evaluated with regard to the retention of
location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. It must also be judged
with reference to the particular criteria under which a resource is eligible for listing in the CRHR
(CCR 14 Section 4852][c]).

Unique Archeological Resources

The PRC also requires the Lead Agency to determine whether or not a project would have a
significant effect on unique archaeological resources (PRC Section 21083.2[a]). The PRC defines a
unique archaeological resource as follows.

An archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that, without
merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is a high probability that it meets any of the
following criteria:

January 2025 | B-3



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration }_D?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

¢ Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there
is a demonstrable public interest in that information;

e Has a special and particular quality such as being the oldest of its type or the best available
example of its type; or

e s directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or
person (PRC Section 21083.2).

In most situations, resources that meet the definition of a unique archaeological resource also meet
the definition of a historical resource. As a result, it is current professional practice to evaluate
cultural resources for significance based on their eligibility for listing in the CRHR.

California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5

Regarding the discovery of human remains on non-federal lands, Section 7050.5 of the California
Health and Safety Code (CHSC) prohibits the disturbance or removal of any human remains in or
from any location other than a dedicated cemetery without authority of law. Section 7050.5(b) and (c)
set forth following procedures to be implemented should human remains be encountered:

» b)in the event of discovery orrecognition of any human remains in any location other than a
dedicated cemetery, there shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any
nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent remains until the coroner of the county
in which the human remains are discovered has determined, in accordance with Chapter 10
(commencing with Section 27460) of Part 3 of Division 2 of Title 3 of the Califomnia
Govemment Code [CGC], that the remains are not subject to the provisions of Section 27491
of the CGC or any other related provisions of law conceming investigation of the
circumstances, manner and cause of any death, and the recommendations conceming the
treatment and disposition of the human remains have been made to the person responsible
for the excavation, or to his or her authorized representative, in the manner provided in
Section 5097.98 of the PRC. The coroner shall make his or her determination within two
working days from the time the person responsible for the excavation, or his or her
authorized representative, notifies the coroner of the discovery or recognition of the human
remains.

¢ c) If the coroner determines that the remains are not subject to his or her authority and if the
coroner recognizes the human remains to be those of a Native American or has reason to

believe that they are those of a Native American, he or she shall contact, by telephone within
24 hours, the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) (CHSC Section 7050.5).

Of particular note to cultural resources is subsection (c). After notification, NAHC would follow the
procedures outlined in PRC Section 5097.98, which include notification of most likely descendants
(MLD), if possible, and recommendations for treatment of the remains. The MLD would have 24
hours after notification by the NAHC to make their recommendation (PRC Section 5097.98). In
addition, knowing or willful possession of Native American human remains or artifacts taken from a
grave or cairn is a felony under State law (PRC Section 5097.99).

Methodology

The location and eligibility status of previously recorded archaeological, ethnographic, and built
environment resources were identified for the project Area of Potential Effect (APE; Figure 1) using:

January 2025 | B4



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

¢ Records search data of previously conducted cultural resource studies and previously
recorded cultural resources on file with Northwest Information Center (NWIC) of the

Caiifornia Historical Resources Information System — database searches conducted in March
2022 and July 2024.

o Listings of the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP).
e listings of the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR).

o Listings of the California Office of Historic Preservation’s (OHP) Built Environment
Resources Directory (BERD).

e California Points of Historical Interest (1992).
» California State Landmarks (1996).
¢ California Inventory of Historic Resources (1988).

The Web Soil Survey online mapping tool available from the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA), Natural Resources Conservation Service
(NRCS)(https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/WebSoilSurvey.aspx).

Historic aerials and topographic maps available at (www.historicaerials.com).

The records search data revealed that the Proposed Project area had previously been surveyed only
in part. As such, a survey of the pottions of the Proposed Project that had not previously been
surveyed was determined necessary. The field effort for the Proposed Project consisted of intensive
pedestrian surveys of all exposed ground surfaces in the Proposed Project area. Surveys were
conducted between June and September 2024. Consultation efforts with California Native American
tribes that may have an interest in the Proposed Project are summarized in the Tribal Cultural
Resources chapter.

Identification Results

As a result of the records search and cultural surveys, two previously recorded resources and six
newly recorded resources were identified. One of the previousiy recorded resources is a historic-
period archaeological resource (P-35-000358) and the other is a built environment resource (P-35-
000652). One of the newly recorded resources is a historic-period archaeological resource and five
are built environment resources. No previously recorded or newly discovered precontact resources
were encountered. Descriptions of these resources and evaluation recommendations in accordance
with the criteria for CRHR listing (CCR 14 Section 4852), as described previously in this chapter, are
provided in the following sections.

January 2025 | B-5



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration

Lo
;b‘
\l’-

Ho e
’ B
coe

i
J .t

ASKE Well
[

@ Flanrad

Accelerated Drought Response Project F)?

LEGEND
O3 fmsanl Potwer
[ vsss o
20 iy of Hut s

Figure 1. Area of Potential Effect (APE)

January 2025 | B-6



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Archaeological Resources

P-35-000358 was originally recorded in 2001 and, at the time, consisted of redeposited structural
materials from two small, wood-framed houses built in 1916 and 1925 and an agricultural weigh
station. The current survey effort did not observe evidence of the previously recorded resource, and
it appears to have been destroyed or removed.

HDR Temp #1 is a newly recorded historic-period refuse scatter broadly dispersed throughout an
agricultural irfigation ditch. The refuse scatter shows signs of having been displaced and redeposited
through the maintenance of the irrigation ditch. It consists of glass fragments (cobalt, aqua,
colorless, amber, olive, green, and amethyst) and ceramic fragments. Density of artifacts is around
two to five items and/or fragments per square meter. Additionally, there is modem debris
interspersed throughout the site. The trash scatter appears to have accumulated from the early to
late 20th century and may be associated with a nearby residence. As an archaeological resource, it
has been evaluated for its potential significance under CRHR Criteria 1, 2, and 4. The resource does
not appear to have been associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the
broad pattemns of our history. Research has not demonstrated that the resource is associated with
the lives of persons significant in our past. The recording of this historic-period refuse scatter
encapsulates its likely information potential. As such, the resource has been recommended not
eligible for listing on the CRHR.

Built Environment Resources

P-35-000852 was originally recorded in 2001 and, at the time, consisted of a 16.8-acre property,
which contained a single-family residence, a bamn, a shed, a wash house, and the remnants of a
tankhouse dating circa 1900. The current survey effort observed that the structures and associated
foundations have been destroyed and any building debris removed. The location where the
structures had been located has been plowed and an agricultural irrigation system has been
constructed. It was concluded from observation that the resource is no longer extant and,
accordingly, does not meet any of the CRHR criteria as a historical resource.

1101 San Felipe Road is a mid-20t century commercial building. The structure measures 188ft east
to west and 60ft north to south with a gabled roof and a false front. As a later or further development
of the Cottage Comers area of Hollister, the resource does not appear to have been associated with
events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history (Criterion 1).
Research has not demonstrated that the resource is associated with the lives of persons significant
in our past (Criterion 2). Architecturally, the resource appears to have a common design found in the
region (Criterion 3). The recording of this built-environment resource encapsulates its likely
information potential, and further research is unlikely to yield additional information (Criterion 4). As
such, the resource has been recommended not eligible for listing on the CRHR.

Wiebe Motel (1271 San Felipe Road) is a mid-20t century motel with Googie/Mid-Century Modern
style design elements. The motel building, paved parking lot, and grounds measure 198ft north to
south by 228ft east to west. Though the Wiebe Motel is a product of the mid to late 20th century car
and motorlodge culture, the resource itself does not appear to have made a significant contribution
to the broad pattemns of our history (Criterion 1). Research has not demonstrated that the resource is
associated with the lives of persons significant in our past (Criterion 2). The resource does not
appear to be a distinctive example of a type (Criterion 3). The recording of this built-environment
resource encapsulates its likely information potential, and further research is unlikely to yield

January 2025 | B-7



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_D"z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

additional information (Criterion 4). As such, the resource has been recommended not eligible for
listing on the CRHR. ‘

501 Fallon Road is a late 20th century single-family residential building in a mixed residential,
commercial, and agricultural setting. The singie-story building is part of a residential subdivision that
was built around 1970 north of the town center of Hollister. As a later and further residential
development of the City of Hollister, the resource does not appear to have been associated with
events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history (Criterion 1).
Research has not demonstrated that the resource is associated with the lives of persons significant
in our past (Criterion 2). Architecturally, the resource appears to have a common design found in the
region (Criterion 3). The recording of this built-environment resource encapsulates its likely
information potential, and further research is unlikely to yield additional information (Criterion 4). As
such, the resource has been recommended not eligible for listing on the CRHR.

2071 Santa Rosa Drive is a late 20th century single-family residential building, and part of the same
residential subdivision as 501 Fallon Road. It is a single-story building with a design like 501 Fallon
Road. As a later and further residential development of the City of Hollister, the resource does not
appear to have been associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of our history (Criterion 1). Research has not demonstrated that the resource is associated
with the lives of persons significant in our past (Criterion 2). Architecturally, the resource appears to
have a common design found in the region (Criterion 3). The recording of this built-environment
resource encapsulates its likely information potential, and further research is unlikely to yield
additional information (Criterion 4). As such, the resource has been recommended not eligible for
listing on the CRHR.

882 Fallon Road consists of two conjoined later 20th century agricultural or commercial buildings.
The larger of the two freestanding buildings measures approximately 130 feet by 40 feet, and the
smaller building measures 110 feet by 25 feet with a conjoining structure measuring 30 feet by 22
feet. Both structures appear to be single-story with pitched roofs. The agricultural development of
this portion of Hollister Valiey began in the 19th century, making the resource a later and relatively
recent continuation of the use of area for agricultural and associated commercial purposes. The
resource does not appear to have been associated with events that have made a significant
contribution to the broad pattems of our history. (Criterion 1). Research has not demonstrated that
the resource is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past (Criterion 2).
Architecturally, the resource appears to have a common design found in the region (Criterion 3). The
recording of this built-environment resource encapsulates its likely information potential, and further
research is unlikely to yield additional information (Criterion 4). As such, the resource has been
recommended not eligible for listing on the CRHR.

Identification of Historical Resources

No historical resources per CCR 14 Section 4852 were identified as a result of the records search
and surveys.

Cultural Resources

National Historic Preservation Act

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) requires federal undertakings to
consider the effects of the action on historic properties. Historic properties are defined by the

January 2025 | B-8



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP) regulations (36 Code of Federal Regulations
[CFR] Part 800) and consist of any prehistoric or historical archaeological site, building, structure,
historic district, or object included in, or eligible for inclusion in, the National Register of Historic
Places (NRHP) maintained by the Secretary of the Interior. This term includes artifacts, records, and
remains that are related to and located within such properties. The term includes properties of
traditional religious and cultural importance to an Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian organization that
meet the National Register criteria (36 CFR Part 800.16[l}).

To determine whether an undertaking could affect NRHP-eligible properties, cultural resources
(including archaeological, historical, and architectural properties) must be inventoried and evaluated
for listing in the NRHP.

For projects involving a lead federal agency, cultural resource significance is evaluated in terms of
eligibility for listing in the NRHP. For a property to be considered for inclusion in the NRHP, it must
be at least 50 years old and meet the criteria for evaluation set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.4.

The quality of significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, and culture
must be present in districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity of design,

setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. They must also meet one or more of the
four criteria for inclusion on the NRHP: '

e Criterion A, Association with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of history;

« Criterion B, Association with the lives of persons significant in the past;

e Criterion C, Embodiment of distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction, the work of a master, high artistic values, or a significant and distinguishable
entity whose components may lack individual distinction; or

e Criterion D, History of yielding, or the potential to yield, information important in prehistory or
history.

If a cultural resources professional meeting the Secretary of Interior's Qualification Standards
determines a particular resource meets one of these criteria, it is considered as an eligible historic
property for listing in the NRHP. Among other criteria considerations, a property that has achieved
significance within the last 50 years is not considered eligible for inclusion in the NRHP unless
certain exceptional conditions are met.

Resources listed on, or eligible to, the NRHP are automatically considered historical resources for
the purposes of CEQA.

California Environmental Quality Act

CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 defines a historical resource as a resource included in or eligible
forinclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) or included in a local register
of historical resources. It also includes any object, building, structure, site, area, place, record, or
manuscript which a CEQA lead agency determines to be historically significant or significant in the
architectural, engineering, scientific, economic, agricultural, educational, social, political, military, or
cultural annals of California.

Generally, a resource shall be determined by a CEQA lead agency to be “historically significant” if
the resource meets the criteria for listing in the CRHR, which include the following:

January 2025 | B-9



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration |_3‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad pattems of
Califomia’s history and cultural heritage;

1. |s associated with the lives of persons important in our past;

2. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of atype, period, region, Or method of construction, of
represents the work of a master or possesses high artistic values; or

3. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or history. (CCR 14
Section 4852).

To be considered a historical resource for the purpose of CEQA, the resource must also have
integrity, which is the authenticity of a resource’s physical identity evidenced by the survival of
characteristics that existed during the resource’s period of significance. Resources, therefore, must
retain enough of their historic character or appearance to be recognizable as historical resources
and to convey the reasons for their significance. integrity is evaluated with regard to the retention of
location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association. It must also be judged
with reference to the particular criteria under which a resource is eligible for listing in the CRHR
(CCR 14 Section 4852[c]).

Unigue Archeological Resources

The PRC also requires the Lead Agency to determine whether or not a project would have a
significant effect on unique archaeological resources (PRC Section 21083.2[a]). The PRC defines a
unique archaeological resource as follows.

An archaeological artifact, object, or site about which it can be clearly demonstrated that, without
merely adding to the current body of knowledge, there is @ high probability that it meets any of the
following criteria:

o Contains information needed to answer important scientific research questions and that there
is a demonstrable public interest in that information;

« Has aspecial and particular quality such as being the oldest of its type or the best available
example of its type; of

« Is directly associated with a scientifically recognized important prehistoric or historic event or
person (PRC Section 21083.2).

In most situations, resources that meet the definition of a unique archaeological resource also meet
the definition of a historical resource. As @ result, it is current professional practice to evaluate
cultural resources for significance based on their eligibility for listing in the CRHR.

California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5

Regarding the discovery of human remains on non-federal lands, Section 7050.5 of the Califomia
Health and Safety Code (CHSC) prohibits the disturbance or removal of any human remains in or
from any location other than a dedicated cemetery without authority of law. Section 7050.5(b) and (c)
set forth following procedures t0 be implemented should human remains pe encountered:

e b)In the event of discovery or recognition of any human remains in any location other than a
dedicated cemetery, there shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site or any

nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent remains until the coroner of the county
in which the human remains are discovered has determined, in accordance with Chapter 10

January 2025 | B-10



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration }_)Q
Accelerated Drought Response Project

(commencing with Section 27460) of Part 3 of Division 2 of Title 3 of the California

Government Code [CGC], that the remains are not subject to the provisions of Section 27491
of the CGC or any other related provisions of law concerning investigation of the
circumstances, manner and cause of any death, and the recommendations concerning the
treatment and disposition of the human remains have been made to the person responsible
for the excavation, or to his or her authorized representative, in the manner provided in
Section 5097.98 of the PRC. The coroner shall make his or her determination within two
working days from the time the person responsible for the excavation, or his or her

V authorized representative, notifies the coroner of the discovery or recognition of the human
remains.

o ¢) If the coroner determines that the remains are not subject to his or her authority and if the
coroner recognizes the human remains to be those of a Native American or has reason to

believe that they are those of a Native American, he or she shall contact, by telephone within
24 hours, the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) (CHSC Section 7050.5).

Of particular note to cultural resources is subsection (c). After notification, NAHC would follow the
procedures outlined in PRC Section 5007.98, which include notification of most likely descendants
(MLD), if possible, and recommendations for treatment of the remains. The MLD would have 24
hours after notification by the NAHC to make their recommendation (PRC Section 5097.98). In
addition, knowing or willful possession of Native American human remains or artifacts taken from a
grave or caim is a felony under State law (PRC Section 5097.99).

January 2025 | B-11



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Appendix C. Environmental Setting



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration !_3‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Appendix C. Environmental Settings

This appendix contains the Environmental Settings for each resource category discussed in the
IS/EA. This information was moved to an appendix in order to meet NEPA page limit guidelines.
Please refer to the IS/EA for the Environmental checklist and significance determinations. See
additional detailed analysis in Appendix A (Biological Resources) and Appendix B (Cultural
Resources).

Aesthetics

The Proposed Project has components located within the incorporated City of Hollister as well as
components located to the south and north of city limits within unincorporated San Benito County.
Hollister is surrounded by mountain ranges, including the Gabilan Range to the south and west and
by the Diablo Range to the east. The Proposed Project area's visual setting is characterized by
agricultural fields, vacant land, and low-density commercial and residential development, with distant
views of mountainous terrain.

Agriculture and Forestry Resources

Agricultural land represents about 75 percent of the total land area in San Benito County (San Benito
County 2015a). The City of Hollister consists of lands with deep alluvial soils and includes some of
the most productive soils in the country (City of Hollister 2005).

Figure 1 shows Farmland designations within the Proposed Project area, based on information from
the California Important Farmland Finder (DOC 2022a). According to the Important Farmland finder,
most of the Proposed Project area is within land designated as Urban and Built-Up Land. However,
the proposed ASR well sites are located within areas designated as Farmland of Statewide
Importance.

January 2025 | C1



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

T

] &

| 8% ASR Well

§ e

; ©  Fropanesd Sits

| D Project Lactkar
; 3 [ Gy of Hatister
i cof

i

LEGEND
California Important Farmland

ol Roerey - 3550

B Frona Farrian:
Pt eof Satendsde fonpurtaniae
Lhoigue Facmbard
Grachgs Land

Farrare of Lacal imponignea

ACLELERAY
RESFONSE PRI

Figure 1: Farmland Designations

January 2025 | C-2



No forestry resources are located in the Proposed Project area (San Benito County 2015a).

Air Quality

The Proposed Project area is Iocated within the boundaries of the North Central Coast Air Basin
(NCCAB). The NCCAB comprises all of Santa Cruz, San Benito and Monterey Counties. The
Monterey Bay Air Resources District (MBARD), formerly the Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution
Control District (MBUAPCD), is the regional air quality agency for the NCCAB.

Regional Climate, Topography, and Meteorology

The NCCAB lies along the central coast of California and covers an area of 5,159 square miles that
contains alternating mountain ranges and valleys. The San Benito Valley, which runs northwest-
southeast and is bounded on the east by the Diablo Range and on the west by the Gabilan Range
(MBUAPCD 2008).

The semi-permanent high pressure cell in the eastern Pacific is the basic controlling factor in the
climate of the NCCAB. In the summer, the high pressure cell is dominant and causes persistent west
and northwest winds over the entire California coast. Air descends in the Pacific High, forming a
stable temperature inversion of hot air over a cool coastal layer of air. The onshore air currents pass
over cool ocean waters to bring fog and relatively cool air into the coastal valleys. The warmer air
aloft acts as a lid to inhibit vertical air movement. The generally northwest-southeast orientation of
mountainous ridges tends to restrict and channel the summer onshore air currents. Surface heating
in the interior portion of the Salinas and San Benito Valleys creates a weak low pressure which
intensifies the onshore air flow during the afternoon and evening (MBUAPCD 2008).

in the fall, the surface winds become weak, and the marine layer grows shallow, dissipating
altogether on some days. The air flow is occasionally reversed in a weak offshore movement, and
the relatively stationary air mass is held in place by the Pacific High pressure cell, which allows
pollutants to build up over a period of afew days. It is most often during this season that the north or
east winds develop to transport pollutants from either the San Francisco Bay area or the Central
Valley into the NCCAB. During the winter, the Pacific High migrates southward and has less
influence on the air basin. Air frequently flows in a southeasterly direction out of the Salinas and San
Benito Valleys, especially during night and moming hours. Northwest winds are nevertheless still
dominant in winter, but easterly flow is more frequent. The general absence of deep, persistent
inversions and the occasional storm systems usually result in good air quality for the basin as a
whole in winter and early spring (MBUAPCD 2008).

Hollister, at the northemn end of the San Benito Valley, experiences west winds nearly one-third of
the time. The prevailing air flow during the summer months probably originates in the Monterey Bay
area and enters the northern end of the San Benito Valley through the air gap through the Gabilan
Range occupied by the Pajaro River. In addition, a northwesterly air flow frequently transports
pollutants into the San Benito Valley from the Santa Clara Valley (MBUAPCD 2008).

Pollutants of Concern

Criteria Air Pollutants

Criteria air pollutants are defined as pollutants for which the federal and state governments have
established ambient air quality standards to protect public health and welfare. There are six criteria

January 2025 | C-3



air pollutants: ozone (O3); particulate matter, which consists of particulate matter 10 micrometers and
smaller (PM10) and particulate matter 2.5 micrometers and smaller (PM2.5); carbon monoxide (CO};
nitrogen dioxide (NO2); sulfur dioxide (S02); and lead (Pb). Os is considered a regional pollutant
because its precursors - nitrogen oxides (NOx) and reactive organic gases (ROG) - affect air quality
on a regional scale. Pollutants such as CO are considered local pollutants that tend to accumulate in
the air locally. Particulate matteris both aregional and local pollutant. The primary criteria poliutants
generated by the Proposed Project are O3 precursors (NOx and ROG), CO, and PM1o. Principal
characteristics and possible health and environmental effects of these criteria air pollutants are
described below.

1

Ozone: O3, also known as smog, is not emitted directly into the atmosphere. Instead, it is a
secondary pollutant that is formed when ROG and NOx (both by-products of the internal
combustion engine exhaust) undergo chemical reactions in the presence of sunlight. ROG
and NOx are known as Oz precursors. Ozone poses a health threat to those who already
suffer from respiratory diseases (e.g., asthma) as well as to healthy people. Exposure to Os
can cause coughing, sore or scratchy throat, inflamed airways, chest pain, lung infection,
and aggravation of lung diseases such as asthma, emphysema, and chronic bronchitis
(United Stated Environmental Protection Agency [USEPA] 2024a). Exposure to elevated
concentrations of O3 can result in deaths from respiratory causes. Additionally, ozone has
been tied to crop damage, typically in the form of stunted growth, reduced photosynthesis,
increased risk of diseases, and leaf discoloration (USEPA 2023).

Carbon Monoxide: CO is a colorless, odorless gas produced by incomplete combustion of
carbon substances, such as gasoline or diesel fuel. CO concentrations tend to be the highest
during winter mornings with little to no wind, when surface-based inversions trap the pollutant
at ground levels. The highest ambient CO concentrations are generally found near traffic-
congested corridors and intersections. The primary adverse health effect associated with CO
is interference with normal oxygen transfer to the blood, which may result in tissue oxygen
deprivation. Exposure to very high levels of CO, which are possible indoors or in other
enclosed environments, can cause dizziness, confusion, unconsciousness, and death
(USEPA 2024b).

Particulate matter: Particulate matter consists of finely divided solids or liquids such as
soot, dust, aerosols, fumes, and mists. Particulate matter includes PM1o, which are inhalable
coarse particles with a diameter of 10 micrometers or less, and PMz.s, which are inhalable
fine particles with a diameter of 2.5 micrometers or less. Particulate discharge into the
atmosphere results primarily from industrial, agricultural, construction, and transportation
activities. Particles less than 10 micrometers in diameter pose the greatest risk to heaith
because these particles can get deep into the lungs and may even enter the bloodstream.
Health effects of exposure to particulate matter include premature death in people with heart
or lung disease, nonfatal heart attacks, irregular heartbeat, aggravated asthma, decreased
lung function, and increased respiratory symptoms (e.g., irritation of the airways, coughing or
difficulty breathing). Particulate matter can also cause environmental effects such as reduced
visibility (haze), environmental damage (e.g., making lakes and streams acidic, depleting
nutrients in soils, damaging sensitive forests and farm crops, affecting diversity of
ecosystems, and contributing to acid rain effects), and aesthetic damage by staining stone
and other materials (USEPA 2024c).

January 2025 | C4



Toxic Air Contaminants

According to the California Health and Safety Code, a toxic air contaminant (TAC) is “an air pollutant
which may cause or contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in serious illness, or which
may pose a present or potential hazard to human health” (California Air Resources Board [CARB]
2024a). CARB has formally identified over 200 substances and groups of substances as TACs.
Examples of TACs include benzene; asbestos; formaldehyde; dioxin; toluene; and metals such as
cadmium, mercury, chromium, and lead compounds, among many others (CARB 2024a).

Diesel engines emit a complex mixture of pollutants, including very small carbon particles, or “soot”
coated with numerous organic compounds, known as diesel particulate matter (DPM). DPM contains
more than 40 cancer-causing substances, most of which are readily adsorbed onto the soot
particles. In 1998, the CARB identified DPM as a TAC based on its potential to cause cancer.

Most major sources of diesel engine emissions, such as ships, trains, and trucks, operate in and
around urban areas. As a result, people living and working in cities and industrial areas and near
heavy truck or train traffic are most likely to be exposed to DPM. Exposure to DPM can contribute to
a range of health problems, including cancer. Diesel engine emissions are believed to be
responsible for about 70 percent of California's estimated known cancer risk attributable to TACs
(CARB 2024b). DPM comprises about 8 percent of PM2.5 in outdoor air, which is a known health
hazard. As a significant fraction of PM2.5, DPM contributes to numerous health impacts that have
been attributed to particulate matter exposure, including increased hospital admissions, particularly
for heart disease, but also for respiratory ilinesses, and even premature death. Additionally,
exposure to DPM may contribute to the onset of new allergies. DPM also affects the environment by
reducing visibility and contributing to global warming (CARB 2024b).

Odor

Other air quality issues of concern in the NCCAB include nuisance from odors. Odors represent
emissions of one or more pollutants that are a nuisance to healthy persons and may trigger asthma
episodes in people with sensitive airways. Pollutants associated with objectionable odors include
sulfur compounds and methane. Typical sources of odors include landfills, rendering plants,
chemical plants, agricultural uses, wastewater treatment plants, and refineries. Odors are a complex
problem that can be caused by minute quantities of substances. Because people have differing
reactions to odors, the nuisance level of an odor varies. (MBUAPCD 2008).

Existing Air Quality

Ambient Air Quality

Ambient air quality is monitored at seven MBARD-operated monitoring stations located in Salinas,
Hollister, Carmel Valley, Santa Cruz, Scotts Valley, Davenport, and Watsonville. In addition, the
National Park Service operates a station at Pinnacles National Park and an industry consortium
operates a station in King City. These stations measure concentrations of pollutants for which
National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) and California Ambient Air Quality Standards
(CAAQS) have been set by the USEPA and the CARB, respectively.

The closest monitoring station to the proposed Project area is the Hollister-Fairview Road monitoring
station, located approximately 3.4 miles south of the proposed Project area. The Hollister-Fairview
Road station monitors O3, PM1o, PM2s5, Outdoor Temperature, Relative Humidity, Wind Direction-
Scalar, and Wind Speed-Scalar (Table 1).



Table 1: Ambient Air Quality Data at the Hollister-Fairview Road Monitoring Station from 2021
to 2023.

Pollutant Standards’ Year

2021 2022 2023
O3
Maximum 1-hour concentration (ppm) 0.077 0.073 0.065
Maximum 8-hour concentration (ppm) 0.068 0.058 0.056

Number of days standard exceeded

CAAQS 1-hour (>0.09 ppm) 0 0 0
NAAQS 8-hour (>0.07 ppm) 0 0 0
CAAQS 8-hour (>0.07 ppm) 0 0 0
PM1o

National maximum 24-hour concentration (ug/m3) 128.8 77.4 56.4
State maximum 24-hour concentration (g/md) 130.0 753 56.8
National annual average concentration (ug/m?) 194 ; 18.2 12.6
State annual average concentration (ug/m3) 19.3 | 18.5 12.3

Number of days standard exceeded

NAAQS 24-hour (>150 ug/m®) 0 0 0
CAAQS 24-hour (>50 pg/m3) 5 4 2
PM2s

National maximum 24-hour concentration (ug/m®) 27.2 19.5 394
State maximum 24-hour concentration (ug/m?) 272 19.5 394
National annual average concentration (ug/md) 5.6 5.0 4
State annual average concentration (jg/m?3) 5.6’ 5.0 4

Number of days standard exceeded

NAAQS 24-hour (>35 pg/m®) 0 0

Source: CARB 2023

Notes: O3 = ozone; PM1o = particles of 10 micrometers and smaller; PM2s= particles of 2.5 micrometers and smaller,;
ppm = parts per million; ug/m? = micrograms per cubic meter; ppb = parts per billion; NAAQS = National Ambient Air
Quality Standards; CAAQS = California Ambient Air Quality Standards; * = insufficientdata available to determine the
value

1. Outdoor Temperature, Relative Humidity, Wind Direction-Scalar, and Wind Speed-Scalar.dataare not available on
CARB's website

January 2025 | C-6



Attainment Status

The Federal Clean Air Act (FCAA) requires the USEPA to designate areas within the country as
either “attainment” or “nonattainment” for each criteria pollutant based on whether the NAAQS have
been achieved. Similarly, the California Clean Air Act (CCAA) requires the CARB to designate areas
within California as either “attainment” or “nonattainment” for each criteria poliutant based on
whether the CAAQS have been achieved. If a pollutant concentration is lower than the NAAQS or
CAAQS, the area is classified as “attainment” for that pollutant. If a pollutant exceeds the NAAQS or
CAAQS, the area is classified as “nonattainment” for that pollutant. If there is not enough data
available to determine whether the NAAQS or CAAQS is exceeded in an area, the area is
designated as “unclassified”. The designation of “unclassified/attainment” means that the area meets
the standard or is expected to be meet the standard despite a lack of monitoring data. Areas that
achieve the NAAQS or CAAQS after a nonattainment designation are redesignated as
“maintenance” areas and must have approved maintenance plans to ensure continued attainment of
the standards. Table 2 presents the attainment status for each criteria air poliutant in San Benito
County.

Table 2: Attainment Status for San Benito County

Poliutant Federal Standard California Standard

O3 Unclassified/Attainment Attainment
PMio Unclassified Nonattainment
PM2s Unclassified/Attainment Attainment
CcO Unclassified/Attainment ; Unclassified
NO2 Unclassified/Attainment Attainment
SO Unclassified/Attainment Attainment

Pb Unciassified/Attainment Attainment

Source: CARB 2024¢
Notes: O3 = ozone; PMqo = particles of 10 micrometers and smaller; PMzs= particles of 2.5 micrometers and smaller,
CO = carbon monoxide; NO2 = nitrogen dioxide; SOz = sulfur dioxide; Pb = lead

As shown in Table 2, San Benito County is in nonattainment for the state standards for PM1o. The
County is in attainment of, or unclassified for, all other state and all federal standards.

Energy

Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) provides electric and natural gas services in San Benito
County, including the proposed Project area. In 2022, San Benito County consumed approximately
398.8 million kilowatt-hours of electricity and 15.1 million therms of natural gas (CEC 2022). There
are no existing electric transmission lines near the proposed ASR well sites; the closest existing
transmission line is one 60-kilovolt line approximately two miles away on McCloskey Road (CEC
2024).

January 2025 | C-7



Geology and Soils

The Hollister Valley, an alluvial plain bordered by the Gabilan Range to the south and west and by
the Diablo Range to the east, is located in the Coast Range geomorphic province. The Coast
Ranges are composed of thick Mesozoic and Cenozoic sedimentary strata (CGS 2002). The
proposed Project area is underlain by Pleistocene-Holocene alluvium deposits and Pleistocene older
alluvium deposits (DOC 2015a).

The City of Hollister is located in a seismically active area. Four fault zones traverse the county in
the vicinity of the planning area: the San Andreas Fault, the Quien Sabe Fault, the Tres Pinos and
the Calaveras Faults. The San Andreas Fault system, probably the largest in the United States,
crosses San Benito County in a southeasterly direction along the Gabilan Range two and a half
miles west of the City. The Hayward/Calaveras Fault runs south and north and bisects the City
through downtown. The Quien Sabe Fault is three miles to the east of the Proposed Project area
and trends southeast. All but the Tres Pifios Fault are considered active faults (City of Hollister
2005).

Hazards associated with earthquake faults include ground rupture, ground shaking, and liquefaction.
The Hollister area has been historically susceptible to all three earthquake hazards. Ground rupture
is the primary hazard and is regarded as more likely to occur in the zone immediately around the
fault, while ground shaking, or vibrations caused by an earthquake, is a secondary seismic hazard
that can occur many miles from the fault. The more lightly compacted and/or water-saturated the soil
conditions, the more capable the ground is of transmitting seismic waves. Consequently, the
intensity of ground shaking or liquefaction is related more to soil conditions than to the distance from
a given fault. Liquefaction is generated by the sudden rise of the water table through loose soils.
That is, it generally occurs during prolonged periods of ground shaking to alluvial (flood plain), or
granular soils, if the water table is within 30 feet of the surface. The Hollister area has alluvial soils
and a perched water table, particularly within the flood plain around the San Benito River.

Soils inthe proposed Project area all have similar characteristics, being primarily coarse sandy and
gravelly soils, or sandy loams, that are well drained with low-to-moderate runoff potential, low-to-
moderate shrink/swell potential, and variable rates of corrosion. Depth to weathered bedrock in San
Benito clay loam is 40-60 inches. Soil types throughout the proposed Project area can be seen in
Figure 2.

January 2025 | C-8



AT

ey - 0 e

ASR Well

®  Froposod Siw
Ej Freged Losabion
[ £ty of Hulisge

Haone e

HO0G
ADGELERATED DHOUCHT
RESPONSE FRIEST

Bredd BENITE SOUNTY WATER Di&TRICT

Figure 2: Soils Map

T R T T

iy e oS dAASS Satsbes i

January 2025 | C-9



From the Upper Cretaceous geological period through the Miocene epoch, much of the Hollister
area was covered by shallow, warm seas. Sediment washed from adjacent mountains accumulated
in the valleys producing extensive terrestrial sediment deposits, within which paleontological remains
are preserved. The first major paleontological discovery in the County occurred in 1937, when the
most complete Plesiosaur skeleton ever found was excavated from the Moreno Formation in the
Panoche Hills. Subsequently, both the Moreno and Temblor Formations have yielded fossils, and
fossil sites have been found at many locations in the County (San Benito County 2015a).

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Climate change refers to long-term changes in temperature, precipitation, wind pattems, and other
elements of the earth's climate system. An ever-increasing body of scientific research attributes
these climatological changes to greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. GHG emissions are emitted by
natural processes and human activities. Human-produced GHG emissions are created primarily by
the burning of fossil fuels for energy. The human-produced GHG emissions most responsible for
global warming and their relative contribution to it are carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous
oxide (N20), and chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs).

Each type of GHG has a different capacity to trap heat in the atmosphere and each type remains in
the atmosphere for a particular length of time. The ability of a GHG to trap heat is measured by an
index called the global warming potential expressed as carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e). CO2 is
considered the baseline GHG in this index and has a global warming potential of one. CH4 has a
global warming potential of 21 times that of CO2, and N20 has a global warming potential of 310
times that of CO2. The families of CFCs, hydrofiuorocarbons, and perfluorocarbons have a
substantially greater global warming potential than other GHGs, generally ranging from
approximately 1,300 to over 10,000 times that of CO2. While CO2 represents the vast majority of the
total volume of GHGs released into the atmosphere, the release of even small quantities of other
types of GHGs can be significant for their contribution to climate change.

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

According to the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) EnviroStor Database (DTSC
2024), hazardous material database listings included records of two sites near the Proposed Project
area:

¢ Royal Circuit Solutions, INC. (21 Hamilton Ct): This listing is a “tiered permit” located
approximately 1.25 miles west of ASR 5. The site is currently inactive and in need of
evaluation.

o Naval Auxiliary Air Station, Hollister (90 Skylane Drive, #101): This listing is “military
evaluation” site type located approximately 2 miles west of ASR 1. The Hollister Naval
Aucxiliary Air Station (NAAS) is a 300-acre site located approximately 2 miles north of
Hollister. in 1949, the War Assets Administration issued a quitclaim deed granting the 300-
acre Hollister NAAS to the City of Hollister. The site subsequently has been used to store
crop dusting equipment and is currently used as a local airport. In 1960, the city of Hollister
removed and disposed of nine USTs (heating oil storage). Three USTs (fuel) were drained,
filled with water, and abandoned in place. Two USTs were located by the Hollister Fire
Department and were removed and replaced with triple-wall tanks. A third tank and related
pipelines and a pump island were also removed by the City of Hollister.

January 2025 | C-10



There are no schools located within one-quarter mile of the proposed Project area. The nearest
school is Hollister SDA Christian School, which is located approximately 2.8 miles from ASR 5.

The nearest airport is the Hollister Municipal Airport, located adjacent to a portion of the proposed
water transmission pipeline to the northwest of the intersection of San Felipe Road and Fallon Road.
Portions of the proposed Project are located within ALUC Review Area 1, which encompasses
lacations where all four factors (noise, safety, airspace protections, and overflight) represent
compatibility concems (San Benito County ALUC 2012).

The California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) has prepared fire hazard
severity zone maps indicating the potential severity of wildfires in an area. Maps have been prepared
for State Responsibility Areas, where CAL FIRE has responsibility for fire protection, and Local
Responsibility Areas (LRAs), where fire protection is the responsibility of local fire districts and
departments. CAL FIRE has determined that San Benito County has no Very High Fire Hazard
Severity Zones in its LRAs (CAL FIRE 2008). The proposed Project area is within an LRA.

Hydrology and Water Quality
Hydrology and Drainage

The proposed Project is located within the Pajaro River watershed. The Pajaro River watershed
ranges in elevation from sealevel to approximately 4,900 feet amsl. The mouth of the Pajaro River is
near Watsonville, where it empties into Monterey Bay just north of Elkhorn Slough. The San Benito
River joins the Pajaro River approximately 2.5 miles north of Anzar Junction near Highway 101 and
comprises over half of the Pajaro River watershed area.

The San Benito River and Santa Ana Creek are the fwo main streams that pass through the
proposed Project area. The San Benito River flows from southeast to northwest in the southern
portion of the proposed Projectarea and has a drainage area of approximately 661 miles. Santa Ana
Creek, an intermittent creek, flows southeast to northwest across the northemn portion of the
proposed Project area and eventually flows into Tequisquita Slough before joining Pacheco Creek
above San Felipe Lake, approximately seven miles north of the Hollister Municipal Airport (City of
Hollister, 2005).

Hemandez Reservoir and Paicines Reservoir, located 45 miles and 10 miles southeast of the
proposed Project area, respectively, serve as the primary sources of local surface water supply in
the area. Hernandez Reservoir is designed and operated to supplement the groundwater supply in
northern San Benito County. Paicines Reservoir receives water from the San Benito River via a
combination of natural runoff and releases form Hernandez Reservoir. Water is released for
percolation to Tres Pinos Creek and the San Benito River to provide additional groundwater
recharge during the dry season (HDR, 2008).

The proposed Projectarea is mostly developed, being located within the WHWTP and the rights-of-
way of San Felipe and Fallon Road. When adequate rainfall occurs, runoff drains to existing
stormwater infrastructure, or percolates directly into the ground if located in the agricultural areas
near Fallon Road.

Groundwater

The proposed Project is located within the Gilroy-Hollister Valley Groundwater Basin. The basin
underlies the broad valley, which is bounded by the Diablo Range on the east, the Gabilan Range

January 2025 | C-11



and the Santa Cruz Mountains to the west, and the San Andreas Rift Zone to the southwest.
Groundwater levels in the basin showed significant declines from the early 1900s to the early 1970’s.
However, groundwater levels have risen over 100 feet in the past 35 years due to delivery of
imported surface water and the construction of the Hernandez Reservoir. The City of Hollister
utilizes groundwater wells for municipal and industrial water supply (HDR 2008).

Flood Hazard

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) administers the National Flood Insurance
Program to provide subsidized flood insurance for those communities that comply with FEMA
regulations. FEMA has mapped the 100-year flood zone (also known as a 1 percent annual chance
flood) for Santa Ana Creek near the ASR wells. Portions of the proposed Project, including the water
transmission pipeline Near Fallon Road and some ASR wells, are located in Flood Zone AO or AE.
ASR well sites 1,2, 4, and 5 will be located on raised pads in order to keep the wellhead, electrical
equipment, and appurtenant equipment at least 1" above the FEMA-designated 100-year flood water
surface elevation.

Water Quality

The watersheds described previously are broadly impacted by pollutants originating from non-point
sources such as regional agricultural activities, grazing practices, urbanization and
hydromodification, as well as from certain point sources such as mining, agricultural and wastewater
treatment operations. Common pollutants include excess sediment, nutrients, and fecal coliform.

Generally, groundwater within the Gilroy-Hollister Valley Groundwater Basin is marginally acceptable
for potable and irrigation use but has a high mineral content that occasionally exceeds drinking water
standards. Total dissolved solids (TDS) concentrations range from below 500 mg/L to over 1,500
mg/L, which greatly exceeds the California recommended secondary drinking water standard of 500
mg/L TDS (SBCWD, 2011; HDR, 2008). Most of the minerals in the local groundwater derive from
dissolution of aquifer materials, but some portion is due to human activities such as agriculture and
the disposal of treated wastewater (SBCWD, 2011).

Land Use and Planning

The City of Hollisteris in northern San Benito County. It has jurisdiction over land within its city limits.
San Benito County has land use regulatory authority over all unincorporated land in the county,
excluding land owned/managed by either the State or Federal governments (e.g., State Parks,
National Parks, Bureau of Land Management areas) and tribal lands) (San Benito County 2015a).

Mineral Resources

Portions of the Hollister Planning Area include areas mapped as significant sources of construction
aggregate deposits (sand, gravel and crushed rock) by the State Mining and Geology Board under
the Surface Mining and Reclamation Act (SMARA) (City of Hollister 2005). The purpose of the
mapping program under SMARA is to ensure the regulation of surface mining operations to assure
that adverse environmental impacts are minimized and mined lands are reclaimed to a usable
condition. The State Department of Conservation, Office of Mine Reclamation has specified Plant 25
91-35-0004 as an active open pit. Plant 25 91-35-0004 is located approximately 3.8 miles away from
the proposed Project area, and its primary products are sand and gravel (DOC 2016).

January 2025 | C-12



Noise

Existing Noise Environment

Noise sources that affect the baseline noise levels throughout San Benito County include traffic on
State highways and local roads, aircraft operations, commercial and industrial uses, agricultural
operations, active recreation areas, and mining operations (San Benito County 2015a). Existing
sources of noise in the proposed Project area include vehicular {raffic on surrounding streets,
residential uses and agricultural operations. Existing ambient noise levels in the proposed Project
area are expected to be relatively low due to its rural location. However, the Hollister Municipal
Airport is located adjacent to a portion of the proposed water transmission pipeline to the northwest
of the intersection of San Felipe Road and Fallon Road. According to the Hollister Municipal ALUCP,
portions of the proposed Project are located within the 55-60 dB CNEL and 60-65 dB CNEL Noise
Impact Zones (San Benito County ALUC 2015).

Noise Sensitive Receptors

Certain land uses are considered more sensitive to noise than others. Examples of these types of
land uses include residential areas, educational facilities, hospitals, childcare facilities, and senior
housing. As noted in Section 3.3, Air Quality, there are residences in the vicinity of the Project area.

Population and Housing

The proposed Projectareais in San Benito County, in the City of Hollister. San Benito County has a
total population of 64,753 and the City of Hollister has a total population of 42,093 (U.S. Census
ACS 2022). The Proposed Project area falls within San Benito County’s Census Tract 7.02 Block
Group 2. This census tract has a total population of 6,199 (U.S. Census ACS 2022).

San Benito County has a total of 20,365 housing units, with 19,484 units occupied (U.S. Census
ACS 2020). The City of Hollister has a total of 12,182 housing units, with 11,904 units occupied.
Census Tract 7.02 BG 2 has a total of 471 housing units, 422 of which are occupied. (U.S. Census
ACS 2020).

Public Services

Fire protection services for the City of Hollister are provided by three Fire Departments. The Hollister
City Fire Department is responsible for areas within the City limits, while the San Benito County Fire
Department provides protection for unincorporated County land and CAL FIRE serves the
unincorporated wildland areas. Under a mutual aid agreement; the City Fire Department provides
initial response to areas within the County, and the County Fire department provides initial response
to areas within the City (City of Hollister). CAL FIRE has determined that San Benito County has no
Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones in LRA. Therefore, San Benito County does not have a map
of recommended VHFHSZ in LRA (CAL FIRE 2008).Law enforcement for the project site is the
responsibility of the Hollister Police Department within City limits, and the San Benito County
Sheriff's Department in unincorporated areas (City of Hollister 2005).

The Hollister School District operates the public elementary and middle schools in the project area,
while the San Benito High School District operates schools for grades 9 through 12. The Hollister
School District serves a student population of about 5,670 students with a TK-5 school, five
elementary schools (TK-8), two middle schools {(6-8), a Dual Language Immersion Academy (K-6,

January 2025 | C-13



Spanish/English), and an Accelerated Achievement Academy (5-8) (Hollister School District n.d.).
The San Benito High School District (SBHSD) serves nearly 3,000 students in Hollister, California,
40 miles south of the Silicon Valley. The only high school in the district is Hollister High School (San
Benito High School District 2024). There are no schools located near the proposed Project area.

Approximately 16 parks are located within the City of Hollister, none of which are near the Proposed
Project area (City of Hollister 2024). Refer to Section 3.19, Recreation, for more information.

Recreation

Approximately 16 parks are located within the City of Hollister, none of which are near the Proposed
Project area (City of Hollister 2024). The Park Facility Master Plan for the City of Hollister requires
an average of 4 acres of parks and recreational facilities for every 1,000 citizens. The Master Plan
indicates that currently the city provides approximately 4.1 acres of parkiand for every 1,000 people.
This is over the required acreage and considered consistent with the City's policy. However, bicycle
and pedestrian trail are limited. San Benito County has adopted a bikeway plan, which would provide
a connection between the existing parks and other pedestrian oriented centers (City of Hollister
2018).

Transportation

The City of Hollister and San Benito County together maintain approximately 900 centerline miles of
major streets and highways, 11.7 miles of heavy rail track, two airports, and a few bicycle facilities
within the City of Hollister. The majority of the roadways within the City of Hollister are two-lane
roadways, with a few three-lane and four-lane segments.

Tribal Cultural Resources

The proposed Project area falls within the traditional territory of the Ohlone (Costanoan). According
to linguistic reconstruction, the Costanoan language belongs to the Penutian Stock along with
Miwokan (Moratto 1984). Eshleman and Glenn (2007), argue for a genetic relationship between
speakers of the Penutian Stock, which includes the Ohlone and many neighboring peoples.

The Utian (Costanoan and Miwokan) language family is argued to have emerged around 5,000 to
4,000 Cal B.P., corresponding with the archaeological Windmiller Pattem of the Delta and Central
Valley (Eshleman and Glenn 2007). Bennyhoff and Fredrickson (1994) provide a synthesis of this
archaeological pattern based on a traits-list approach. Technological components include grinding
and plant processing tools, evidence for darts and atlatls, an evolved polished stone tool industry
with an expedient bone tool industry and stemmed points with little to no obsidian raw material
utilization. The subsistence patterns are assumed to be more hunting reliant, and trade is argued to
have centered on ceremoniai and omamental material culture. Mortuary practices are substantiated
by burials within villages/settlements as well as specialized large grave complexes. Burials are often
oriented to the west.

The Windmilier Pattern is followed by the Berkeley Pattern, which coincides with the final phase of
the Windmiller Pattern. The Berkeley Pattern appears to emerge around 1,000 Cal B.P. with an
initial occurrence within the East San Francisco Bay and Delta regions (Moratto 1984). Jones and
Klar (2007) note that the Berkeley Pattern is commonly interpreted as representing the linguistic and
cultural divergence of the Costanoan and Miwokan peoples. Within the central coast region, the

January 2025 | C-14



archaeological occumrence of rectangular shell beads, abalone pendants and serrated arrow
armatures may be representative of Costanoan ancestors (Jones et al. 2007).

Members of the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band are the descendants of the Native American community
that resided within the Project area and surrounding landscape. The Amah Mutsun Tribal Band
webpage (Amah Mutsun Tribal Band 2024) offers the community’s description of their ancestry,
history, and struggle to maintain a cultural identity through European contact. According to their
webpage, the Amah Mutsun ancestors are “collectively referred to by many as ‘Ohlone’... the
indigenous peoples of south-San Francisco and north-Monterey Bay area.” They describe how they
were held in Mission San Juan Bautista and Mission Santa Cruz by the Spanish, which disrupted
their cultural practices and traditions. They describe themselves today as a people who “stand
united” in celebration of their heritage and sovereignty.

Pursuant to PRC § 21080.3.1 and in support of AB 52, consultation efforts with Native American
tribal contacts have been incorporated in the cultural resource investigation of the Project area, as
“California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with a geographic area may
have expertise concerning their tribal cultural resources” (PRC § 21080.3.1[a]). Pursuant to PRC §
21080.3.1(b), lead agencies are required to send notifications of proposed projects to California
Native American tribes that have requested in writing to be informed of proposed projects for
consultation. Accordingly, the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) was contacted on
March 9, 2023, to request a list of Califomia Native American tribes and organizations that may have
an interest in the Proposed Project pursuant to PRC 21080.3.1(c), as well as to request a search of
the Sacred Lands File (SLF). The NAHC responded on March 17, 2023, providing a list of tribes that
have cuitural and traditional affiliation to the proposed project area. The NAHC response letter stated
that the SLF search result was positive and recommended to contact the Amah Mutsun Tribal Band
regarding the positive result

Contact information for the following Native American tribes and tribal representatives were provided
with the NAHC letter dated March 17, 2023:

e Chairperson Valentin Lopez, Amah Mutsun Tribal Band

e Chairperson Irene Zwierlein, Amah Mutsun Tribal Band of Mission San Juan Bautista

o Most Likely Descendant (MLD) Kanyon Sayers-Roods, Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of
Costanoan

¢ Chairperson Ann Marie Sayers, Indian Canyon Mutsun Band of Costanoan
o Chairperson Kenneth Woodrow, Wuksache Indian Tribe/Eshom Valley Band

On August 21, 2024, SBCWD mailed letters to the above listed tribal representatives to initiate the
AB 52 consultation process. On September 10, 2024, the letter sent by SBCWD to Kanyon Sayers-
Roods was returned with a note stating that Ms. Sayers-Roods was no longer located at the address
provided in the NAHC consultation list. No additional contactinformation for Ms. Sayers-Roods was
provided. To date, SBCWD has received no further responses and, as such, no TCRs have been
identified. Should additional information be forthcoming from the Native American community,
SBCWD will continue to conduct outreach as needed.

Utilities and Service Systems

The City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District (SCWD) provide water supply to their
individual service areas. In general, the City water service area includes the west side of Hollister,

January 2025 | C-15



north Hollister, and a portion of the Cienega Valley. The SCWD provides water to portions of the City
of Hollister and adjacent unincorporated portions of the County generally east and southeast of
Hollister. SCWD has the responsibility and authority to manage groundwater in San Benito County,
which includes managing groundwater and surface water supplies. In addition, the District holds the
contract for water through the CVP and is the imported water wholesaler from the CVP to Zone 6.

Five wastewater treatment plants treat the domestic, commercial, and industrial wastewater fiows
generated within the City of Hollister. Cielo Vista Estates is a residential development within
Sunnyslope's service area and includes approximately 75 single-family homes located at the
intersection of Airline Highway and Fairview Road. The County operates the Cielo Vista Estates
Wastewater Treatment Plant. Hollister owns and operates two wastewater treatment plants
(WWTPs); the domestic wastewater treatment plant/water reclamation facility (DWWTP/WRF) and
the industrial wastewater treatment plant (IWWTP). The WRF treats the City's domestic wastewater,
consisting predominantly of residential, commercial, and industrial customers. The IWTP treats
seasonal industrial wastewater from a single cannery and storm water. The Sunnyslope County
Water District operates the domestic wastewater treatment plant serving the Ridgemark Estates
community, consisting of two wastewater treatment plants that serve residential needs and a few
commercial businesses located near the Ridgemark Golf Course (SBCWD et al. 2015).

Solid waste disposal within the Hollister Planning Area is currently provided under contract via the
Hollister Disposal Company. Solid waste is disposed of at the John Smith landfill that is the only
permitted landfill (a Class lll non-hazardous solid waste disposal facility) serving the Hollister area.
The landfill is located on John Smith Road, east of Fairview Road. The landfill is owned by the
County of San Benito and is operated by Hollister Disposal Company, under contract with the
County. Currently, only 28 acres of the 57-acre landfill are being utilized, which provides sufficient
capacity to dispose of waste at a level of 250 tons per day for an estimated 15 to 18 years. The
landfill currently handles an average of approximately 75 tons per day. The Hollister Disposal
Company is currently updating its permit to allow full utilization of all 57 acres of the landfill site.
Although it is uncertain how technology will alter current packaging and disposal methods and affect
long-term success of recycling efforts, it is estimated that the full utilization of the full site would
provide a life span of between 40 and 45 years, based upon projected population growth in the
service area. (City of Hollister 2005).

Wildfire

Wildland fire hazards in San Benito County create the potential for injury, loss of life, and property
damage. The majority of the county is within areas that have a high to very high fire potential, which
includes the central and southern portion of the county. The areas north of Pinnacles National Park
and along the westemn boundary with Monterey County area also within very high fire hazard areas
(San Benito County 2015b).

As noted in Section 3.12, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, CAL FIRE has determined that San
Benito County has no Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones within an LRA. Therefore, San Benito
County does not have a map of recommended VHFHSZ in LRA (CAL FIRE 2008).

Environmental Justice

USEPA defines environmental justice as: “The fair treatment and meaningful involvement of all
people regardiess of race, color, national origin, or income with respect {o the development,
implementation, and enforcement of environmental laws, regulations, and policies. Fair treatment

Januarv 2025 | C-18



means no group of people, including racial, ethnic, or economic groups should bear a
disproportionate share of the negative environmental consequences resulting from industrial,
municipal, and commercial operations or the execution of Federal, state, local, and tribal programs
and policies.”

According to U.S. Census data, San Benito County has a population of approximately 68,000. The
median household income for San Benito County residents is approximately $96,000 per year. The
county has a poverty rate of approximately 9.4%. The two major ethnic groups within the City include
Hispanic or Latino (69%) and White (36%).

According to US Census data, the City of Hollister has a population of approximately 45,000. The
median household income for Hollister residents is approximately $105,000 per year. The City has a
poverty rate of approximately 7.2%. The two major ethnic groups within the county include Hispanic
or Latino (61%) and White (31%).

According to USEPA guidelines, a minority populationis present in the proposed Project/Action area
if the minority population of the affected area exceeds 50 percent, of if the minority population
percentage of the affected area is meaningfully greater than the minority population percentage in
the general population or other appropriate unit of geographic analysis. Under the same guidelines,
a low-income population exists if the Project area is composed of 50 percent or more people living
pelow the poverty threshold, as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau, of if the percentage of people
living below the poverty threshold in the proposed Project/Action area is substantially greater than
the poverty percentage of the general population or other appropriate unit of geographic analysis.

CEQA does not explicitly require a discussion of project impacts related to environmental justice, as
CEQA addresses only impacts on the physical environment. However, the State of California has
recently taken greater interest in environmental justice issues and has raised environmental justice
concerns in comments on CEQA documents. In addition, it is acknowledged that the environmental
impacts of some projects may disproportionately affect environmental justice communities.

Indian Trust Assets

indian trust assets (ITAs) are legal interests in assets that are held in trust by the U.S. Government
for federally recognized Indian tribes or individuals. The trust relationship usually stems from a
treaty, EO, or act of Congress. The Secretary of the Interior is the trustee for the United States on
pehalf of federally recog nized Indian tribes. “Assets” are anything owned that holds monetary value.
“Legal interests” are defined as a property interest for which there is a legal remedy, such as
compensation or injunction, if there is improper interference. Assets can be real property, physical
assets, or intangible property rights, such as a lease, or right to use something. Indian trust assets
cannot be sold, leased or otherwise alienated without United States’ approval. Trust assets may
include lands, minerals, and natural resources, as well as hunting, fishing, and water rights. Indian
reservations, rancherias, and public domain allotments are examples of lands that are often
considered trust assets. In some cases, Indian trust assets may be located off trust land.

Reclamation shares Indian trust responsibility with all other agencies of the Executive Branch to
protect and maintain Indian Trust assets reserved by orgranted to indian tribes, or Indian individuals
by treaty, statute, or Executive Order.

January 2025 | C-17



al Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration
nse Project

Draft Initial Study/Supp|emental Environment
Accelerated Drought Respo

Appendix D. Regulatory Setting



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ‘_)‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Appendix D. Regulatory Settings

This appendix contains the Regulatory Settings for each resource category, when applicable,
discussed in the IS/EA. This information was moved to an appendix in order to meet NEPA page
limit guidelines. Please refer to the IS/EA for the Environmental checklist and significance
determinations. See additional detailed analysis in Ap pendix A (Biological Resources) and Appendix
B (Cuttural Resources).

Aesthetics

San Benito County General Plan

The Open Space and Conservation Element primarily describes policies, objectives, and action
statements related to urban and rural growth, and agricultural and mineral resources issues. The
General Plan also contains a Scenic Roads and Highways Element that identifies criteria selection
and policies for the preservation of scenic routes. The Scenic Roads and Highways Element,
approved in 1980, does not identify any of the roads near the Hollister area as a designated scenic
route (San Benito County, 1980).

Agriculture and Forestry Resources

The Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program

The FMMP Guidance document defines the four important Farmland designation as follows
(California Department of Conservation (DOC) 2024a).

« PRIME FARMLAND (P): Farmiand with the best combination of physical and chemical
features able to sustain long term agricultural production. This land has the solil quality,
growing season, and moisture supply needed to produce sustained high yields. Land must
have been used for irigated agricultural production at some time during the four years prior
to the mapping date.

« FARMLAND OF STATEWIDE IMPORTANCE (S): Farmland similar to Prime Farmland but
with minor shortcomings, such as greater slopes Of less ability to store soil moisture. Land

must have been used for irigated agricultural production at some time during the four years
prior to the mapping date.

« UNIQUE FARMLAND (U): Farmland of lesser quality soils used for the production of the
state's leading agricultural crops. This land is usually imgated, but may include non-irrigated
orchards or vineyards as found in some climatic zones in California. Land must have been
cropped at some time during the four years prior to the mapping date.

« FARMLAND OF LOCAL IMPORTANCE (L): Land of importance to the local agricultural
economy as determined by each county's board of supervisors and a local advisory
committee.

January 2025 | B-1



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration FD‘Q
Accelerated Drought Response Project

The Williamson Act

The California Land Conservation Act of 1965 (commonly known as the Williamson Act) established
a voluntary tax incentive prog ram for preserving ag ricultural and open space lands. A property owner
enters into a 10-year contract with the local government (County), which places restrictions on the
land in exchange fortax savings and are renewed automatically each year unless they are canceled
or a Notice of Non-Renewal is filed with the County (DOC 2024b).

ASR sites 1-5 are located on lands classified as Farmland of Statewide Importance by the DOC's
Farmiand Mapping and Monitoring Program (DOC 2022). ASR site 5 is located on land that is
enrolled in the Williamson Act Contract as Prime Agriculture Land (DOC 2022b).

San Benito County General Plan

The Land Use Element of the 1992 San Benito County General Plan identifies goals, objectives and
policies intended to guide growth and development within the County.

e Goal 1: To maintain the County's rural atmosphere.

o Objective A: To protect prime agricultural areas in order to preserve them for the
present and future ag ricultural production vital to the County.

o Objective D: To utilize agricultural and open space lands to help define urban and
rural residential areas.

e Agricuiture Policy 2: The type of uses allowed within the agriculturally designated areas shall
be related to the suitability of the soil resources, climate and water supply. The types of uses
allowed on most agriculturally designated areas within the County include agriculture,
agricultural processing, grazing, land in its natural state, wildlife refuges, and low intensity
recreational facilities, mineral extractions and processing, and also institutional uses and
uses, that by their nature, should be located in undeveloped areas.

« Agriculture Policy 3: Grade 1 soils as defined in the Soils Survey of San Benito County shall
be the highest priority for protection of soil resources.

Air Quality

Air Quality Management Plan

MBARD'’s most recently adopted planis the 2012-2015 Air Quality Management Plan (MBARD
2017). The CCAA (Health & Safety Code §40910 et seq.) required initial preparation of an Air
Quality Management Plan (AQMP) in 1991, with subsequent updates every three years. This report
is an update to elements included in the 2012 AQMP based on a review of the time period 2012-
2015. The primary elements from the 2012 AQMP updated in this revision include the air quality
trends analysis, emission inventory, and mobile source programs.

CEQA Air Quality Guidelines

MBARD adopted their CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (Guidelines) in February 2008 (MBUAPCD
2008). The purpose of MBARD’s Guidelines is to assist in the review and evaluation of air quality
impacts from projects which are subject to CEQA. lts guidance applies to the North Central Coast Air
Basin (NCCAB), which is comprised of Monterey, Santa Cruz, and San Benito Counties.

January 2025 | D-2



Draft Initial Study/Suppiemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ‘p)'z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

The Guidelines include recommended thresholds of significance for air quality and climate impacts.
The thresholds of significance for air quality impacts have remained unchanged from those adopted

by MBARD in 2008. Table 1 summarizes MBARD's air quality thresholds of significance.

Table 1: Air Quality Thresholds of Significance

Construction Operational

Criteria Air Pollutants and Precursors

Pollutant Average Daily Emissions (Ib/day) Average Daily Emissions (Ib/day)

ROG - 5

NOx - 137

PM1o 82 82

PMas - -

CcO - 550

Emissions ofa Same as operational thresholds increased Cancer Risk >1 incident per 100,000

carcinogenic TAC

Source: MBUAPCD 2008

Notes: ROG = reactive organic gases; NOx = nitrogen oxides; PMyo = particles of 10 micrometers and smaller; PM2s
= particles of 2 5 micrometers and smalter; CO = carbon monoxide; Ib = pounds

If a project’s emissions of construction and/or operational criteria air pollutants or precursors would
exceed any applicable threshold of significance listed in Table 1, the proposed action would result in
a cumulatively significant impact.

City of Hollister General Plan

A portion of the treated water pipeline component of the proposed project would be developed within
the jurisdiction of the City of Hollister. The City of Hollister General Plan Natural Resources and
Conservation Element (City of Hollister, 2005) includes the following goals and policies applicable to
construction of the treated water pipeline within Hollister:

e Goal NRC 2 Provide for Clean Air.

o Policy NRC 2.1 State and Federal Standards for Air Quality. Continue to comply and
strive to exceed state and federal standards for air quality. Review all development
proposals for consistency with the current AQMP of the MBUAPCD.

Geology and Soils

Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act

The Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Act was passed in 1972 to mitigate the hazard of surface
faulting to structures for human occupancy. in accordance with this act, the State Geologist
established regulatory zones, called “earthquake fault zones,” (EFZs) around the surface traces of
active faults and has published maps showing these zones. EFZs are designated by the CGS and
are delineated along traces of faults where mapping demonstrates surface fault rupture has occurred

January 2025 | D-3



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)'z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

within the past 11,000 years. Construction within these zones cannot be permitted until a geologic
investigation has peen conducted to prove that a building planned for human occupancy will not be
constructed across an active fault. These types of site evaluations address the precise location and
recency of rupture along traces of the faults and are typically based on observations made in
trenches excavated across fault traces.

California Building Code

The California Building Code (CBC) has been codified in the CCR as Title 24, Part 2. Title 24 is
administered by the California Building Standards Commission, which, by law, is responsible for
coordinating all pbuilding standards. The purpose of the CBC is to establish minimum standards to
safeguard the public health, safety and general welfare through structural strength, means of egress
facilities, and general stability by regulating and controlling the design, construction, quality of
materials, use and occupancy, location, and maintenance of all building and structures within its
jurisdiction. The 2010 CBC contains California amendments based on the American Society of Civil
Engineers (ASCE) Minimum Design Standards 7-05. ASCE 7-05 provides requirements for general
structural design and includes means for determining earthquake loads as well as other loads (such
as wind loads) for inclusion into building codes. The provisions of the CBC apply to the construction,
alteration, movement, replacement, and demolition of every pbuilding or structure of any
appurtenances connected or attached to such buildings or structures throughout California.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Several state statutes have been enacted to reduce GHG emissions. AB 32, enacted in 2006,
mandated statewide GHG emission reductions to 1990 levels by 2020. SB 32, enacted in 2016,
extended this mandate, requiring GHG emission reductions to 40% below 1990 levels by 2030. AB
1279, enacted in 2022, codified an executive order setting a goal of the state achieving carbon
neutrality (i.e., net zero GHG emissions) by 2045. In accordance with both AB 32 and SB 32, the
CARB has prepared Scoping Plans that set forth how the state would achieve the GHG reduction
goals set by these statutes. The most recent Scoping Plan was adopted in 2022.

A Priority Climate Action Plan (PCAP) was developed for the San Jose-Sunnyvale— Santa Clara, CA
metropolitan statistical area (MSA), which is comprised of San Benito and Santa Clara Counties,
using a Planning Grant from the Climate Pollution Reduction Grants (CPRG) program received by
the County of Santa Clara. Because the geographic area of the MSA includes both counties, it is
referred to as the San Benito County and Santa Clara County MSA. To develop the PCAP the
Counties of San Benito and Santa Clara worked collaboratively with each other and brought in
additional partners including the Council of San Benito County Governments (SBCOG), the
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG), and other jurisdictions in the counties.

The Counties of San Benito and Santa Clara developed a 2017 MSA-wide inventory of major
sources of GHG emissions within each county to support the development of the PCAP and
associated priofity mitigation measures. The GHG emissions inventory was developed to quantify
communitywide GHG emissions within the MSA. This inventory covers the entirety of San Benito
and Santa Clara counties including the unincorporated areas and incorporated cities. The PCAP
inventory focuses on the three GHGs most relevant to local jurisdictions: carbon dioxide (CO2),
methane (CHa), and nitrous oxide (N20). The other gases (hydroﬂuorocarbons, perﬂuorocarbons,
and sulfur hexafluorides) make up a smaller percentage of emissions (5.6% statewide) and are
emitted primarily through the manufacturing of semiconductors, electricity transmission, ref rigeration,

January 2025 | D4



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l_)?
Acceierated Drought Response Project

and aerosols. Due to their small overall contribution and general lack of data associated with their
use within the MSA, they have been excluded. Total GHG emissions generated by the MSA in 2017
were 11,228,575 metric tons carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e). These emissions were not
separated out by county (County of San Benito and County of Santa Clara 2024).

San Benito County, in coordination with Santa Clara County, is preparing a Comprehensive Climate
Action that is based on the PCAP. The City of Hollister, as part of its current General Plan update, is
preparing a Climate Action Plan. Both plans would set forth a strategy by which the jurisdiction would
achieve GHG emission reductions consistent with state reduction targets.

The MBUAPCD (now MBARD) has issued CEQA Air Quality Guidelines, last updated in 2008, to
inform public agencies, consultants, project proponents and the general public of adopted thresholds
of significance to be used in CEQA analysis, among other subjects. For GHG emissions, the CEQA
Air Quality Guidelines have not established any thresholds of significance. For the purposes of this
analysis, this document shall use the quantitative threshold established by the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District, which is 1,100 metric tons COZ2e for both construction
and operational emissions. CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.7(c) allows a CEQA lead agency to
consider thresholds of significance previously adopted by other agencies.

Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Federal Regulations

Code of Federal Regulations

The Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) planning requirements, a list
of Extremely Hazardous Substances, threshold planning quantities, and emergency response
planning requirements, are codified in 40 CFR Part 355. The Chemical Accident Prevention
Provisions (40 CFR Part 68) identifies regulated substances, threshold quantities (TQs), and
requirements for preventing accidental releases of these substances. A Risk Management Plan is
required for any processes involving regulated substances in excess of their respective TQ.

The generation, transportation, treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous waste through a
comprehensive management system is governed under 40 CFR Parts 260-272. These regulations
also list the characteristics of hazardous wastes, including ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity and
toxicity. Subtitle D of these parts grants authority for regulating nonhazardous waste to the state.

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act

Hazardous substances are governed in part by CERCLA (1980). CERCLA created a “superfund”
and provides for the clean-up and remediation of closed and abandoned hazardous waste sites. Title
40 of the CFR Part 302 implements the CERCLA hazardous materials release requirements and
identifies hazardous substances, reportable quantities (RQs), and notification requirements. The
National Response Center must be notified of an accidental release of a hazardous substance in
excess of an RQ. CERCLA-listed hazardous substances and RQs are listed in 40 CFR Part 302.4.

Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act

Title il of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 establishes reporting
requirements for businesses and facilities that store, handle, or produce significant quantities of

January 2025 | D-5



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration '_)'2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

hazardous substances. The act also requires states to establish a system to inform federal, state,
and local authorities of any such substances stored or handled by the regulated community.

State Regulations

California Code of Regulations

Title 8 of the CCR addresses the control of hazardous substances. Section 5189 of Title 8 sets forth
the Process Safety Management (PSM) standard for processes involving a highly hazardous
chemical in excess of certain quantities. PSM requires a process hazard analysis, current safety
information, an employee participation program, written operating procedures, a mechanical integrity
program, and other procedures.

Title 8 of the CCR also contains the California Occupational Safety and Health Administration
regulations forworker safety, including the storage and handling of hazardous materials. It identifies
protective equipment for workers who handle hazardous materials and establishes requirements for
general facility safety.

California Government Code

Section 65962.5 of the California Government Code (CGC) requires that DTSC compile and update
the Cortese List of hazardous waste facilities subject to corrective action and lands designated as
hazardous waste properties or border zone properties.

Hazardous Materials Release Response and Inventory Program

The Hazardous Materials Release Response and Inventory Program (CHSC Sections 25500-
25520) establishes business and area plans for the handling and release of hazardous materials.
Forindividual projects, a Hazardous Material Business Plan (HMBP) is typically prepared to satisfy
requirements. Basic information on the location, type, quantity, and the health risks of hazardous
materials handled, used, stored, or disposed of in the state, which could be accidentally released
into the environment, is tracked by the local Certified Unified Program Agency (CUPA) within each
region for the use and awareness of hazardous materials responders, firefighters, emergency care
providers, regulatory agencies and other interested persons. The CUPA for the Project area is the
San Benito County Environmental Health Department.

The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act

The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act (Water Code, §§ 13000-14958) regulates wastes that
have the potential to cause loss of a beneficial use of California’s waters. This act requires the
RWQCB to establish reportable quantities of hazardous wastes and hazardous materials based on
their potential to degrade the waters of the state. Any discharge of hazardous materials that is
inconsistent with the discharge requirements of the facility must be reported to the appropriate
authorities.

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

The handling, storage, and disposal of both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are addressed
through the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC 6901 et seq.) and its implementing
regulations (40 CFR Part 260 et seq.).

January 2025 | D-6



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act

The Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act (Proposition 65) was enacted as a ballot
initiative in November 1986. The proposition was intended by its authors to protect California citizens
and the state's drinking water sources from chemicals known to cause cancer, birth defects, or other
reproductive harm, and to inform citizens about exposures to such chemicals. The act requires the
Govemor to publish, at least annually, a list of chemicals known to the state to cause cancer or
reproductive toxicity.

Toxic Release Contingency Plan

The Toxic Release Contingency Plan (CGC Section 8574.16) requires that regional and local
planning agencies incorporate within their planning the state’s effort to respond to emergency toxic
releases and ensure the effective and efficient use of regional and local resources in the areas of
traffic and crowd control, firefighting, hazardous materials response and cleanup, radio and
communications control, and provision of medical emergency services.

Local Laws and Regulations

San Benito County General Plan Section 9 - Health and Safety Element

San Benito County has implemented a Hazardous Waste Management Plan. The focus is to
address the problem of hazardous materials and wastes, as well as the location, storage,
transportation, and safety of these materials.

Hollister Municipal Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan

In 2012, the Council of San Benito County Governments adopted the Hollister Municipal Airport
LUCP to promote compatibility between Hollister Municipal Airport and the land uses surrounding it
to the extent that these areas have not already been devoted to incompatible uses. The plan
establishes a set of compatibility criteria applicable to new development in the vicinity of the airport.

Hydrology and Water Quality

Federal Regulations

Clean Water Act

The federal Water Pollution Control Act (or Clean Water Act [CWA]) is the principal statute governing
water quality. It establishes the basic structure for regulating discharges of pollutants into the waters
of the United States and gives the US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA)}—or in the case of
Califomia, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and Regional Water Quality Control
Boards (RWQCBs)}—authority to implement pollution control programs. The statute’s goal is to
restore, maintain, and preserve the integrity of the nation’s waters. CWA regulates direct and indirect
discharge of pollutants; sets water quality standards for all contaminants in surface waters; and
makes it unlawful for any person to discharge any pollutant from a point source into navigable waters
unless a permit is obtained under its provisions. The CWA mandates permits for wastewater and
stormwater discharges; requires states to establish site-specific water quality standards; and
regulates other activities that affect water quality, such as dredging and the filling of wetlands. The
CWA also funded the construction of sewage treatment plants and recognized the need for planning
to address nonpoint sources of pollution. Section 402 of the CWA requires a permit for all point

January 2025 | D-7



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration '_)‘2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

source (a discemible, confined, and discrete conveyance, such as a pipe, ditch, or channel)
discharges of any pollutant into waters of the United States.

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit program was established by
the CWA to regulate municipal and industrial discharges to surface waters of the United States,
including discharges from municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s). Federal NPDES permit
regulations have been established for broad categories of discharges, including point-source
municipal waste discharges and nonpoint-source stormwater runoff. NPDES permits generally
identify effluent and receiving water limits on allowable concentrations and/or mass emissions of
pollutants contained in the discharge; prohibitions on discharges not specifically allowed under the
permit; and provisions that describe required actions by the discharger, including industrial
pretreatment, poliution prevention, self-monitoring, and other activities.

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) administers the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP) to provide subsidized flood insurance to communities that comply with FEMA
regulations limiting development in fioodplains. FEMA aiso issues Flood Insurance Rate Maps
(FIRMs) that identify which land areas are subject to flooding. These maps provide flood information
and identify flood hazard zones in the community. The design standard for flood protection is
established by FEMA. FEMA'’s minimum level of flood protection for new development is the 100-
year flood event, also described as a flood that has a 1- in-100 chance of occurring in any given
year.

State Regulations

Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act

The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act (Water Code Sections 13000 et seq.) is the basic
water quality control law for Califomia. This act established the SWRCB and divided the state into
nine regional basins, each under the jurisdiction of a RWQCB. The SWRCB is the primary state
agency responsible for the protection of California’s water quality and groundwater supplies. The
RWQCBSs carry out the regulation, protection, and administration of water quality in each region.
Each regional board is required to adopt a water quality control plan or basin plan that recognizes
and reflects the regional differences in existing water quality, the beneficial uses of the region’s
ground and surface water, and local water quality conditions and problems.

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014

A three-bill legislative package consisting of Assembly Bill (AB) 1739, Senate Bill (SB) 1168, and SB
1319, collectively known as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) was signed into
law on September 16, 2014. The Governor's sighing message states “a central feature of these bills
is the recognition that groundwater management in California is best accomplished locally.” Under
SGMA, in groundwater basins that are designated as medium and high priority, local public agencies
and groundwater sustainability agencies must assess conditions in their local groundwater basins
and then prepare groundwater sustainability plans.

Januarv 2025 | D-8



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration )‘Q
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Local Regulations

Central Coastal Basin Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan)

The City of Hollister is within the jurisdiction of the Central Coast RWQCB (Region 3). The Central
Coast RWQCB addresses region-wide water quality issues through the creation and triennial update
of the Water Quality Control Plan for the Central Coastal Basin (Basin Plan). The Basin Plan was
adopted in 1975 and most recently amended in 2019. The Basin Plan designates beneficial uses,
establishes water quality objectives, and contains implementation programs and policies to achieve
those objectives for all waters designated in the Basin Plan.10 The Central Valley RWQCB also
administers the Phase Il Small MS4 permit for San Benito County and the municipalities within the
county, including the City of Hollister.

Hollister Municipal Code

The HMC includes various directives to minimize impacts to hydrology and water quality in Hollister:

o Chapter 13.16, Storm Drainage Fees. This chapter states that storm drainage fees are
required to be paid by all landowners and are used for the construction and maintenance of
the City’s storm drain system. Storm drainage fees are required to be paid prior to the
issuance of a building permit or the filing of a parcel map. The coilected funds are part of the
development impact fees and are used solely for the construction, reconstruction, and
acquisition of land for the storm drainage system.

e Chapter 15.20, Flood Damage Prevention Regulations. This chapter describes the City’s
rules and requirements to minimize public and private iosses due to flood conditions in
specific areas.

e Chapter 15.24, Grading and Stormwater Best Management Practices Control. This chapter
describes the City’s rules and regulations to minimize land disturbance during construction,
erosion and sediment control, and construction stormwater control plan (CSCP).

e Section 17.16.140, Stormwater Management. This section states that all new development
and redevelopment is subject to the Small MS4 General Permit Order No. 2013-0001-DWQ
and subsequent amendments. This section includes measures for drainage, stormwater
quality, obtaining a grading permit for land disturbance, and compliance with BMPs per
federal, state, regional, or City requirements.

Land Use and Planning

San Benito General Plan Section 3 — Land Use Element

Land use designations are policy statements the County has developed to guide decisions about the
type and intensity of development envisioned on each unincorporated parcel during the life of the
General Plan.

s Agriculture (A): The purpose of this designation is to maintain the productivity of agricultural
land, especially prime farmland, in the county. This designation is applied to agriculturally
productive lands of various types, including crop land, vineyards, and grazing lands. This
designation allows agricultural support uses, such as processing, wineries, and other
necessary public utility and safety facilities and one principal residential dwelling unit per lot.

January 2025 | D-9



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration F)'z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Secondary dwellings are allowed for relative, caretaker/employee, and farm worker housing.
These areas typically have transportation access, but little to no public infrastructure.

The Proposed Project is located within the “Agriculture” land use designation. ASR sites 1-5 are
located on lands classified as Farmland of Statewide Importance (DOC 2022).

Noise

San Benito County General Plan Section 9 — Health and Safety Element

San Benito County has established policies and standards that aim to minimize the effects of noise
on people through prescriptive construction standards, zoning restrictions, hours of operation, and
suppression techniques. The applicable noise standards and policies are summarized below:

Table 2 summarizes the noise level standards for noise-sensitive uses (e.g., residential
development, transient lodging, hospitals, nursing homes, schools, day care centers) affected by
non-transportation noise sources in the County.

Table 2: Non-Transportation Noise Level Performance Standards for Noise-Sensitive Uses

Noise Level Descriptor Daytime Nighttime
(7:00 am — 10:00 pm) {10:00 pm - 7:00 am)
Hourly LeqdB 55 45
Maximum Level, dB 70 65

Source: San Benito County 2015a

Notes: These standards apply to new or existing residential areas affected by new or existing non-transportation
sources.

Table 3 presents the noise and land use compatibility standards for various land uses. In addition to
these standards, the policies in this section address ways to reduce or eliminate existing and future
conflicts between land uses and noise.

Table 3: Land Use Compatibility Guidelines for Community Noise Environments

Land Use Category Community Noise Exposure Ldn/CNEL, dB
55 60 ‘ 65 ?' 70 75 80

Residential — Low Density CA CA NA NU NU CU ©C <cu cu
Single Family, Duplex, Mobile

Homes

Residential — Multi. Family CA CA NA NU NU cu cu Cu cu
Transient Lodging — Motels, CA CA CA NA NU NU NU cu Cu
Hotels

Schools, Libraries, Churches, CA CA NA NU NU NU CU ©CU cU
Hospitals, Nursing Homes :

Auditoriums, Concert Halls, NA NA NU  NU cu Ccu Cu Cu Cu
Amphitheaters ‘

Sports Arenas, Outdoor CA CA NA NU NU CU <CU cCu cu
Spectator Sports

Playgrounds, Neighborhood CA NA NA NU NU Cu cu Ccu Ccu
Parks

January 2025 | D-10



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration l}_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Land Use Category Community Noise Exposure Ldn/CNEL, dB
55 60 65 70 75 80
Golf Course, Riding Stables, CA CA NA NA NU NU NU Cu Cu
Water Recreation, Cemeteries
Office Buildings, Business CA CA CA NA NA NU NU Cu CuU
Commercial and Professional
Industrial, Manufacturing CA CA CA CA NA NA NA NU NU

Utilities, Agriculture

Source: San Benito County 2015a

Notes:

CLEARLY ACCEPTABLE (CA). The noise exposure is such that the activities associated with the land use may be camied out with
essentially no interference from aircraft noise. (Residential areas: both indoor and outdoor noise environments are pleasant.)
NORMALLY ACCEPTABLE (NA): The noise exposure is great enough to be of some concem, but common building construction
will make the indoor environment acceptable, even for sleeping quarters,

NORMALLY UNACCEPTABLE (NU): The noise exposure is significantly more severe so that unusual and costly building
construction is necessary to insure adequate performance of activities. (Residential areas: barmiers must be created between the ste
and prominent noise sources to make the outdoor environment tolerable.)

CLEARLY UNACCEPTABLE (CU): The noise exposure is so severe that construction costs to make the indoor environment
acceptable for performance of activities would be prohibitive. (Residential areas: the outdoor environment would be intolerable for
normal residential use.)

City of Hollister Code of Ordinances

The City of Hollister does not have land use compatibility standards for noise and instead uses the
State of California’s guidelines as a tool to gauge compatibility of land uses relative to existing and
future noise levels. The City of Hollister Municipal Code includes various directives pertaining to
noise and vibration (City of Hollister 2022).

e Chapter 8.28, Noise. This chapter is declared to be the policy of the city that the peace,
health, comfort, safety and welfare of its citizens require protection from excessive,

unnecessary or unusually loud noises and vibrations from any and all sources in the
community. The following are generally prohibited:

o ltis unlawful at any time, for any person to knowingly make, continue or cause to be
made or continued, any excessive, unnecessary or unusually loud noise.

o The term "excessive, unnecessary or unusually loud noise" means a noise
disturbance which occurs at any time of the day, not involving a barking dog,

commercial construction or commercial landscaping noise, and, because of its
volume level, duration or character, annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the
comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of any reasonable person of normal
sensitivity residing in the area.

o Forany kind of noise (with the exception of a barking dog, commercial construction
or commercial landscaping noise) outside the DMU Downtown Mixed Use Zoning
District, regardiess of the time of day in which it occurs, the standards which shall be
considered in determining whether a violation exists, may include, but shall not be
limited to, the following:

= The volume or intensity of the noise;

» Resident complaints, regardless if the complainant wishes to remain
anonymous;

Januarv 2025 | D-11



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ln '2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

» The proximity of the noise to residential properties;

*» The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise emanates;
= The time and/or day of the week the noise occurs;

* The duration of the noise;

= Whether the noise is recurrent, intermittent or constant;

=  Whether the noise is produced by a commercial or noncommercial activity;
and

* Anoise level in residential districts exceeding 55 dBA during daylight hours,
and 50 dBA after sunset, measured at the property line of the complaining
party or inside an affected multiple-dwelling unit.

o This section shall not apply to a noise violation involving a barking dog, commercial
construction or landscaping noise. Please see Section 6.08.060 for noise

disturbances caused by a dog and Section 17.16.100 for noise involving commercial
construction and commercial landscaping noise.

o Chapter 17.16, Performance Standards, Section 100 - Noise. Commercial construction
activities on and contiguous to residential properties shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 a.m.
to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on Saturday and shall be
prohibited on Sundays and federally recognized holidays.

Transportation

Federal Policies and Regulations

Federal Highway Administration Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

The Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) MUTCD is a compilation of national standards for all
traffic control devices, including road markings, highway signs, and traffic signals. This document,
which has been administered by FHWA since 1971, is updated periodically to accommodate the
nation’s evolving transportation needs and addresses new safety technologies, traffic control tools
and traffic management techniques. The most current version of the MUTCD is dated 2023 and was
published in the Federal Register (FR) on December 19, 2023 (FHWA 2023).

State Policies and Regulations

Caltrans Transportation Management Plan Guidelines

Caitrans Transportation Management Plan Guidelines (2015) outlines strategies and guidelines that
are needed to minimize traffic congestion during road work activities that are planned along existing
Caltrans facilities. The guidelines established in this document identify processes, roles, and
responsibilities for all planned construction, maintenance, and permit activities. Incorporation of
these strategies in project construction documents and implementation of the strategies are
expected to help reduce congestion and manage traffic impacts near work areas.

January 2025 | D-12



Draft Initial Study/Suppiementai Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration I_)'z
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Local Policies and Regulations

San Benito County General Plan

+ The Transportation Element of the San Benito County General Plan (1992) provides guiding
principles for maintaining and managing the County’s transportation network. Policies
pertaining to transportation that are relevant to the project include Policy 4: Level of Service
Policy. A level of service of C shall be used for the accepted minimum standard of operation
for intersections and roadways.

Tribal Cultural Resources

indian Trust Assets

ITAs are legal interests in property held in trust by the U.S. for Native American tribes or individuals.
Examples of potential ITAs are lands, minerals, fishing rights, and water rights. Management of ITAs
is based on the following orders, agreements, and regulations:

s Executive Order 13175, Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribal Governments 65
FR 67249

¢ Memorandum on Govermment-to-Government Relations With Native American Tribal
Govermnments (FR Volume 59, Number 85, signed April 29, 1994)

e Secretarial Order No. 3175 — Departmental Responsibilities for Indian Trust Resources

o Secretarial Order No. 3206 — American Indian Tribal Rights, Federal -Tribal Trust
Responsibilities, and FESA

e Secretarial Order No. 3215 - Principles for the Discharge of the Secretary’s Trust
Responsibility

s Secretarial Order No. 3342 - Identifying Opportunities for Cooperative and Collaborative
Partnerships with Federally Recognized Indian Tribes in the Management of Federal Lands
and Resources

e Secretarial Order No. 3335 ~ Reaffirmation of the Federal Trust Responsibility to Federally
Recognized Tribes and Individual Indian Beneficiaries

Section 5.25, Indian Trust Assets, discusses potential Proposed Action impacts in more detail.

American Indian Religious Freedom Act of 1978

The American Indian Religious Freedom Act of 1978 (AIRFA; 42 U.S.C. § 1996) protects the rights
of Native Americans to exercise their traditional religions by ensuring access fo sites, use and
possession of sacred objects, and the freedom to worship through ceremonials and traditional rites.

Historic Sites Act of 1935

The Historic Sites Act of 1935 (54 U.S.C. 320101-320106, formerly 16 U.S.C. 461-467)
declares"...that it is a national policy to preserve for public use historic sites, buildings, and objects of
national significance...,” asserting historic preservation as a government duty under jurisdiction of
the United States Secretary of the Interior.

Januarv 2025 | D-13



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration ‘_)2
Accelerated Drought Response Project

National Historic Preservation Act

Section 106 of the NHPA requires federal agencies to take into account the effects of their
undertakings on historic properties. For purposes of the discussion regarding tribal cultural
resources, it is important to underscore that historic properties include properties of traditional
religious and cultural importance to an Indian tribe or Native Hawaiian organization that meet the
National Register criteria (36 C.F.R. § 800.16[1]).[1].

Traditional Cultural Properties and Traditional Cultural Landscapes

TCPs are properties associated with cultural practices or beliefs of a living community that are: (1)
rooted in that community's history; and (2) important in maintaining the continuing cultural identity of
a community. TCPs can refer to properties of importance to any community, including Indigenous

communities.

National Register Bulletin 38 provides examples of TCPs — and TCLs — that fit the definition in the
guidelines:

e Alocation associated with the traditional beliefs of a Native American group about its origins,
its cultural history, or the nature of the world

e A rural community whose organization, buildings and structures, or patterns of land use
reflect the cultural traditions valued by its long-term residents

e Anurban neighborhood that is the traditional home of a particular cultural group, and that
reflects its beliefs and practices

* A location where Native American religious practitioners have historically gone, and are
known or thought to go today, to perfform ceremonial activities in accordance with traditional
cultural rules of practice

e Alocation where a community has traditionally carried out economic, artistic, or other cultural
practices important in maintaining its historic identity

TCPs and TCLs are eligible forinclusion on the NRHP if they meet the criteria set forth in 36 C.F.R.
§ 60.4, National Register Criteria for Evaluation. The steps in the identification and evaluation of

TCPs are the following (abbreviated from Parker and King 1998):

o Potential Traditional Cultural Properties must be identified through consultation with the
affected community or Tribe

+ The investigation must consider the beliefs and practices associated with a potential
Traditional Cultural Properties from the perspective of the community or Tribe

+ The potential Traditional Cultural Properties must be a property, that is, a tangible place on
the landscape, rather than an intangible belief or practice

¢ The property must retain integrity of relationship with the beliefs and practices that give it
meaning to the community or Tribe

« The property must retain integrity of condition, such that the elements of the property
associated with the beliefs and practices that give it significance are present

o The property must meet one or more of the four criteria for eligibility on the National Register

January 2025 | D-14



Draft initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration i_)?
Accelerated Drought Response Project

Cultural resources routinely not considered for eligibility for inclusion in the NRHP are religious
properties, moved properties, birthplaces and graves, cemeteries, reconstructed properties,
commemorative properties, and properties achieving significance within the past 50 years. However,
these resources, can be evaluated as eligible if they meet one or more of the NRHP eligibility criteria
for evaluation, retain integrity, and meet special criteria requirements called criteria considerations.
The most notable of the seven considerations (A through G) is Criteria Consideration G, which
specifies that a property that has achieved significance within the last 50 years can qualify for the
NRHP only if it is of exceptional importance. As noted by Parker and King (1998), “a significance
ascribed to a property only in the past 50 years cannot be considered traditional.” However, they
also note: “The fact that a property may have gone unused for a lengthy period of time, with use
beginning again only recently, does not make the property ineligible for the [National] Register’
(Parker and King 1998).

If a property is determined to be a TCP, it becomes the responsibility of the lead agency to assess
whether the proposed project would have an effect on the property, and should the effect be
adverse, would it alter or destroy the elements that make the property significant and eligible. If a
proposed project is determined to have an adverse effect, the lead agency is responsible for seeking
measures that would mitigate the adverse effects to TCPs.

Tribal Cultural Resources

As defined at PRC § 21074, a Tribal Cultural Resource (TCR is a site, feature, place, cultural
landscape, sacred place or object that is of cultural value to a Califomia Native American tribe and is
either: (1) on or eligible for the CRHR or a local historic register; or (2) the lead agency, at its
discretion, chooses to treat the resource as a TCR. TCRs are similar to TCPs in terms of their
characteristics, identification, and treatment, and may include a cultural landscape to the extent that
the landscape is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape.
Additionally, as defined at PRC § 21074(c), a historical resource, a unique archaeological resource,
ora non-unique archaeological resource may also be a TCR if it conforms to the criteria of a TCR in
PRC § 21074(a). CEQA mandates that lead agencies determine whether a project will have a
significant impact on TCRs that are eligible for listing on the CRHR (i.e., a historical resource), or are
determined to be significant by the lead agency in order to appropriately mitigate any such impacts.

Under the CEQA Guidelines, even if a resource is not included on any local, state, or federal
register, or identified in a qualifying historical resources survey, a lead agency may still determine
that any resource is a historical resource (i.e., TCR) for the purposes of CEQA, if there is substantial
evidence supporting such a determination (CEQA Guidelines § 15064.5[a]). A lead agency must
consider a resource to be historically significant if it finds that the resource meets the criteria for
listing in the CRHR, as discussed in Section 3.5, Cultural Resources. In accordance with CEQA
guidelines, cultural resources investigations are necessary to identify TCRs that may have significant
impacts as aresult of a project (14 CCR §15064.5). The following steps are routinely implemented in
a cultural resources investigation for CEQA compliance:

« l|dentify cultural resources in the proposed project area
s Evaluate against the CRHR criteria of significance (listed below)
+ Evaluate the impacts of the proposed project on all cultural/tribal resources

o Develop and implement measures to mitigate proposed project impacts on historical
resources or resources deemed significant by the lead agency

January 2025 | D-15



Draft Initial Study/Supplemental Environmental Assessment with Proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration 1“32
Accelerated Drought Response Project

As TCRs hold cultural value to a California Native American tribe, consultation with local Native
American tribes is an integral component of each of the cultural resources investigation steps
described above.

Assembly Bill 52 and Consultation

The lead agency for CEQA is responsible for consultation with Native American tribes regarding the
potential for a project to impact TCRs, pursuant to Assembly Bill (AB) 52 and PRC §§ 21073, 21074,
21080.3.1, 21080.3.2, 21082.3, 21083.09, 21084.2, 21084.3, and 5097.94(m). Assembly Bill 52
recognizes that “...tribes may have expertise with regard to their tribal history and practices, which
concem the tribal cultural resources with which they are traditionally and culturally affiliated...” and
that consultation will occur between a lead agency and Native American tribes for covered projects.

PRC §21080.3.1 (a) and Government Code §65352.4 define consultation as “the meaningful and
timely process of seeking, discussing, and carefully considering the views of others, in a manner that
is cognizant of all parties' cultural values and, where feasible, seeking agreement. Consultation
between government agencies and Native American tribes shall be conducted in a way that is
mutually respectful of each party's sovereignty. Consultation shall also recognize the tribes' potential
needs for confidentiality with respect to places that have traditional tribal cultural significance.”

A proposed project may induce a significant impact to a historical resource, unique archaeological
resource, or a TCRif it causes a substantial adverse change (i.e., physical demolition, destruction,
relocation, or alteration) to the resource or immediate surroundings (14 CCR 15064.5[b]), thereby
demolishing or significantly altering the physical characteristics that qualify it for listing on the CRHR
orlocal registers (PRC §§ 5020.01[k] and 5024.1[g]). A project that may cause a substantial adverse
change in the significance of a TCR is a project that may have a significant effect on the
environment (PRC § 21084.2). A lead agency shall establish measures to avoid impacts that would
alter significant characteristics of a TCR, when feasible (PRC §21084.3).

As such, the County is committed to working together with tribes and consultation efforts with
Califomia Native American tribes are described below.

Native American Historical, Cultural, and Sacred Sites

Pursuant to PRC 5097.94, the NAHC has authority and duty to “identify and catalog places of
special religious or social significance to Native Americans, and known graves and cemeteries of
Native Americans on private lands” and has the power and duty to make recommendations for
acquisition by the state or other public agencies regarding Native American sacred places that are
located on private lands, are inaccessible to Native Americans, and have cultural significance to
Native Americans.

California Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act of 2001

The California Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act of 2001 (CalNAGPRA)
requires all state agencies and museums that receive state funding and that have possession or
control over collections of human remains or cultural items to provide a process for the identification
and repatriation of these items to the appropriate tribes.

January 2025 | D-16



R s 1 1]

i
SSSONTY ity

& AT PN
£ o..‘a;scmmngg.,'& Y, i " .
FA oy, San Benito County Water District
Flim . gmi%?
2z 3L M 2 22
Wy Jodov. s 98" & 30 Mansfield Road e Hollister, California 95023 * (831) 637-8218 * Fax (831) 637-7267
L O

) &
LR

CEQA Findings for Adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration

San Benito County Water District, Accelerated Drought Response
Project

CEQA FINDINGS FOR A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION

Project Name: Accelerated Drought Response Project
Lead Agency: San Benito County Water District

Project Location: San Felipe Road and Fallon Road, Hollister, San Benito County,
California

Project Description: The San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) proposes to
expand the West Hills Water Treatment Plant (WHWTP) near the City of Hollister,
construct five Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) wells, and install new pipelines for
recharge water transmission from the City of Hollister to the proposed ASR wells and
recovery water from ASR wells to the City’s distribution system. The proposed Project
would have the capacity to inject, store, and recover up to 2,700 acre-feet per year of
water. The WHWTP has a current design capacity of 4.5 MGD with an annual average
flow of 2.25 MGD. The proposed Project would expand WHWTP capacity from 4.5
million gallons per day to 6.75 MGD. The WHWTP expansion would be based on
retaining the same processes and system design as currently utilized. The WHWTP
would be expanded within its existing developed footprint, while the ASR wells would be
newly installed on private lands in an agricultural area northeast of the City of Hollister.
Transmission pipelines and connections to distribution pipelines will be established

along public rights-of-way.
I. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS

SBCWD has conducted an Initial Study for the Accelerated Drought Response Project
in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Based on the
Initial Study, SBCWD has determined that, with the implementation of specified
mitigation measures, the project will not have a significant effect on the environment.
Therefore, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) has been prepared.

Il. FINDINGS

1. No Significant Impact: SBCWD finds that there is no substantial evidence
that the project, as mitigated, will have a significant effect on the environment.
This conclusion is based on the Initial Study and the mitigation measures
incorporated into the project.



2. Mitigation Measures: The following mitigation measures have been
incorporated into the project to avoid or mitigate potential significant
environmental impacts:

MM AG-1: Compensation for affected Farmland
MM BlIO-1a: California Tiger Salamander (CTS) Pre-Construction Survey
MM BIO-1b: Exclusion Fencing

MM BIO-1c: Dry Season Work

MM BIO-1d: CTS Precipitation Work Limits

MM BIO-1e: Accidental Entrapment Prevention

MM BIO-1f: Preconstruction Nesting Bird Surveys
MM BIO-1g: Preconstruction Burrowing Owl Surveys
MM BIO-1h: Minimization of Light

MM BIO-1i: NWPT Nest Avoidance

MM TERBIO-2: Sensitive Community Fencing

MM CUL-1: Inadvertent Discovery Protocol

MM GEO-1: Inadvertent Discovery Protocol

MM NOI-1: Construction Noise Control Plan

3. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP): A Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program has been prepared to ensure that the
mitigation measures are implemented and monitored for effectiveness.

4. Public Review: The MND was circulated for public review and comment for a
period of 30 days, from February 26, 2025, to March 27, 2025. All comments
received during the public review period have been considered and addressed
as warranted in the final MND.

5. No Statement of Overriding Considerations Required: Because the project
will not have a significant effect on the environment, no Statement of
Overriding Considerations is required.

lil. ADOPTION OF FINDINGS

The Lead Agency hereby adopts these findings and approves the Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Accelerated Drought Response Project.

Date: April 9, 2025

Signature:

Dana Jacobson, General Manager



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

State Clearinghouse No. 2012081028

Introduction

In 2014, the San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) prepared an Environmental Impact Report (EIR; State Clearing House No.
2012081028) for the West Hills Water Treatment Plant (WHWTP) Project. The environmental analysis contained in the WHWTP EIR
considered future expansion and installation of additional water treatment equipment and related improvements to a buildout capacity
of 9 million gallons per day (MGD). Currently, SBCWD is implementing an interim expansion of the WHWTP design capacity from 4.5
million gallons per day to 6.75 MGD. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21166 and CEQA guidelines 15162, it has been
determined that the SBCWD will rely on the previous environmental document, which adequately addresses this Project.

This Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the
State CEQA Guidelines, has been modified from the 2014 WHWTP EIR MMRP to include only mitigation measures applicable to the
current interim expansion of the WHWTP. It provides for the monitoring of mitigation measures required of SBCWD.

Section 21081.6 of the California Public Resources Code and Sections 15091(d) and 15097 of the State CEQA Guidelines require
public agencies “to adopt a reporting or monitoring program for changes to the project which it has adopted or made a condition of
project approval in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment.”

An MMRP is required for the proposed project because the EIR identified potentially significant impacts and mitigation measures to
reduce all of those impacts to less than significant levels.

Purpose

This MMRP has been prepared to ensure that all mitigation measures are implemented and completed according to schedule and
maintained in a satisfactory manner throughout implementation of the proposed project. The MMRP may be modified by SBCWD in
response to changing conditions or circumstances.



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Roles and Responsibilities

This MMRP gives the SBCWD primary responsibility for taking all actions necessary to implement the mitigation measures according
to the specifications provided for each measure and for demonstrating that the action has been successfully completed.

Supporting Documentation

Findings and related documentation supporting the findings will be maintained and will be made available to the public upon a written
public records request.

Mitigation Monitoring Matrix

The MMRP (Table 1) is organized in a matrix format and identifies the required mitigation measures, responsibilities, and the time
frame for mitigation and monitoring. The order in which mitigation measures are presented (by resource category) follows the
sequence in the EIR. The first and second columns identify the mitigation measure. The third column, entitled “Enforcement Agency,”
refers to the agency responsible for ensuring that the mitigation measure is implemented. The fourth column, entitled “Implementing
Party,” refers to the party(ies) that will conduct the mitigation and/or monitoring to ensure compliance with the mitigation measure.
The fifth column breaks down the mitigation measure into distinct components for which SBCWD, contractor(s), and/or other parties
working on the revised Project will be responsible. The final column, entitied “Time Frame/Milestone,” refers to the timing for
implementing mitigation measures and when monitoring would occur.



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Table 1. Mitigation Measure Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation Enforcement  Implementing - . Monitoring and Time Frame/
Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone
Measure Action
MM 3.4-1: Buffer  Prior to mobilization, staging, installation of perimeter =~ SBCWD SBCWD, qualified 1. Qualified 1. Prior to
Establishment fencing, or any other work activities, a 90 to 100 foot biologist, biologist identifies  construction
buffer (the maximum feasible at any given location) construction areas to buffer. 5 Prior to
around the relict seasonal wetland shall be marked by contractor(s) . g
surveyors. In coordination with a SBCWD-approved 2. SBCWD construction
biologist, silt fencing shall be installed at the 90/100-foot- incorporates 3. During
buffer line (providing a greater buffer at all possible avoidance construction
locations) for the duration of construction. Grassland procedures into activities (if
vegetation within the enclosure shall remain undisturbed. construction applicable)
This area shall be explicitly identified on construction specifications.
drawings as outside the approved work area and off- 3. Construction
limits. contractor and
During project operation, a 100-foot grassland vegetative qualified biologist
buffer shall be maintained around the feature and grazing carry out.
would likely continue. construction
pursuant to
For the 6.25MGD expansion, additional silt fencing shall contract
be placed around the drying beds as shown on the specifications.
attached plan.
MM 3.4-2a: Implement the following general multi-species protection SBCWD, SBCWD, CDFW 1. Qualified 1. Prior to
General Protection measures for the project. CDFW or or USFWS (if biologist identifies construction
Measures . v:oﬁwaooc_jm:ﬁmno: of mﬂmmm_msa habitat M%omm,\m,\mwm_,@w mmmmmwwﬁ%wu_ommmﬁ MM\MMWM\MM:SES. 2. Prior to
conditions shall occur prior to the start of construction construction
constricion and Immediataly afer completng comer)  2.S80WD 3 g
>Hon : I incorporates construction
¢ The habitat disturbance area shall be minimized. avoidance activities (if
The construction footprint shall be kept to the procedures into applicable)

smallest area required to construct the project.

e Every effort shall be made to limit grading and
ground disturbance to the dry season, typically
May through October.

construction
specifications.

3. Construction
contractor and




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation Enforcement Implementing Monitering and Time Frame/
M Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone
easure Acti
ction
e Construction Best Management Practices shall qualified biologist
be used to minimize erosion and prevent impacts carry out

to water quality and aquatic habitat.

A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) shall be prepared and implemented.
The construction area shall be delineated with
high visibility temporary fencing at least four feet
in height to prevent encroachment of
construction personnel and equipment outside of
the construction area. Fencing shall be installed
and maintained in good condition for the duration
of construction. Fencing shall be inspected and
maintained daily.

Unless otherwise directed by CDFW and
USFWS, exclusion fencing shall be used to
prevent listed species from entering the project
area. The fence shall be at least three feet in
height and the lower 6 inches buried into the
ground to prevent animals from crawling under.
Fencing shall be installed and maintained in
good condition for the duration of construction.
Fencing shall be inspected and maintained daily.
Vehicles are restricted to established roadways
and approved access routes and staging areas,
and must observe a 20 miles per hour {mph)
daytime speed limit and a 10-mph nighttime
speed limit.

Trash, firearms, and pets are prohibited in the
project area during construction. All trash and
debris in the work area shall be placed in
containers to reduce the likelihood of predators
being attracted to the site by discarded food
wrappers and other rubbish. Lids shall be
secured before the end of each work day.
Containers shall be emptied to prevent trash

construction
pursuant to
contract
specifications.




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

Enforcement
Agency

Implementing

Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

overflow and all rubbish shall be disposed of at
an appropriate off-site location.

A Worker Environmental Awareness Program
shall be implemented. Prior to mobilization and
other ground disturbing activities, a Worker
Environmental Awareness Program shall be
implemented to educate construction workers
about the biological resources that occur or
potentially occur on the site. The education
program would include information about the
federal and state Endangered Species Acts,
identification of special-status plant and wildlife
species and wetland habitats, a review of
mitigation measures, a discussion of Best
Management Practices for the avoidance and
minimization of project- related impacts on
biological resources, and the consequences for
noncompliance with environmental laws.

A USFWS- and CDFW-approved onsite
biological monitor shall be retained during
construction activities near sensitive habitats. A
USFWS- and CDFW-approved biological monitor
shall be onsite during construction activities in or
adjacent to grassiands to ensure implementation
of mitigation measures and construction Best
Management Practices. The monitor shall have
authority to stop construction activities and
develop altemative work practices, in
consultation with construction personnel and
resource agencies, if construction activities are
likely to impact special-status species or other
sensitive biological resources.

The biological monitor shall survey the work area
prior to daily construction activities to identify if




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Enforcement Implementing Monitoring and  Time Frame/
Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting ‘ Milestone
Action

Mitigation
Measure

any sensitive biological resources are present
before equipment mobilizes.

s During initial ground disturbance, the biological
monitor shall be contacted if special-status
species are located in the project area by
construction personnel. If construction personnel
observe special-status species in the work area,
work in the immediate area shall cease and
personnel shall contact the biological monitor or
quickly relay the information through approved
channels (e.g., through the construction
foreman). The biological monitor shall relocate
the species if permitied and otherwise approve
the recommencement of work activities. (The
relocation of listed species requires a special
permit and is discussed in species-specific
mitigation measures including Mitigation
Measure 3.4-2¢.)

+ Non-listed sensitive species, if encountered in
the work area, shall be relocated to a safe place.
If non-listed special-status species are
encountered in the fenced work area, the
monitoring biologist shall relocate the individual/s
to suitable habitat outside of the work area.

e Grassland habitats temporarily disturbed during
construction shall be restored. Following
construction, SBCWD shall restore grassland
habitat that was temporarily disturbed during
construction. Contours and underlying
topography shall be returned to pre-project
conditions and the surface hydroseeded with a
native seed mix appropriate for the area. The
plan shall identify the native seed mix, quantify
the actual temporary and permanent disturbance
acreages, and identify areas targeted for




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation Enforcement Implementing Monitoring and Time Frame/
M Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone
easure Action

restoration and the season during which

restoration activities would be conducted. The

plan shall also identify success criteria for

completion and remedial actions if the success

criteria are not achieved, with an emphasis on

preventing establishment of non-native invasive

species.
MM 3.4-2¢: The following measures shall be implemented to reduce SBCWD, SBCWD, CDFW 1. Qualified 1. Prior to
California Tiger adverse effects on California tiger salamander and CDFW or or USFWS (if biologist conducts  construction
Salamander and California red-legged frog: USFWS (if necessary) preconstruction 2 Prior to
California Red- . . . necessary) qualified biologist, surveys. ) .
legged Frog « At _.mmmﬁ 15 days prior to any @.ﬁoc:a-a_mﬂc&_sm construction construction
Measures activities, SBCWD shall submit to the USFWS contractor(s) 2. SBCWD 3. During

and CDFW for review and approval the incorporates om:mﬁEnzo:

qualifications of the proposed biological avoidance activities (if

monitor(s). A qualified biological monitor means procedures into applicable)

any person who has completed at least four
years of university training in wildlife biology or a
related science and/or has demonstrated field
experience in the identification and life history of
the listed species.

¢ Preconstruction surveys for listed species shall
be performed immediately prior to
groundbreaking activities. Surveys shall be
conducted by USFWS- and CDFW-approved
biologists. If at any point construction activities
cease for more than five consecutive days,
additional preconstruction surveys shall be
conducted prior to the resumption of activities.

« To prevent the accidental entrapment of listed
species during construction, all excavated holes
or trenches deeper than 6 inches shall be
covered at the end of each work day with
plywood or similar materials. Foundation
trenches or larger excavations that cannot easily

construction
specifications.

3. Construction
contractor and
qualified biologist
carry out
construction
pursuant {o
contract
specifications




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

Enforcement
Agency

implementing
Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

be covered shall be ramped at the end of the
work day to allow trapped animals an escape
method. Prior to the filling of such holes, these
areas shall be thoroughly inspected for listed
species by a USFWS- and CDFW-approved
biologist. In the event of a trapped animal,
construction shall cease until the individual has
been relocated to an appropriate location.

+ Relocation of listed species shall be approved on
a project-specific basis. SBCWD shall implement
the previously prepared Sensitive Species
Relocation Plan for the project. Only agency-
approved biologist(s) are authorized to capture
and handle listed species.

e« Only a USFWS- and CDFW-approved biologist
shall conduct surveys and move listed species.
Bare hands shall be used to capture amphibians,
and no soaps, creams, lotions, repellents, or
solvents of any sort may be present on hands. To
avoid transferring disease or pathogens, the
Declining Amphibian Population Task Force’s
“Code of Practice” shall be followed.

MM 3.4-2i(i):
Conduct San
Joaquin Kit Fox
and American

Badger Surveys.

Between 14 and 30 days prior to mobilization activities, a
CDFW- and USFWS-approved biologist shall conduct a
pre- construction take-avoidance survey in all off-road
construction areas. The pedestrian survey shall be
performed by walking transects over the proposed
construction area and a 200-foot buffer such that 100
percent visual coverage of the ground surface is
maintained and during which the locations of suitable
dens are documented. If no dens are observed during
surveys, no further actions would be required. If dens are
identified during the survey, they shall be mapped and

SBCWD,
CDFW or
USFWS (if
necessary)

SBCWD, CDFW
or USFWS (if
necessary)
qualified biologist,
construction
contractor(s)

1. Qualified
biologist conducts
preconstruction
surveys.

2. SBCWD
incorporates
avoidance
procedures into
construction
specifications.

1. Prior to
construction

2. Prior to
construction

3. During
construction
activities (if
applicable)




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

Enforcement
Agency

Implementing

Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

classified into one of the following four den status
categories and the appropriate action taken:

Potential den: Any subterranean hole that has
entrances of appropriate dimensions for which
available evidence is sufficient to conclude that it
is being used or has been used. Potential dens
comprise: (1) any suitable subterranean hole; or
(2) any den or burrow of another species (e.g.,
coyote, red fox, or ground squirrel) that otherwise
has appropriate characteristics for San Joaquin
kit fox or American badger use.

o A 50-foot buffer around the den
location shall be established and
the buffer area would become
excluded from the approved
work area.

o Ifavoidanceis not a reasonable
alternative, limited destruction of
potential dens shall be allowed.
Potential dens can be removed
by careful hand excavation by a
CDFW- and USFWS-approved
biologist or under the
supervision of a CDFW- and
USFWS-approved biologist, after
the dens have been monitored
for three days with tracking
medium or a remote sensor
camera and determined to be
vacant. If, during excavation or
monitoring, a potential den is
determined to be currently or
previously used (e.g., sign found
inside), then destruction of the
den or construction in that area

3. Construction
contractor and
qualified biologist
carry out
construction
pursuant to
contract
specifications




San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation Enforcement Implementing Monitoring and Time Frame/
M Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone
easure Action

shall cease and the CDFW and

USFWS shall be notified

immediately.

¢ Known den: Any existing natural den or artificial

structure that is used or has been used at any
time in the past by a San Joaquin kit fox or
American badger. Evidence of use may include
historical records; past or current radio telemetry
or spotlighting data; signs such as tracks, scat,
and/or prey remains; or other reasonable proof
that a given den is being or has been used.

o Take appropriate action for (a), above,
but establish a 100-foot buffer around
the den.

¢ Natal or pupping den: Any den used by San
Joaquin kit fox or American badger to whelp
and/or rear their pups. Natal/pupping dens may
be larger with more numerous entrances than
dens occupied exclusively by adults. Thesedens
typically have more tracks, scat, and prey
remains in the vicinity of the den, and may have
a broader apron of matted dirt and/or vegetation
at one or more entrances. A natal den, defined
as a den in which pups are actually whelped but
not necessarily reared, is a more restrictive
version of the pupping den. In practice, however,
it is difficult to distinguish between the two;
therefore, for purposes of this definition either
term applies.

o The CDFW and USFWS shall be
contacted immediately if a natal or
pupping den is discovered at or within
200 feet from the boundary of the
construction area.

10



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation Enforcement Implementing Monitoring and Time Frame/
M Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone
easure Action ;
s Atypical den: Any artificial structure that has

been or is being occupied (more applicable to

San Joaquin kit fox). Atypical dens may include

pipes, culverts, and diggings beneath concrete

slabs and buildings.

o Take appropriate action for (a), above.

MM 3.4-2i(ii): + Project-related vehicles should observe a SBCWD, SBCWD, CDFW 1. Qualified 1. Prior to
implement the daytime speed limit of 20-mph throughout the ~ CDFW or or USFWS (if biologist conducts construction
Construction and site in all project areas, except on county roads USFWS (if necessary) preconstruction 2 Prior to
On-Going and State and federal highways; this is necessary) qualified biologist, surveys. construction
Operational particularly important at night when kit foxes are construction
Requirements of most active. Night- time construction should be contractor(s) 2. SBCWD 3. During
the 2011 USFWS minimized to the extent possible. However if incorporates construction
Standardized night-time construction does occur, then the avoidance activities (if
Recommendations speed limit should be reduced to 10-mph. Off- procedures into gpplicable)

for Protection of
the Endangered
San Joaquin Kit
Fox Prior to or
During Ground
Disturbance.

road traffic outside of designated project areas
should be prohibited.

To prevent inadvertent entrapment of kit foxes or
other animals during the construction phase of a
project, all excavated, steep-walled holes or
trenches more than 2 feet deep should be
covered at the close of each working day by
plywood or similar materials. if the trenches
cannot be closed, one or more escape ramps
constructed of earthen fill or wooden planks shall
be installed. Before such holes or trenches are
filled, they should be thoroughly inspected for
trapped animals. If at any time a trapped or
injured kit fox is discovered, the USFWS and the
CDFW shall be contacted as noted under
measure 13 referenced below.

Kit foxes are attracted to den-like structures such
as pipes and may enter stored pipes and
become trapped or injured. All construction

construction
specifications.

3. Construction
contractor and
qualified biologist
carry out
construction
pursuant to
contract
specifications

11



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

Enforcement
Agency

implementing

Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

pipes, culverts, or similar structures with a
diameter of 4-inches or greater that are stored at
a construction site for one or more overnight
periods should be thoroughly inspected for kit
foxes before the pipe is subsequently buried,
capped, or otherwise used or moved in any way.
If a kit fox is discovered inside a pipe, that
section of pipe should not be moved until the
USFWS and CDFW have been consulted. If
necessary, and under the direct supervision of
the biologist, the pipe may be moved only once
to remove it from the path of construction activity,
until the fox has escaped.

All food-related trash items such as wrappers,
cans, bottles, and food scraps should be
disposed of in securely closed containers and
removed at least once a week from a
construction or project site.

No firearms shall be allowed on the project site.
No pets, such as dogs or cats, should be
permitted on the project site to prevent
harassment, mortality of kit foxes, or destruction
of dens.

Use of rodenticides and herbicides in project
areas should be restricted. This is hecessary to
prevent primary or secondary poisoning of kit
foxes and the depletion of prey populations on
which they depend. All uses of such compounds
should observe label and other restrictions
mandated by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, California Department of Food and
Agriculture, and other State and Federal
legislation, as well as additional project-related
restrictions deemed necessary by the USFWS. If
rodent control must be conducted, zinc

12



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Enforcement Implementing

Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

phosphide should be used because of a proven
lower risk to kit fox.

A representative shall be appointed by the
project proponent who will be the contact source
for any employee or contractor who might
inadvertently kill or injure a kit fox or who finds a
dead, injured or entrapped kit fox. The
representative will be identified during the
employee education program and their name
and telephone number shall be provided to the
USFWS and CDFW.

An employee education program should be
conducted for any project that has anticipated
impacts to kit fox or other endangered species.
The program should consist of a brief
presentation by persons knowledgeable in kit fox
biology and legislative protection to explain
endangered species concerns to contractors,
their employees, and military and/or agency
personnel involved in the project. The program
should include the following: A description of the
San Joaquin kit fox and its habitat needs; a
report of the occurrence of kit fox in the project
area; an explanation of the status of the species
and its protection under the Endangered Species
Act; and a list of measures being taken to reduce
impacts to the species during project
construction and implementation. A fact sheet
conveying this information should be prepared
for distribution to the previously referenced
people and anyone else who may enter the
project site.

Upon completion of the project, all areas subject
to temporary ground disturbances, including
storage and staging areas, temporary roads,

13



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

Enforcement
Agency

Implementing
Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

pipeline corridors, etc. should be re-contoured if
necessary, and revegetated to promote
restoration of the area to pre-project conditions.
An area subject to "temporary" disturbance
means any area that is disturbed during the
project, but after project completion will not be
subject to further disturbance and has the
potential to be revegetated. Appropriate methods
and plant species used to revegetate such areas
should be determined on a site-specific basis in
consultation with the USFWS, CDFW, and
revegetation experts.

In the case of trapped animals, escape ramps or
structures should be installed immediately to
allow the animal(s) to escape, or the USFWS
and CDFW should be contacted for guidance.
Any contractor, employee, or military or agency
personnel who are responsible for inadvertently
killing or injuring a San Joaquin kit fox shall
immediately report the incident to their
representative. This representative shall contact
the CDFW immediately in the case of a dead,
injured or entrapped kit fox. The CDFW contact
for immediate assistance is State Dispatch at
(916) 445-0045. They will contact the local
warden or Mr. Paul Hoffman, the wildlife
biologist, at (530) 934-9309. The USFWS should
be contacted at the numbers below.

The Sacramento Fish and Wildlife Office and
CDFW shall be notified in writing within three
working days of the accidental death or injury to
a San Joagquin kit fox during project related
activities. Notification must include the date,
time, and location of the incident or of the finding
of a dead or injured animal and any other

14



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation
Measure

Mitigation Measure Description

Enforcement
Agency

Implementing

Party

Monitoring and
Reporting
Action

Time Frame/
Milestone

pertinent information. The USFWS contact is the
Chief of the Division of Endangered Species, at
the addresses and telephone numbers below.
The CDFW contact is Mr. Paul Hoffman at 1701
Nimbus Road, Suite A, Rancho Cordova,
California 95670, (530) 934-9309.

+ New sightings of kit fox shall be reported to the
California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB).
A copy of the reporting form and a topographic
map clearly marked with the location of where
the kit fox was observed should also be provided
to the USFWS at the address below. Any project-
related information required by the USFWS or
questions concerning the above conditions or
their implementation may be directed in writing fo
the USFWS at: Endangered Species Division,
2800 Cottage Way, Suite W2605, Sacramento,
California 95825-1846, (916) 414-6620 or (916)
414-6600.

MM 3.6-2c: Cease
Work and
Evaluation for
Inadvertent
Discoveries of
Cultural
Resources

in the event that previously unidentified archaedogical or
Native American resources are uncovered during project
implementation, all work shall cease in the vicinity of the
find until it can be evaluated by a qualified archaeologist.
if the resource is found to be a historical or unique
archaeological resource as defined in PRC Section
21084.1 and 21083.2(g), respectively, impacts to the
resource shall be avoided during project implementation.
Consistent with Section 15126.4(b)(3), this may be
accomplished through planning construction to avoid the
resource; incorporating the resource within open space;
capping and covering the resource; or deeding the site
into a permanent conservation easement. [f avoidance is
not feasible, a detailed treatment plan shall be prepared
and implemented by a qualified archaeologist. Treatment

SBCWD

SBCWD, qualified
archaeologist

1. SBCWD
incorporates
avoidance
procedures into
construction
specifications.

2. Construction
contractor and
qualified
archaeologist cany
out construction
pursuant to
contract
specifications

1. Prior to
construction

2. During
construction
activities (if
applicable)

15



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Mitigation Enforcement - Implementing Monitoring and Time Frame/
M Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone
easure Action
of unique archaeological resources shall follow the
applicable requirements of PRC Section 21083.2.
Treatment for most resources would consist of (but woud
not be not limited to) sample excavation, surface artifact
collection, site documentation, and historical research,
with the aim to target the recovery of important scientific
data contained in the portion(s) of the significant
resource to be impacted by the project. The treatment
plan shall include provisions for analysis of data in a
regional context, reporting of results within a timely
manner, curation of artifacts and data at an approved
facility, and dissemination of reports to local and state
repositories, libraries, and interested professionals.
MM 3.6-3b: Pre- All construction forepersons and field supervisors SBCWD SBCWD, qualified 1. SBCWD 1. Prior to
construction conducting or overseeing subsurface excavations shall paleontologist incorporates construction
Paleontological be trained in the recognition of potential fossil materials avoidance 2 Prior to
Resources prior to ground disturbing activities. Training on procedures into ) .
Sensitivity paleontological resources shall also be provided to all construction construction
Training. other construction workers but may include videotape of specifications.
the initial training and/or the use of written materials. In > Construction
addition to fossil recognition, the training shall convey o.o::. actor and
procedures to follow in the event of a potential fossil ualified
discovery. The training may be conducted concurrently q haeoloai
with the cultural resources training required in Mitigation archaeologist cany
Measure 3.6-2b. out construction
pursuant to
contract
specifications
MM 3.6-3c: If potential fossils are discovered during construction, all SBCWD SBCWD, qualified 1. SBCWD 1. Prior to
Assessment and  earthwork or other types of ground disturbance in the paleontologist incorporates construction
Salvage of immediate vicinity (no less than 50 feet) of the find shall avoidance

Potential Fossil
Finds

stop until the qualified paleontologist can assess the
nature and importance of the find. Based on the scientific
value or unigueness of the find, the paleontologist may

procedures into
construction
specifications.

2. During
construction

16



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Monitoring and

Mitigation Enforcement Implementing Time Frame/
Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting Milestone

Measure Action

record the find and allow work to continue, or 2. Construction activities (if

recommend salvage and recovery of the fossil. If contractor and applicable)

treatment and salvage is required, recommendations will qualified

be consistent with current professional standards. If archaeologist cany

required, treatment for fossil remains may include out construction

preparation and recovery of fossil materials so that they pursuant to

can be housed in an appropriate museum or university contract

collection. : specifications
MM 3.6-4: Cease If human remains are uncovered during project SBCWD SBCWD, qualified 1. SBCWD 1. Prior to
Work for construction, work shall be immediately halted, the archaeologist incorporates construction
inadvertent County Coroner shall be contacted to evaluate the avoidance 2 Durin
Discovery of remains, and the procedures and protocols set forth in procedures into om:m:cﬂm:o:
Human Remains  Section 15064.4 (e)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines shall be construction activities (if

followed. If the County Coroner determines that the specifications. licabl

remains are Native American, the NAHC shall be 5 Construction applicable)

contacted in accordance with Health and Safety Code om ntractor and

Section 7050.5, subdivision (c), and PRC Section fified

5097.98 (as amended by Assembly Bill 2641). Per PRC mww:_m_mmo_o Ste

Section 5097.98, the landowner shall ensure that the out oo:m:.w n:omi

immediate vicinity, according to generally accepted  to

cultural or archaeological standards or practices, where mmwm%%oﬂ

the Native American human remains are located, is not specifications

damaged or disturbed by further development activity P

until the landowner has discussed and conferred, as

prescribed in this section (PRC Section 5097.98), with

the most likely descendant regarding their

recommendations, if applicable, taking into account the

possibility of multiple human remains.
MM 3.11-3: Noise  To minimize construction equipment noise production, all SBCWD SBCWD, 1. SBCWD 1. Prior to
Controls heavy construction equipment shall be equipped with construction incorporates construction

factory approved mufflers in good working order. Heavy contractor(s) measure into activities

construction equipment should not be left to idle for
extended periods when not in use. Stationary
construction sources, such as generators, should be

construction
specifications

17



San Benito County Water District
West Hills Water Treatment Plant Project
(Modified) Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

Time Frame/
Milestone

Enforcement Implementing Monitoring and

Mitigation Mitigation Measure Description Agency Party Reporting
Measure : Action

located as far from noise-sensitive receivers as possible, 2. SBCWDcreates 2. Prior to

and should be shielded by portable barriers/enclosures Noise Controls in  construction
whenever feasible. coordination with  activities
construction .
contractor(s)and 3. _uﬂ::@ﬂ.
local jurisdiction(s) construction
activities
3. Construction
contractor(s)
carries out
construction
pursuant to
contract specs and
Noise Controls
MM 3.12-1a: Site  The contractor shall ensure that construction-related SBCWD SBCWD, 1. SBCWD 1. Prior to
Maintenance activity is as clean and inconspicuous as practical by construction incorporates construction
storing construction materials and equipment at the contractor(s) measure into activities
proposed construction staging areas or in areas that are construction 2 Durin
generally away from public view, particularly when specifications o.o:m: mﬁ.
considering ridgeline locations, and by _,m_jos:@ 2 Construction a o:s:,m s lon
construction debris promptly and at regular intervals. contractor(s)
carries out
construction
pursuant to

contract specs

18



